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The Honorable Mayor, Members
ofthe Municipal Legislature and
People ofrhe Municipaliry of Aibonito.
Commonwealth of pueno Rico
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The Govemment Developmelt Bank for Puerto fuco (fiscal agent) could not provide us a standard bank
confirmation to independently support the existence, o\4Tlership and valuation of the restricted cash
balance recorded in the Bond Issuance $2,844 Fund (a non-major capital project fund).

In our opinion, except for the matters discussed in the preceding paragaphs, the finarcial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the govemmental
activities, each major goverrunental fund and the aggregate remaining govemmental firnd information of
the Municipality of Aibor to, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as of Jule 30, 2010, in conformity with
accounting principles gercrally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Also, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position, the changes in financial position and cash flows ofthe business-type activities of the
Municipality of Aibonito, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2010, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

ln accordance with Goyemrnent A diting Stahdards, we have also issued our report dated December xx,
2010, on our consideration of th€ Municipality of Aibonito, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's intemal
contol over financial rcporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The puipos€ of that repod is to describe
the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion orl the intemal conrol over financial rcporting or on compliance.
That report is an integal part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Stahdards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedule are not a rcquired part of
the basic Iinancial statements but arc supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. V/e have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regalding the methods of measueme[t and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the infomation and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements thal
collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office ofManagement and Budget Circular A-133, Awlits ofStates, Locql GovernmentL and lion-proft
Otganizdtions, and is also not a.equired part ofthe basic financial statements ofthe Municipality. The
schedule ofexpendinues offedeml awards have beer subjected to the auditing procedues applied in the
audit of the basic hnancial statemerts and, in our opinion, are fai.ly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole-

December 9,2010
Toa Alta Puerto Rico

Stamp No. 2448908
was affixed to the
original report.
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7 E BENITEZ-rArME. cPA-Psc
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo,
CoMMoN.TYEALTH oF PUERTo R|co

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 10, 2010

As management of the Municipality of Aibonito (the Municipality), we offer readeE the
following discussion and analysis of the Muiicipality's financial activities reported in the
accompanying basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage
readers to consider the information pres€nted here in conjunction with additional ioformation that
is fumished in the accompanying financial statements, which follow this narative.

As more fully described in Note I, On July 1,2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of
CASB Statement No. J9, De,ermining Whethet Ce ain Organizations are Component (Jnits - @t
Anendmenl of GASB Statenerrt No. 14 (GASB No. 39). Bas€d on the criteria established by
CASB No.39, the Municipality's management concluded that there are no legally sepante
entities or organizations that should be reported as component units ofthe Municipality as ofand
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Therefore, tls Flo.es Apartments (FmtlA and HUD
Project No. 63-005-660-43-3572) was reported as a business-type activity and not as a component
unit ofthe Municipality as ofand for the fiscal ye6r ended June 30, 2010.

INAIICIAL HIGIILIGIITS

Goven me nt-Mde H ig h I ig hts :

. The Municipality's total assets amounted to $54,402,410 at June 30, 2010, of which
$36,832,666 (6870) consist of capital .ssets (net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization of$14,670,515), $14,7t3,608 (27o/o) consist of cash and cash equivalents, (of
which $10,794,862 ar€ restdcted for specific purposes), 91,935,889 (4%) consist ofaccounls
receivable, net of the reserve for doubtful account, and $E50,247 ( l%) consist ofother assets.

. The Municipality's total liabilities amounted to $16,325,152 at June 30,2010, of which
$11,113,193 consist ofbonds and notes payable,92,235,475 consist of uneamed revenues,
$1,788,624 consist of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and Sl,16?,860 consisr of
accrued compensated absences.

. The Municipality's assets exceeded its liabilities (net assets/surplus) by $38,077,?58 at June
30,2010.

. The Municipality's total revenues amounted to $13,662,9E5 for the fiscal year ended June
30,2010, ofwhich $5,745,161 arose from taxes, $6,943,620 arose fiom inte.govemmenral
grants and contributions, and $974,204 arose from charges for services, interest on deposits
and miscellaneous rcvenues.

. The Municipality's expenses amounted to $10,61E,976 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, of which $7,238,479 where incurred in providing direct services and benefiB to
citizens in relation to urban and economic developmen! health and sanitation, public safety,
public housing and welfare, and culture, recreation and education. In addition, the
Municipality incurred $117,899 of its total exp€nses, in interests related to its long-term
obligatioos, and $3,062,59E (in general govemment activities to support the Municipality's
functions and progams. The Municipality's expenses include depreciation in the amount of
$1,340,029, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
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MUIiICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo,
CoMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

. The Municipality's net assets increas€d by $3,044,009 during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010.

Governme al Funds' Highlighls:

. The total fund balance of govemmental finds amounted ro 912,924,828 at Jllne 30, 2010, of
which $756,590 a.e assigned, $12,409,960 are restricted, and $241,722 represenb an
un.estricted deficit.

. The total fund balances ofgovemmental funds increased by $3,416,293 during the fiscal year
ended June 30,2010.

Propfietary F und Hig h lights :

. The total restricted fund net assets ofthe prcprietary fund amounted to $1,530,793, ofwhich
$1,139,976 are invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt, while $390,817 arc restficted for
the operations offederally funded programs.

. The total restricted fund net assets of rhe proprietary fund decreased by $96,526 during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

OVER!'IEW OF THE BASIC FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS

The purpose of financial reporting is to provide extemal users of basic financial statements with
information that will help them to make decisions or draw conclusions about the Mlnicipality.
There are many extemal parties that use the basic financial statements of the Municipality;
howevet these parties do not always have the same specific objectives. In order to address the
needs of as many parties as reasonably possible, the Municipality, io accordance with requir€d
firlancial reporting standards, presents this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) as
an introduction to the accompanying basic financial statements. This nanative represents an
ovewiew and analysis ofthe financiat activities ofthe Municipality for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2010. Because this MD&A is designed to focus on the cur€nt year activities. resulting
changes and currently known facts, we encourage readeE to consider the information presented iD
this MD&A in coljunction with the additional information fumished ill the accompanying basic
financialstatements.

The Municipality's basic financial statements include three components: (l) govemment-wide
financial statements (GWFS), (2) fund financial statements (FFS), and (3) notes to the basic
financial statements (NBFS). This report also contains additional required information in
addition to the basic financial stat€ments themselves. These components are desoriH below.

The basic financial statements focus on: (l) the Municipality as a whole (govemment-wide
financial reponing) and, (2) rhe Municipality's major individual govemmental and proprieEry
fuods. Both p€rspectives allow the users to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or govemment to govemment) and enhance the Municipality,s
accountability. The components ofthe basic financial statements are described trlow.
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MUNIcIPALITY oF AIBoNITo,
CoMMoNwf, ALTH or puERTo RJco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Goeernfierrt-$,ide Fiaarrcial St ementt

The GWFS are composed of; (l) the statements of net assets (SNA) and (2) the statement of
activities (SA). These financial statements can be found immediately following this MD&A.
GWFS are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Municipality,s
operations as a whol€ in a manne. sirnilar to private-sector business. These statements
provide short-term and long-term information about the Municipality,s financial position,
which assist the Ml]nicipality's management to determine the economic condition at June 30,
2010. The GWFS are prepared using methods thar are similar to thos€ used by most p.ivate
businesses.

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovemmental activities (eoremmental
aclrvirrer) fiom other firnctions that are intended to recover all or a significant po.tion oftheir
costs through user fees and charges (6r6rress-r),p e activities) .

1. St.teDent ofNet Asset!

The purpose ofSNA is to attempt to report all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the
Municipality. The Municipality reports of all of its assets when it acquires owlership
over the assets and reports all of its liabilities when they are incurred. For example, the
Municipality reports buildings and inliastructure as ass€ts, even though they arE nof
available to pay the obligations incurred by the Municipality. On the other hand, the
Municipality rcports liabilities, such as claims and judgrhents, bonds and not€s payable,
obligations under capital leases, compensated absences and certain accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, even though these liabilities might not be paid until s€veral fiscalyears
into the future.

TIe difference between the Municipality,s total assets and total liabilities reported in
SNA is presented as zel a$err, which is similar to the total owners, equity reported by a
commercial enterprise in its financial statements. Although the purpose of the
Municipality is not to accumulate net assets, as this amount increases or decreases over
time, such amount reprcsents a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Municipality is either improving or deterioratin& respectively.

2. Statedetrt of Activitics

The-SA presents information showing how the Municipality,s net assets changed during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, by presenting all ofthe Municipality,s revenles and
expenses. As previously discussed, the items reported in SA ar€ measured in a manner
similar to the approach used by a commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized
when earned or established criteria are satisfied, and expenses are recorded when
incurred by the Municipality. Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may
not be collected for several months after the end of the fiscal ye'l and expens€s are
recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current year.

AlthouSh SA looks different from a commercial enterprise,s income statehent, the
difference is only in format, nor substance. Whereas the bottom line in a commercial
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo,
CoM}IoN\f,EALTH oF PUf,RTo RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

enterprise repres€nts its net income, the Municipality reports an amount described as /rel
change in net aJsett,\,thich is essentially the same concept.

The focus ofSA is on the rel cos, ofvarious activities provided by the Municipality. The
statement begins with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Municipality's
major functions. Another column identifies the revenues that are specifically related to
the classified govemmental functions. The differcnce between the expenses and revenues
related to specific functions/p.ograms identifies the extent to which each function of the
Municipality draws from general revenues or is self-financing through fees,
inte4ovemmental aid, and other sources ofresources.

This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and progmm revenues
for each function ofthe Municipality.

CWFS and GFFS present all of the Municipality's governmental activities, which are
supported mostly by tares and intergovemmental revenues (such as federal and state gmnts
and contributions). All services normally associated with the Municipality fall into this
category, including culture, recreation and education; general govemment; health and
sanitation; public safety; public housing and welfare; and econornic and urban development.

F und F inanc ial Sldlefie nx

The Municipality's FFS consist of: (l) the balance sheet - govemmental funds, (2) the
statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds, (3)
the statement of net ass€ts - proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in fund net arsets -proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows -
proprietary fund. These financial statements report the financial position, the results of
operations and cash flows of the Municipality's govemmental and proprietary firnds, witb an
emphasis on the Municipality's major govemmentaland proprietary funds.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectiles. The Municipalify, like most other
state and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensu.e and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity
accounted for withr'n a set of self-balanc ing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenue, and exp€nditures. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliaace with legal,
financidl and contractual provisions. All ofthe funds ofthe Municipality can be divided into
two categories: govemmental funds and proprietary funds.

l. Govemmeotal fu[ds

Govemmental funds ar€ used to account for most of the services provided by the
Municipality. These funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as govemmental activities in the GWFS. Uolike CWFS, fte focus ofgovemmental funds
in the FFS is directed to specific activities of rhe Municipality ruther rhan the
Municipality as a whole; therefore, govemmental funds in FFS report the Municipality,s
operations in mo.e detailthan the GWFS.
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo,
CoMMoNwEALTH oT PUERTo RIco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 10, 2010

Govemmental firnds in FFS providc a detailed short-term view of the Municipality,s
finances that assist in determining whethe. there will be adequate financial reiources
available to meet the curent needs of the Municipality, which is, evaluating the
Municipality's near{erm financing rcquirements. For financial repo*ing purpose-, the
Municipality classifies its govemmental funds wirhin the following types: (i) general
fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) special revenue funds, (4) capiral projects funds;d (5)
Permanent funds.

Covemmental funds FFS are prepared on an accounting basis that is significantly
different from that used to prepare CWFS. In general, govemmental funds FFS focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of expendable financial resources, cons€quently, they
measure and account for cash and othe. assets that can easily be convened to ca!h. For
example, amounts reported on the balance sheet include capital ass€ts within a very short
p€riod of time, but do not include capital assets such as land and buildings.
Govemmental fund liabilities genelally include amounts that normally are going to be
paid within a short period after the end of the fiscal year. Ihe difference between a
fund's total assets and total liabilities is reported as the fund balance or deficit- and
generally indicates the amount rhat can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activilies.
Likewise, the operating statement for govemmefltal firnds reports only those revenues
and exp€nditures that were collected in cash o. paid with cash, respectively, during the
current fiscel year oa very shonly after the end ofthe fiscal year.

Because the focus of govemmental funds FFS is narower tha, that of the GWFS, it is
usefirl to compare the fund information presented for govemmental funds with si;ilar
information presented for govemmenral activities in the CWFS. By doing so, readers
may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near_te.rm financial
decisions. Both the govemmental firnds' balance shea and thi govemmental funds,
statement of reveoues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate the compa.ison between govemmental funds and the
govemmental activities reported in the govemment-wide financial statements.

The Municipality has five majo. govemmental funds. Each majo. fund is presented in a
sepamte column in the balance sheet - govemmental funds and the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds. The five major
govemmenlal funds are: (l) general fun4 (2) debt servic€ fund, (3) capital projects fund,
(4) legislativejoint resolutions fund, and (5) special communities trust fund.

Proprietery futrd

ftg folletarf firnd is a fund used to report the financial position, results of operalion
and cash flows of Las Flores Apartments (FmHA and Hud project No. 63-005-;6043-
3572). ls a housing developmenr consisting of one-hund.ed (100) dwelling units located
in Aibonito. The project is owned by the Municipality, but its opeations;e carried out
by a private management agent unrelated to the Municipality. Tie housing development
project of Las Flores ApartrDents has be€n designed to assist various ,"gln"nt of th"
general public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housine. Jhe oroiect
operates under financing through the Section t New Constsuction -t Sulir.,rtiot
Rehabilitation Program ofthe U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development and
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBo TTo,
CoMMoNWEAT"TH oF PUERTo fuco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 10. 2010

the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Program of the U.S. DeparEnent of
Agriculture. The purpose of Las Flores Apartments is to provide adequate housing to
Iow-income residents of the Municipality.

The activities of Las Flores Apartments have been reported as a proprietary fund in the
accompanying basic financial statements since GAAP permits the use ofenterprise funds
to report any activity fo. which a fee is charged to extemal us€rs of goods or services,
regardless of whether the govemment intends to firlly recove. the cost of the goods or
services provided. Thus, it is common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for
services where the govemment intends to recover only a portion of its costs through fees
or user charges.

Proprietary funds provide the same type ofinformation as the GWFS, but in more detail.

c) Noles to Basic FinMciat Stotements

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding ofthe data
p.ovided in the GWFS and CFFS. The NBFS can be found immediately following the basic
financial statements.

O Aher Supplengnlary Infomation

The basic financial statements are followed by a section ofother supplementary information
consisting of: (1) budgetary corhparison schedule - geneml fund and rhe Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards.

This Space Has Been Intentionally Lefl Blank
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

FINANCIAL AIIALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipality's overall financialposition and operations for the prior and the current fiscal
year are summaiized as follows, bas€d on the information included in the accompanying GWFS:

CoDdeBed Statemetrt ofNet Assetj
Government l Activities
June 30,2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Assels:

Cunent assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net of
srccumulated depreciation

Other ass€ts

Total assets

Liobilities:
Current liabilities
Long-term obligations due within one year
Long-rerm obligations due afier one year

Total liabilities

Net dssets (defrcit):

Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt
Restricted

Unrestricted, as restated

Total net assets

t7,148,903

36,832,666

$ r3,8t7,291

37,147,913

663,484
51,628,6t8

420.84t

54,402,410

4,005,232

722,701

11,597,2t9

______t!;x!2_

33,013,200

5,886,26s
(E22,201)

38,077,258

3,994,091

60t,36t
I1,999,981

-------i65d57it

At June 30,2010, the Municipality's current assets, amounting to $17,14t,901, arc mainly
composed of cash and cash equivalents ($14,783,60t), accounts receivable ($2,361,209), net ;f
reserve for doubtful accounts and otherrcceivable ($4,0t6).

The Estricted cash aepresents resources legally desigrated for: ( I ) the palment of debt service,
(2)-the acquisition, constuction and improvement ofmajor capital assets, and (3) the opemtions
offederally and state funded grant pmgrams. Restricted cash also consists ofunspent proceeds of
bonds issued for acquisition, construction and improvement of major capital assets. Restricted
property taxes receivable represent resources set aside to redeem the bonds of6e Municipality in
minimum annual or biannual principal and inter€st payments.

The Municipality's non{urrent assets, amounting to $37,253,507 at June J0, 2010, are composed
of capital ass€ts, with a cost basis of $51,503,181, which are reported net of accumulated

24,839,E t9
12,165,956

(t,972,s26)
3s,033 249
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO,
COMMONWIALIE oF PUf, RTO IUCO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

depreciation and amortization of $14,670,515 and other non curent assets, afiounting to
$420,841.

At June 30, 2010, the Municipality's cunent liabilities amounting to $4,721,933 are fi inly
compos€d of accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($1,769,757), uneamed revenues
($2,235,475), and the portions due within one year ($722,701) ofbonds and notes payable and
compensated absences. Uneamed revenues principally consist of uneamed reverues associated
with municipal license taxes and intergovemmental grants and contributions related to state and
federally funded $ant programs.

The Municipality's non-cunent liabilities, amounting to $l 1,597,219 at June 30, 2010, are mainly
composed ofponions due after one year ofbonds and noted payable ($10,792,934) compensated
absences ($785,418) and other liabilities ($18,867)

As noted earliet net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Municipality's
financial position. The assets ofthe Municipality exc€eded liabilities by $38,077,258 at June 30,
2010. The most significant portion of net assets ($33,013,200) reflects the Municipality's
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, fumiture, fixtures,
infrastructure, etc.), net ofall related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire, construct or
improve those assets. The Municipality uses these capital ass€ts to provide services to its
citizens; consequently, these assets are not availgble for future spending. Although the
Municipality's investrnent in capital asset is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the
resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since capital assets caflnot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another significant porlion of net assets ($5,8E6,265) at June 10, 2010, represents resources that
are restricted for debt service payments, capital projects and other purposes.

The remaining component of total net assets consists of unrestricted net liabilities amounting to
$822,207 at June 30, 2010- These unr€stricted net liabilities ar€ the consequence of previous
budgets that did not provide sufficient funding for incun'ed long-term obligations, such as bonds
and notes payable, compelsated absences, claims andjudgments, certain obligations under capital
leas€s, etc. Historically, a significant portion ofsuch obligations has been budgeted on a pay-as-
you-go basis.

The total net assets ofthe Municipality increased by $3,044,009 during the liscal year ended June
30,2010.
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MuNIcIpALtry oF AIBoNITo,
CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUORTo RICo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

The following is a condensed pres€ntation ofthe Municipality's results ofoperations as rep,orted
in the GWFS:

Condensed Statement of Activities
Govemmental Activities

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Prograrn revenues:

Progam-sp€cific operating grants and contributions
Program-specifi c capital grants and contributions
Charges for services

Total program revenues

Ceneral revenues:

Property taxes
Municipal licens€ taxes
Construction excise taxes

Sales and use tax
Unrestricted grants and cont butions

Interest on deposits

Other geneml revenues (various sources)

Total general revenues
Total revenues

Program expenses:

General govemment

Urban and economic development

Health ard sanitation

Public safety

Public housing and welfare
Culture, recreation and education

lnterest on long-term obligations
Total expenses

Net increase in net assets

Net assets, at beginning of fiscal year

Prior-period adj ustments

N€t assets, at beginning of fiscal yeal as restated
Net assets, at end of fiscal year

$ i,580,960
1,044,039

89,474

2,714,473

2,012,E59

2,280,940

81,288

4,375,081

3,31I,l5l

-t,437,t56386,777

- 610,077

4,318,62t
679,E03

204,927

r,630,495
I I1,897
297,846
483,863

4,326,278-

16E,903

r 0,948,512------Ti@,4$- 7,0t9,282

3,062,598

4,703,436
I1,792

l16,901

I,6t6,774
789,576

-t17r4,7673,450,792
2,E16,550

550,526

329,751

2,240,240

t91,t67
65,3t6

9,6M,4t4
|,749,955

36,335,004
(3,051,7t 0)

317,899

t 0,618,976

3,044,009
35,033,249

35,033,249

38,077,25E

As previously nentioned, the Mudicipality's net assets increased by $3,044,009 during the
current fiscal year. Approxirnately 42% ofthe Municipality,s total revenues for the cunent iiscal
year came Lom property, municipal license, construction excise ta\es and sales and use nxes
($5,745,161). Cmnls, contributions and charges for services (program revenu*), .rnounting to
57,033,094, proyided 52y. of the total revenues for the current fiscal year. Miscellaneous
revenues and interest on deposits provided the reftaining 60% oftotal revenues.

lt
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO,
CoMMoNwf, ALTH oF PUERTo ITco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
FiscalYear Ended June 10, 2010

The Municipality's expenses cover a wide mnge of services. The largest expenses of the
Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010 were related to: (l) urban and economic
development ($4,701,436), (2) general administmting and operating costs ($3,062,598) which
were classified as "general govemment", (3) public housing and welfare ($1,616,774), (4)
culture, recreation and education ($789,576), (5) interest on long-term obligations ($317,899), (6)
public safety ($116,901), (7) and health and sanitation ($11,792) . These expenses include
depreciation and amortization of capital assets in the amounts of $1,140,029 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010.

FINANCIAL AIIALYSIS OF GO}'ERNMENTAL FUI{DS

Analysis of Financial Posirion of Governmental Funds

As discussed earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and dernonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Municipality,s
govemmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's compliaoce
with finance-related legal requirements. Specifically, unreserved ftrnd balance may serve as a
useful measure ofthe Municipality's net resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal
year.

At .lune 30, 2010, the total ass€ts of govemmental funds amounted to $20,105,537, which
consisted principally of: (1) cash and cash equivalents of 514,764,030 (2) accounts receivable,
$2,358,177, net of reserve for doubtful accounts, and (3) inter-fund receivables of 92,982,730.
Such assets are restricted for debt service, capital projects, encumbrances and other specific
PUTPOS€S.

At June 30, 2010, the total liabilities of governmental funds amounted to $7,180,709, which
consisted principally of: (l) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of$1,732,504, (2) defened
revenues of $2,235,475, (l) inter-fund payables ($2,982,730) and (4) matured bonds due and
payable of$230,000.

This Space Has Been Intentionally Left Blank
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIaoNITo,
CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended.lune 30, 2010

The fund balances ofgovemmental funds increased by $3,416,293 during the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2010.

Cotrdensed Brlsoce Sheet - Governfietrtal Funds
June30,2010 tnd 2009

20t 0 2009

,rJserr.'

Total asses - major govemmental funds

Total assets - othet govemmental funds

Combined total assets

Liab ilies:
Total liabilities - maior govemmental funds

Total liabilities - other govemmental funds
Combined total Iiabilities

Fund balarces:
Assigned or restricted - major govemmental funds

Assigned or restricted - other govemmental funds

Unassigned - all govemmental funds

Combined total fund balances

Totql liabililies andIa balances $ 20,105,53?
-f----Td5229-oo-'

17,272,31I

2,833,226

20,t05,s37

$ 13,856,840

2,666,060
-T------i25229-60-'

6,273,126

907,5E3

7,1E0,709

11,240,901

1,925,643
(241,722)

12,924,828

9,595,113

1,925,643

(2,012,821)

9,50E,535

6,213,948

740,417

7,0)4,365

J

J

J

J

J

J

J
Major Covemmeotsl Funds

G3!9ISL&!C_(GD - The GF is the principal operating tund olthe Municipality. The GF's total
assets amounted to $6,176,183 at rune 30, 2010. Such assets consist principally of: (1) cash and
cash equivalents ($3,9E8,746), (2) propefty toq municipal license ta)q construction excise ta)q
sales and use tax, and intergovemmental grants and contributions receivable ($1,931,457), and (3)
short-term and long-term amounts due fiom other funds ($253,9E0).

The GF's total liabilities amounted to $5,661,315 at June 10,2010. Such liabilities are composed
mainly of: (l) intergovemmental payables ($990,648), (2) defened revenues (91,508,298), (3)
accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($434,31l), and short-term and long teIm amounrs due to
othe. tunds ($2,728,03E).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund d€ficit of the GF amounted to $241,722,
whiletotal fund balance amounted to $514,868.

Debt service fuod (DSf)- The DSF'S total assets amounted to $1,866,525 at June J0,2010,
which consist mainly of restricted cash in fiscal agent ($1,818,259), restricted prop€rty taxes
receivable, net of reserve for doubtful accounts ($9,466), intergovemmental grants and
contributions receivable and others ($38,800). The DSF's total liabilities amounted to $307,629
at June 10, 2010, which are mainly composed oi ( I ) rhatured bonds and interests due and payable
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MUNICIPALITY oT AIBoItITo,
CoMItoNwEALTH oF I'uERTo Rtco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

($230,000), (2) accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($77,583), (3) and due to other firnds
($46).

Lesillatiye ioitrt resolutiom futrd flJRFI - The LJRF's tolal restricted assets amounted to
$1,218,725 at June 30,2010, which consist of cash in a commercial bank ($391,199), due from
other funds ($t26,803) and accrued interest on deposits ($723). At the end of the current fiscal
year, LIRF'S total fund balance is $1,21E,725.

Other qovertrftetrt l futr& (OCF)- The OCF'S total assets amounted to $2,833,225 at June 30,
2010, which consist mainly of restricted cash and cash equivalents (9827,936), due from other
funds (S1,901,947), intergovemmental grants and contributions (5103,267), and accrued interest
receivable ($76). The OGF'S total liabilities amounted to $907.583 ai June 30. 2010. which are
mainly composed of defened revenues ($72?,177) and short-tenn and long-term amounts due to
other funds ($ 180,406).

C&pild oroiect! Iutrd (CPF) - The CPF'S total assers amounted to $6,010,87E at June 30, 2010,
which consisl mainly of cash and cash equivalents ($7,731,890), intergovemmental gmnts and
contibutions receivable ($268,212) and accrued interest on deposits ($4,776). The CPF'S total
liabilities amounted to $304,182 at June 30, 2010, which are mainly compos€d of accounts
payable and accrued liabilities ($229,942) al;,d, short-terrn and long-term amounts due to other
funds ($74,240). At the end of the current fiscal year, CPSF's tota! restricted tund balance
reached $7,706,696-

This Space Has Been Intentionally Left Blank
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MUNICIPALTTY OF AIBONITO,
CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Analysi, of Operuting Resullj of Govemmental Furrds

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010
Revenues:

Total revenues - major govemmental funds

Total revenues - other govemmental funds

Combined total revenues

Expenditures:

Total expenditures - major govemmental funds
Total expenditures - other govemmental funds

Combined total expenditures

Dejcienqr of revenues under eryEnditures

Oher Jinancing sources, net:
other financing sources, net - major

govemmental funds

Oher financing sources (uses), net - other
govemmental funds

Combined other financing sources (uses), net

Excex (deficiency) of reyerrues and othet

fn@tcing sowces over (fildet) eryeiditures
and other fin@cing uses

Ftnd balance, at beginning offiscal ledt
Pl i o r -p e r i od adj us tm e n t s

Fund balahce, at beginning oJfiscal )ear (reslated)

Fund balance, at end oJliscal year

$ 12,744,t92 $ 10,178,382
l8r5 217 6*r o7a

13,t30,429 t0,859,461

9,356,803 10,510,516
357,333 680,t22

3,416,293 (43r,171)

2t,9M 3,5t2,363

(2E.9M) ts47.363)
- 2,965,000

3,4t6,293 2,533,823

9,508,535 t0,291,422
- (3,316,710)

9,508,535 6,9',74,1t?.

$ 12,924,828 $ 9,50t,535

15
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo,
CoMMoN\ EALTH oFpuERTo Rrco

Management,s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal year Ended June J0,2010

Maior Govemmetrtal Funds

Getreral fund - The total fund balance ofthe CF increased by $2,527,699 during current fiscal
year.

Approxirhately 52% ($5,162,961) ofthe CF's total revenues for the current fiscal year came from
proper9, municipal license, construction excise taxes and sales and use taxes, while ($4,31g,621)
resulted from intergovemmental gmnts and contributions.

The largest expenses ofdle CF for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 were related to: ( I ) general
administEting and operating costs ($2,770,291), (2) construction,.ehabilitation and preservation
of new or existing housing; ($1,313,697), which were classified as ,,urban and economic
development, (3) culture, recreation and education ($789,576), (4) public safety (9109,845), (5),
and public housing and welfare (9300,414).

Debt s€rvice fund (DSF) The total fund balance of the DSF increased by M06,801 during
current fiscal year. Approximately $582,200 ofDSF,S total revenues for the crrrent fiscal yeai
came from restricted property taxes. DSF,S total expenditures for the clrrent fiscal year c;me
from principal and inter€sts on bonds payable ($617,370).

Ifgi:gd"," !"lrt "Botrrtlfr" 
f.. - The total fund balance of the LJR-F inc.eased by

$56,363 during current fiscal year. LJRF's total revenues for the curent fiscal year came
principauy from state legislative assignments and contributions amounting to $22E,333 and
interest on deposits amounting $8,252. LJRf's total expenditures for the curint fiscal year came
from public housing and welfare ($180,222).

Oiher qovernmcrt l furds (OGF) - Substantially ail of OCF,S revenues for the current tiscal
year_carne fiom intergovemmental granls and eontributions of$3g4,26g and interest on deposits
of$1,969. Total expenditures were mainly related to public housing and welfare ($201,26i) and
general administration (g I 5 6,07 I ).

Caoitalrroi€cts funds (CPF) - The total fund balance ofthe CpF increased by $425,440 during
current fiscal year. CPF'S total revenues for the current fiscal year came fiom intergovemmental
gmnts-and contributions amounting to $ 1,044,0j9 and accrued interest on deposits ;mounting to
$567,301. CPF's total expenditures fo. the cunent fiscal year were mainly relared to cap'ital
outlays, ($62E,641) and public housing and wetfare (9334,27 4).

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF BUSINESSTYPE ACTII'ITIDS

Analytb of Finnrrciol position of proprielary Fund

At June 30, 2010, the total assets of prop.ielary fund amounted to $2,530,795, which consisted
principally of: (l) restricted cash in commercial banks (g19,578), (2) capital asserc net of
accumulated depr€ciation ($2,083,85E), and other assets ($424,927).

At June 30, 2010, rhe total liabilities of the proprietary fund amounted to $1,000,002, which
consisted principally of: (l) mortgage notes payable of i943,gE2, and (2) accor-rats payable and
accrued Iiabilities of 956, 120.

t6
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
FiscalYear Ended June 30, 20t 0

The total restricted net assets of proprietary fund amounted to $1,510,791 at June 30, 2010, of
which $1,119,976 are invested in capital assets, and $390,E17 afe reserved for prograrn activiries.
The following table presents a summary of the financial position ofthe proprietary fund (pF) at
June 10,2010:

Assers:

Total cuarent assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Total curent liabilities
Torrl non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

lnvested in capital assets, net ofaelated debt

Restricted for federal funded program

fotuI rertrlcted nel ossets

Unrestricled nel ossels

Toaal ne, arsels

2,530,79s

1,000,002

1,541,313

( 10,520)

1,530,793

CAPMAI ASSETS A.T!D DEBT ADMINISTRATION

a) Capitsl A-$rets

The Municipality has invested $51,501,181 in capital assets used in govemmental activities,
which have an accumulated depreciation and arnortizrtion of$14,670,515 at June 30,2010.
The net capital assets increased during the current fiscal year due to the current fiscal year's
capital additions ($315,247), which were panially ofs€t by the depreciation and amortization
expense,

b) Debt Admiriltratior

The Municipality finances a significant ponion ofits construction activities through bond and
note issuances, and through state and federal grants. The proceeds from bond issuances
designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety for such purposes and
cannot be used for any other purposes.

At June 30, 2010, the Municipality's total bonded debt amounted to $10,030,616 consisting
of bonds payable. Such debt is backed by the full faith and credit ofthe Municipality. The
Municipality has also certain outstanding notes payable. Such notes payable also decreased

26,096

2,504,699

1t3,424

886,s7E

J

J

J

J

1,139,976

401,33',7
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MUNIcIPALITY oT AIBoNITo,
COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO I'ICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

during the current fiscal year mainly due to the principal payments made during the same
period.

REQUEST FOR II{FORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a geneml overview ofthe Municipality's finances for
all ofthe Municipality's citizens, taxpayers, customeas, investors and creditors. This financial
report seeks to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability for the money it receives.

Questions conceming any ofthe information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to: Municipality ofAibonito, Department ofFinance.

l8
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
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CoMMoNwEALTH oF puERTo RIco
MUNICIPALITYoT AIBoNITo

Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2010

As!.ts

Cash in comcrcial brnks
AccoBts rec€ivable net ofallowdce fo.

doubrftl a.coums:

Propeny iar(es

Mu;cipal license t -\es
Con$rucr;o. excise Bxes
Sal€3 ed use taxes

Intergovemental grants and contdbrltioirs

Cash in conmerc;d bank
Calh in fs.al agent

Accours dcivable:
Prop€rty iarcs receivabl€, oet ofallowanc.

for doubttul a.c6urs
Accru€d int€r€sts oo deposirs

Intergovmcntal grana ed con riburions
Othc. ..ceilables

Orher cMmt assei!
Total cuent asset!

DQreciabl€ capiial ass€q net ofa.cumutated
deprsiarion ot $ I I ,599,914 and $ 1,070,58 | tur
govemrnmEl and buliness-typeastiyiric,

Non-d.prcciable.apilat sscts

Total noo-cun€ assets

rctivities
Busin.ss-tyD.

Toarl

3,988,716 3.988,7t6

975,0t2
2.950
5.732
3,780

945.981

r,221,098
9,5i2,t86

9,466
5,707

410,147

19,578

975,012
2.950
5,732
3,780

945,983

1,242.676

9,552,186

9,466
5,101

4t0,141
2,432

17,t22,807
4,086 4.085

26.096 17.148.901!

18.864,432
I5.884,376

14,748,808

1,957,708
126,150

420.Ut
2.504.699

__-__)s39JE_

20,E22.140
16,010,526

420.841

37 253.507

l__llJ!2J!g_
?he $conpanyinA not.s to lE b6ic JiiNiat statenents de u integat parl ofthb state@at.

20
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COMMONWEALTH OF PI][RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Statement of Nel Assets (concluded)
June 30,2010

Liabiliti€s and net .ss€ts

Current liabilities (due within one yerr):
Accounts payabl€:

Trade payables

Intergovemmental payables

Accrued liahilities:
Accrued interests on bonds and notes payable

lrneahed revenuer

Curent ponion of long-term obligations:
Bonds payable

Notes payable

Compensared absences

Total cunent liabilities

NoFcorrent li.biliti€s, eIchding current portion
(due ir mor€ th3n oreyerr) :

Bon& payable

Notes payable

Compensated abs€nces

Other liabilities
Total non-current liabililies

Tolall;abiliti€s

Net rsseb (liobilities):
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restaicted for:

Debt s€rvice

Capital projects

Othe. purposes

Total r€stricted

Toial net assets

Covernmentrl
activities

BusinGsi-type
sctiviti€s Total

5l1,914
990,648

229,942
2,235,415

210,000
34,088

382,442

9,800,6r6
124,607

785,418

31,918

5,135

76.171

867,711

18.867---- 886lrt
1,000,002

543,832
990,648

235,217
2,235,415

230,000
110,2s9
382,442

tt3,424 4,727,933

9,800,6t6
992,318
785,418

10,710,641
| 5,325,t50

31,873,224

1,558,896
781,664

3,t44.168
5,484,928

139,976

395,06;
6,272

40t,337

18.867

11,597,219
t6,32s,ts2

13,013,200

1,558,896

1,176,729

1.I50,640
5.886,265
(E22,2O7)

$ 38,077,258

The acconpanling notes to the basiclnancial statenents are an ihtegral pa4 olthb statenent

E I1,687
36,546,465
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COIIMON'\ f,ALTH OT PUERTORICO
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 10. 2010

I1J.10,029

Pmgnn- Prognn-
3p.rlfl. !p..ili.
op.dtl.g ..pial
grhlr..d g.r.rt rnd

.ooriburiolr conMbudo.s

.nd ch!tr86 Bu.ir*ryp.
ir !.a ,sl! r.riliti6

c@.derdrl adiva6:

urbd dd d()lMic dev.lopd.li

Public hoci.e dd rclfe
CultuE, @Earion ed .ducalion

Inl. 6ls on long-ldn oblieaiions

Tor.l sdmD.nral &tivni6

Public hoGinc dd Elfc,
inchding i 6r d lomg-idm

ouisali@soflTEJ?E

3,062,598

4,703,416

|,192
I l6,qll

I,066,070

1E9,576

239,521

E6,5?0 I90,689

*,,01

42t.9t2

t,014,019

J (2,765J39)

(l:18,109)

{11.792)

(116,90t)

(644,158)

1189,t76)

(239,521)

- s (2,76J,1r!

- (1,218.10!

- (ll,?9:
- ( 116,90

- {544,15r
- 049,51
- (u9,52

9,989.894 86,570 1,051,689 1,044,039 (7,80t,596) (7.Eot.59r

(98,90?) (9E,90',527,21164,081 2,904

J
J
J
J
J
J
J
J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

j
t

Tot l bBins-t?. aaiviii* s 629,082 1,9U 521,271 {9E,907) $ (98,90-

C6d.l Bdu6:
Td6:

PDpeny sxes

Muicip.l lims lu6
C@slrudiq .xci$ r.x6
Sri6 dd E ta6

Totd ie rcrfrc
lnI.rgovmft.lal gdts dd onributions-

nor GEicled io speific Poeffi
lnreGr on d@sirs

Miselltuc
Totd Ccndl E6c

N.r in.!!e (dc@) in n r 6s.rs
N.r s*l5 {r bcgimi.g ol frscd ,@
Nd aers 

't 
ad of filcd y6

fi* @npa,rins not t to ke bdi. jw.ial ttdtew,tt arc u i,Esml pan otthit nd.ftn.

l: ,r5l
tA)1.t56

366,177

6t0,071

- t 3,lll,l5
- t.431,151

- 146,77'

- 610,07'

5.?45,161 5,745,16

4J 18,62r

619.E03

2As6 2,381

:t,1t8,62

679.60:

2U.92-
10,946,111 2,381 t0,948.51'
3.1.10,535 (95,526) 1,0.14.00!

36,546.465

!t

,
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I CoMiION\lEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUTICIPALITY OF AIBO:{ITO
Balance Sheet Covemmental Funds

June 30.2010I
t

I

Urjor got.r.o.nul fu.d 

-
Olt.r Tot l

gov.rtrD..l.t 8ov.dn.ni.l
lur& fEr&

ls.l!

Crsh in commGrci.l b..Is. ircluding

Account reikblc, nci oaallo$..c.

Muricaprl I'EnF tlxe
Co.smcion excie rar6

l.r.Eolnm.El BEnls ard enributio.s
Due fron othcr govemm.rlal tunds

Carh itr.ommrci.l bs.rs

accd.d inrGts o. d.porns

lnr.rgormma&l erd&.nd conrnbdiont

Prcrsr, lar6 re.iv.bl.. nel ofm.Be
aor doubtnil Monnts

Lirbiliiid
Accourrs pay.bl. and .ccru.i li&biliri6:

Tad. p.yabl6 and acctued {i.b'hie3
lnrergovdndEl payabl6

Ouc ro oih- gov.mm.n6l tunds

Mlrur€i bcds duc dd payabl.

Md@d int 6r due .nd payaue

t 1.988.7,16

975.012

2,950

5.1t2
1.r80

9,1i.983

251.980

li,2t3

168.212

- 9,466 9,166

1,98E,?.{6

I

I
I

I
I
I
rt

l9t.l99
- r.818.259

123 117

- 1E.668

502 1.901,,145

124.422 562,264
. tt,250
-16
- t0t.261

17,543

,16 180.4!6

- 214,924 502,253

210.000

975,0t2
x,950

5,132

l,?E0
945,9E3

L9A2,130

1.223,098

9,552,186
5.701

4t0,t47

Ji4.3ll

2.723.013

r,s08.298

74t,856

990,648

2.9a2,110

2,215,415

230,0m

5.66r.]l5 104.182 221,92t 682,659 7,180,?09

I Fundb.l.o..t

Total annd balancs (d.ficn,
lbral h.bJn6 and rird h.l..cs

1211,127t
1.925,641

t2rt,722)
12.109,9601,106.696 1,2t8,125 1,5t8.896

I 5i4J6E ,,?06,6% t,21a,725 r,558,896 1.925,6.11 t1,921,824
t6T76Tr-E0rrs7r 1.213.725 r,366,525

- 
fit a..anpao nR noPt ta tt" bdn tmn'ul dEaenBat.an,.teqtol?aaolth\rot?a?at

I

I
I
r
T
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MuNlcIPALlrY oF AIBoNITo

Statem€nt ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficits) -Govemmental Funds

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Mrlo.ld.Bn.nhl lutrdr

$ !,728,91 582,200

I.al7.!56
ja6,n7
610 017

l,lt I,l5l

5.t62.951 532,200

2l8.lll 4,11,033

3252 I,533

l8:.092
I,969

36,570

202.546 - 202,546

9_371.19t l_6l.l,'0 2t6_535 1.024.876 2,t16 ll,tl0,.r29

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

Mu.i.ipll licene a.s
CoBrrction cris rax.s

InrtrBov.mm.nEl gEnls and co iburio.s

Urba sd eotuni. dev.lo9f,..r

Public hoGi.g dd Elfe
CulluE, EcEarion and du@.ion

&c.ss olff.uG ov.r .x!..dn!€s
Ot.r n..ftI4 snd (tc):
TasGR-in ftm dh.r gov.mhm.l tunds

T6sfeR{a to oth.rgov.mF.ni tu.ds
Td.l orhcr fiMdng $uee! (B), n.r

N.r ircEe i. fu.d b.l..c.s (d.Iicn,

Frql &l.re {d.ftit) .r bei.ri.a

Fmd b.L!e .r od ol fKl ya,

2,110,791

- 335,0{0

- 232,370

252

156,071

,ol.ol;

2,926,362

1,1D,697

l,ol6,lz

239,52t7.t51

711,21a

t30,27X 6t1.1',10

1.,116.193

(52_309) l2t?_985) ( 1.9?tl)

5t,52t

(7051 rl 92.11 1269301

i4-
Z tl

r,213,725 11.9?,r.323

Tkftcohpan ingtuter tath. bartlituftlot ,ot.Ddt ar. jflesot pd olthit at.n tu

L
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CoMilloTTfl EALIH oF PUERTO fUCO
MUNIcIPALITY oT AISoNITO

Reco ciliation ofthe Balance Sheet - Govemmental Funds to Statement ofNet Assets

June 30, 2010

8u!ine$ -
Covernmenlrl type

lcliviti6 ,ctivities Totrl

The amounts ofgovemmental activities reported in the statement ofnet
assets and the balance sheet - govemmental funds, are different for the

following reasons:

Totalfund balances reported in the balance sheet - govemmental firnds $ 12,924,828 $ 1,530,796 $ 14,455,624

Add (Deduct):

Capital assets used in govemmental activities arc not considered

available financial resources at fiscalyearcnd, therefore, are not
reported in the govemmental funds. This is the carrying amountol
capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation and amortization of
$l 1,599,934 at June 30,2010 34,748,808 - 34,748,808

The following liabilities are not due (mature) in the current fiscal
year, therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds at
June 30,2010:

Bonds payable (9,800,616) - (9,800,616)
Notes payable (15E,695) - (158,695)
Compensated absences (1,167,860) - (1,167,860)

. Net assets - govemmental activities. as reported in the starement ofnet

{ *."r. $ 36,546,465 |,530,796 $ 38,071,261
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
Reconciliation ofthe Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

(Deficits) - Covemmental Funds to Statement ofActivities
June 30,2010

Bulioasr -
Gov€rnmentrl tYPe

activiti€3 sctivitiB Total

The amounts ofgovemmental activities r€ported in the statement of
activities and the statement of revenues, expendiftres and changes in

fund balances (deficits) - govemmental funds, are different for the

following reasons:

Total net increase (decrease) in fund balances (deficits) reported in the

statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund belances -
govemmentaltunds S '1,416,293 (96,526) $ 3,319,761

Add (Deduct):

Govemmental funds report capital outlays ($899,E75) as

expenditures. However in the statement ofactivities the cost of
those ass€ts is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

depreciation and amortization expense.

Govemmenlal fiinds do not repon depreciation expense as

expenditure, however, such amounts are reported in the statement

ofactivities.

Repayment ofprincipal of long-term obligations is reported as

expenditure in the govemmental funds; however, the repayment

reduces long-term liabilities in the statement ofnet assets.

Certain expenses reported in the statement ofactivities do not
require the use ofcurent available financial rEsourses, therefore

are not reported in the govemmental funds.

Net increas€ (decrease) in net assets, as rEported in statement

ofactivities

899,875

(t,340,029)

419.08E

(254,692)

899,875

- (t,340,029)

419,088

- (2s4,692\

$ 3,140,535 (96,526) $ 3,0,{4,009

I 
The acconparying notes to the batic lnancial statenents arc an integal part ol this stdeneni
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CoMMoN\,f, ALTH oF PUERIo RICo
MUNICIPALITy or AIBoNITo

Statement ofNet Assets
Proprietary Fund

June 30,2010

Bosiness-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Restricted Assets

Current asset!:
Resiricted assets:

Cash in commercial bank
Tenants accounts receivable
Otler ass€6

Tolal curr€nt assets

Non-curretrt lsset3:
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation of $3,070,581
Nondepreciable capital assets

Total capital assets

Othea assets

Total non-curent ass€ts
Total assets

Lirbilities rnd furd nct a$ets

Currcnt liabilities (duc withio one ye.r):
Accounts payabl€s and accrued liabiliries,

including accrued interests of 35,335
Cun€nt portion of mongage notes payable

Total correnl liabilities

Non{urrent liebilities. ercluding current portion
Tenants' security deposits
Mongage notes payable - due in more tha[ one year

Total non-cun€nt liabilities
Totalliabilities

Fund oat sssets:
Invested in capital asse6, oet ofrelated debt
ResEicted for:

Capital projects
Other purposes

Total restricted
Unrestricted

Total nel a$ets

Las Flores Apsrlments
FfiHA rnd Hud Proie(
No. 63-00$56&433572

$ 19,578

2,432
4,085

26.096

I,957,708
r26,150

2,083,858
420,841

2,504,699-r-----z5jfiq-t

$ 3',t.253
76,t7t

\3,424

18,867

867,71|
886,578

1.000,002

I,t39,976

395,065

6,212
401.337

The accomparryinE noter to the basicfnarcial statenent: are an integal pai of this statenent
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CoMMoNWEALTH of PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITO

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund

' Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Busincs!-Type Activities -
E,lterprbe Fund

Op€rating revenrca:
Charges for services - rental income from tenants

Inlergovemmental gmnts and contributions -
tenants assistance payments tom u.s.
Department of Housing and Urban Development

Miscellaneous

Total operdring revenues

Operlting crp€ns€s:
Geneml and adm inistEtive
Utilities
Maintenance

Insura.ce
Interesr on mort8age notes payable

Depreciation of capital assets

Total op€rating expenses

Operating loss

N.t rss€ts sl beginning of lis$l yest
N.t rssek at end of fiscrl year

Las Flores Apenme[ts
FmHA rnd HUD Proiecr
No. 6&00#60-4!3572

$ 2,9M

527,271
2,181

532,556

186,9 r9
7,292

122,069
34,179
78,378

200,245
629,082
(96.526\

1,627,319

_!_____..u19r21_

The occonpanling notes to the bosic fnancial statenen,s arc an iriegral pa o[ ,his statenetu
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COMMOI$ EALTH oF PIIf,RTo RICo
MUNICIPALITY or ArBoNtro

Staternent of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund

FiscalYear Ended June 30, 2010

Business-Type Activities -
Ent€rprise Fond

Cash floris from operrtiry activities:
Net decrease in net assets

Depreciation expenss

Deqease in accounts receivable - tenants, net
Increase in prepaid insurance
Increase in deposit held by Eust
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decr€ase in accrued interest
lncrease in deposit tenants security

Net cash provided by operating activities

Crsh llon/s from invBtirg lctivities:
Decrease in reserve for replacement
Decrease in escrow account
Increase in land improvements
Increase in building improvements
Incrcase in building equipmeni
Increas€ in ofiice equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flo{,s from finrncil|g rctivities:
Decrease in mongage payable

Net cash used by financing activiries

Net decreas€ in cash

Cash in commercial bsnk at b€gi[tring ofycar

Ca3h in colnmercirl brnkat end ofyear

Las Flores Apartnents
FmHA rrd HUD Project
No. 63-005-66G.13.3s72

$ (96,526)

200,245
2,030
(186)
(619)

5,949
(2,939)

619

108,571

228,955
14,307

(41,1I6)
(22s,116)
(5?,850)

(470)
(81,890)

(72,64s\
(72,645\

(4s,962)

65,540

19,578

The occonpanying notes to the basiclinancial statenents arc an integal pa ofthis statenent
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MUNICIPALITY OTAIBONITO
CoMMoNwEALTH oFPUERTo Rlco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

1. Summary of Signilicant Accourtitrg Policies

The Municipality of Aibonito, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipality), is a local
municipal govemment constituted in 1824 in the Commonwealth of Pue.to Rico. The
Municipality has full legislative, fiscal and all other govemmental powers and responsibilities
expressly assigned by Law No. 8l of August 30, 1991, as amended, known as Autonomous
Municirylities Act of lhe Commonwealth oJ Puerto Rr'co (Act No. tl). The Municipality is
one of seventy-eight municipal govemments legally separat€d fiom the state govemment of
the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico (the Commonwealth).

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides for the sepamtion of powers of the
executive, legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities.
However, the Mu0icipality's govemmental system consists of executive and legislative
branches only. A Mayor, elected every four years by the citizens, exercises the executive
power of the Municipality. The legislative power of the Municipality is exercised by rhe
Municipal Legislature, whose members are also elected every four years. The judiciary
power is exercised by the General Justice Court System of the Commonwealth, which has
jurisdiction over the Municipality.

The Municipality .rssumes either partial or full responsibility for providing servicB to its
citizens related to public housing, welfare, public safety, health, sanitatiorl education, culture,
recreation, urban development, economic developmeot, and many other fiscal, general and
administrative services.

,) Financilrl Reporling Model

The accompanying basic financial stltemenis present the finaocial position of the
govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major govemElental and
proprietary funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality at
June 30, 2010, in conformity with Accounting Principles cenerally Accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP), as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). tn addition, the accompanying basic financial statements
present the changes in the financial position (resulrs of opemtions) ofthe govemmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major govemmental and proprietary funds,
and the aggregate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 10, in
conformity with GAAP. Furthermore, the basic financial statements referred to above
present the cash flows of the business-t1pe activities (proprietary fund) for the fiscal year
ended June 10, 2010 in confonnity with GAAP.

According to the financial ref}o(ing ftodel established by GASB Statement No. 34, Sasr',a
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis Jor State and Local
Govemments (CASB No. 34), the requir€d basic financial stat€ment presentation
applicable to the Municipality is composed of the following elements: (l) govemment-
wide financial staternents (CWFS), (2) govemmenral and prcprietary firnd finarcial
statements (FFS), (3) notes to basic financial statements, a.nd (4) required supplernentary
information (RSI).
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MuNIctPALtrY oF AlBoNrro
CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTo fuco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 10, 2010

LtI consists oi (l) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a
budgetary comparison schedule - general fund. RSI is unaudited supplementary
information required by GAAP presented along with, but separate from, th;
Municipality's basic fi nancial satements.
MD&A is 

^ 
r'aftatiye report that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements

and provides an analyical overview of the Municipality,s financial activities for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, based on the Municipality's knowledge of the
transactions, events and conditions reflected in the basic financial stateme;ts. The
MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies that control the Municipality,s
opemtions.

In addition to the required financial ref,orting requirements aefered to above, the
accompanying basic financial $atements are accompanied by additional supplementary
information consisting of a budgetary comparison schedule _ debt service irnd and the
notes to the budgetary comparison schedule _ debt service fund, which have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the accompanying basic
financial statements as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

O,n March 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions ofCASB Statement No. 55, Ile
Hietarchy of Generdlly Accepted Accounting ptinciples lor State and Local Goyemmehts
(CASB 55), and CASB Statement No. 56, Codilcation of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Cohtained in the AIC?A Statenent, on Auditing Sta ords (CASB
56).

GASB 55 incorporared the hierarchy ofgenerally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
for state and local govemments into the Govemmental Accountinf Standards 

'Board,s

(GASB) authoritative litemture. The requirements in rhis Statement;odiry all GAAP for
state and local govemments so that they derive from a single source.

GASB 56 incorporated into the covemmental Accounting Standads Board.s (GASB)
authoritative litemture certain accounting and financial refoning guidance prernted in
the American lnstitute of Certified public AccounranB, Sltements on Auditing
Standards. This Statement addressed three issues not included in the authoritativi
lite.ature that establishes. accounli g principles--related party transactions, going
concem considerations, and subsequent events.

The adoption of GASB 55 and CASB 56 did not have retroactive cumulative effects
affecting rhe accompanying financial statements as ofJuly 1,2009, and have not affected
the financial positions and the results of operations .eported as ofand for the fiscal year
ended June 10, 2010. Accordingly, the accompanying GFFS have not reported any
retroactive restateftents or reclassifications offund equities as ofJuly l, 2009.

b) Financial Reporling Enlity

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies and
municipal operational units that 6re under the legal and administrative co"ntrol of the
Mayor, and whose financial resources ane under ihe legal custody and control of the
Municipality's Direclor ofFinance, as prcscribed by Act No. El.
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MuNIcrpALrry os AIBoNlro
CoMMoNWEALTH oFpuERTo RIco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 10,2010

The accompanying basic financial statements include the finahcial statements of Las
Flores Apartments (FmltA and HUD Project No. 63-005-660-43-3512), an operational
unit and a business-type activity (proprietary fund) ofthe Municipality which single audit
report reflect total assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses of$2,530,795,
$1,000,002, $1,530,793, $532,556 and $629,082, respectively, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010. The financial position, rcsults of operations and cash flows of
Las Flores Apartments as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2Ol0 are rcported in
the accompanying statement of net assets - proprietaD/ fund, the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net assets , proprietary fund, and the statement of cash
fl ows - proprietary fund, respectively.

Las Flores Apartments is a housing development project consisting ofone-hundred (100)
dwelling units located in AiboDito. The project is owned by thi Municipality, but its
operations are carried out by a private management agent unrelated to the M;icipality.
The housing development project of Las Flores Apartnents has been designed to assist
variols segments ofthe general public in obtaining adequate and reasonabie priced rental
housing. The project operates under financing through ihe Section g Housing Assistance
Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. ,Ihe 

purpose of
Las Flores Apartments is to provide adequate housing to low_income residints of the
Municipality. Sepal'ate audited financial statements of Las Flores Apaftments can te
obtained directly fiom the management agent,s offices at Villa Nevares professional
Center, Suite 302, San Juan, puerto Rico 00927.

On July l, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 39,
O_"*-r!!"r* Whethet Ceftain Olgatizations are Comporlent llnits - an Amendment of
G^ASB_Stakment No.1r' (GASB No. 39). GASB No. j9 states that certain organizations
for which a primary govemment is not financially accountable nevertheleiss warrant
inclusion as part ofthe financial reporting entity because ofthe nalure and significance of
their relationship with the primary govemment, inctuding their ongoing finaicial support
ofthe primary govemm€nt and its other component units.

According to CASB No.39, a legally separate, lax-exempt organization should be
reponed as a discretely presenled component unit of a reporting entity if all of the
tollowrng cntena arc met:

. The economic resources received or held by the sepamte organization are eDtirely
or almost entirely for the direct benefit ofthe primary govemment, its cornponent
units, or its constituents.

. The primary govemment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the abiliry
to otherwise access, a majority ofthe economic resources received or held by the
separate orgztnization.

. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization tiat the
specific primary govemmen! or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
abiliry lo othenrise access. are significanr to lhar primary govemmenf.

t
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In addition, GASB No. 39 states that other organizations should be evaluated as potential
component units ifthey are closely related to, or fi:rancially integrated with, the primary
govemment. Such types ol entities may be presented as either blended or discretely
presented component units, depending upon how they meet the criteia for each specilied
in GASB No. 14. The Municipality's management has concluded tha! based on the
aforernentioned criteria, there a.e no legally separate entities or organizatioos that should
be reported as component units of the Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010.

a') Goy.rnmerramde Financial Stoteme t
Tte accompanying CWFS are composed of: (t) the sratement of net assets and (2) the
statement ofactivities. These financial statements report information of all govemmental
and business-type activities of the Municipality as a whole. These statements are aimed at
preseoting a broad overview of the Municipality,s finances by reportiog its financial
position and results of operations using methods that are similar to those used by most
private businesses.

The focus of GWFS is on the operational accountability of the Municipality as a single
economic unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use
of available or curently expendable financial resources (referred to as fiscal
accountability). Operational accountability is the Municipality,s responsibility io reF,ort
to.th€ extent to which it has met its operating objectives efiicienrly and effectively, uiing
all resources available for that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality's principJ
op€rating objective, 1,hich is to provide services to its citizens.

The accompanying statement of net assets provides short-term aod long-term information
about the Municipality's financial position by presenting all ofthe Municipality,s assets
6rd liabilities, with the difference between these two iterhs reponed as ,,net assets,,
(equity) and/or net liabilities (accumulated deficit). This statement assists management in
assessing the level of services that can be provided by the Municipality in the future and
its abilit, to meet its obligations as they become due. In addition, this statement reporE
the eKent to which the Municipality has invested in capital assets and discloses legal and
confactual restrictions on resources.

Net assets (liabilities) are classified in the accompanying statement of net assets within
the following three categories:

. Inv8ted iD capital xsseb, net of related debt - This net asset category consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amorti?atioo. reduced by the
outstanding balances of bonds payable, notes payable and other debS thai are
attributed to the acquisition, construcrion or improvement of those assets. For the
purposes of determining the outstanding debt athibuted to capital assets, the total
long{erm debt related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital
assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt proceeds aod any related
unamortized debt issuance costs.
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Restricted net asrets - This net asset category consists ofnet resources restricted by
extemal parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations ofother
govemments, etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that
authorizes the Municipality to assess, levy, charge or olherwise mandate payment of
resources (fiom exteftal resource providers). Enabling legislation establishes
restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable requir€ment that those resources be
used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

On July l, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of Statement No. 46, lfe,
Assets Resnicrcd by Enabling Legislation (CASB No.46). This Statement requires
that limitations on the us€ ofnet assets imposed by enabling legislation be reported as
restricted net assets. This Statement cla.ified that a legally enforceable enabling
legislation restriction is one that a party extemalto the Municipality (such as citizens,
public interest groups, or the judiciary) can compel the Municipality to honor. This
Statement states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation should be
reevaluated if any of the resources mis€d by the enabling legislation are used for a
pwpose not specified by the enabling legislation or if the Municipality has other
cause for consideration. Although the determination thata particular restriction is not
legally enforceable may cause the Municipality to review the enforceability of other
restrictions, it should not necessarily lead the Municipality to the same conclusioo for
all enabling legislation restrictions.

The classification of r€stricted net assets identifies resources that have been received

91 eamed by the Municipality with an explicit understanding b€tween the
Municipality and the resorlrce providers that the resources would be ;sed for specific
purposes. Crants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of
conditions. Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific
purposes.

Intemally imposed designations of resources, including earmarking, are not reponed
as restricted net assets. These designations consist ofmanagement's plans for tire use
of resources, which are subject to change at the discretion of the Municipal
Legislature-

The Municipality has reported the following types of restricted net assets in the
accompanying statement of net assets:

(l) Debt s€rvice Represent net resources available to cover future debt service
payments of bonds payable.

(2) Capital projects - Represent net rcsources available to carry out several capital
project funds and the acquisition ofcapital assets.

(3) Federal .nd state futrded progmtrts - Reprcsent net rcsources available from
certain federal and state grants, which have been set aside to catD/ out several
programs.

t
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. Utrretricted - This category consists of rhe excess of liabilities over retated assers
(accumulated deficit) that are neither extemally nor legally restricted, neither
iflvested in capital assets. Howevet assets reported within unrestrict€d net liabilities
often are desigtated to indicale that management does not consider them to be
available for general opemtions. Assets reported within this category often have
consuaints that are impos€d by management but can be removed oa modified. When
both restricted and unr€stricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality's
policy to generally use restricted resources filst, arld then unrestricted resources as
they are needed.

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of
operations by showing how the Municipality's net assets or liabilities changed durinS the
fiscal year ended June 30,2010, using a net (expense) revenue format. This stateirent
pres€nts the cost of each functior/prog.am as wetl as the extent to which each of the
Municipality's functions, programs or other services either contributes to or draws from
the Municipality's general tevenues (such as property taxes, municipal licens€ taxes,
conshrction excise taxes, etc.).

A funclion/program describes a grolp of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a
major service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/programs repoft;d in 

-the

accompanying basic financial statements are: (l) general govemment, (i) urban and
economic development, (3) public safety, (4) health and sanitation, (5) culture, recreation
and education and (6) public housing and welfare. The govemmental operalions of the
Municipality's departments and operational units are classified within the following
functions/progams in the accompaaying basic financial statements:

Geoerrl govemment:
Municipal legislature
Mayo/s omce
Departrnent offinance
Department of human resources
Department of municipal secretary
Department of internal audit
OfEce of communications
Office of adm inistrative services

Urban asd ecotroaic development:
Depafiment of public works
Depaatment of planning and development

Public slfetJ'r
Departrnent of emergency management _ civil defense
Departmenr of municipal police
Depafirnent of sanitation

J
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He.lth ard satritatiotrl
Departmenl of reclc ling services
Municipalenterprises
Department olhealth

Culture, recreatior atrd educatiool
Department of sports and recreation
Department ofart, culture and tourism

Public housing and welfare:
Department of eitizen affairs

The statement of activities demonstrates the degee to which program revenues offset
direct expenses ofa given functior/program or segments. Dircct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function, segment or operational unit. This
statement reports revenues in three brcad categories: (l) program revenues, (2) general
revenues and (3) special items.

Program r*enues ue generated directly llom a progEm itselfor may come from panies
outside the Municipality's taxpayers or citizens. ln the statement ofactivities, program
revenues reduce the costs (expenses) ofthe functiodprog.am to arive at: (l) the net cost
of the functior/program that must be financed from the Municipality's general revenues
or (2) the net program.evenue that contributes to the Municipality's general rcvenues.
The accompanying statement of activities separately reports the following categories of
progmm revenues:

. Charges for services - These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchange-
like transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwis€
directly affected by the services. These revenues include fees charged for specific
services, r€nt charges For licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among
others,

. Progrem-specific opereting atrd capitsl gmDts rtrd cotrt butions - These
revenues consist offansactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange
t ansactions with other govemments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the
nesources for use ifl a particular program. Operating granls and contributions consist
of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of opemting a specific
progmm or can be used either for opemting or capital purposes ofa sp€cific program.
Capital grants and contributions consist of revenues or resources that are resticted
for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate capital assets &ssociated with
a specific program. Restricted opemting and capital gants and cootributions are
progmm revenues because they are specifically attribulable to a proSram and reduce
the net exp€nse of that prognm to the Municipality. They are reported net of
estimated uncollectible amounts.

General revenres are the default category for .evenues. It includes all revenues and
gains that do not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal

I

r

,

t

r

r
36



-l
-t
{

-!
{

I
J
J
J

J

J

J

'J

a

t

J

,

r

r

MUNICIPALITY oT AIBoNTTo
COMMONWEALTH OT PUIRTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

license taxes and consuuction excise taxes are reported as general revenues. All other
nontax revenues (including unrestricted interest on deposits, grants and contributions not
.estricted for specific progams and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the
definition of program revenues are classified as general revenues. Resources that arc
d€dicated intemally by the Municipality are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. All general revenues are reported net of estimated uncollectible
amounts, which are recorded as reduction ofrevenues rather than as expens€s.

Special itens consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events
within the control of management that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in

Extraordinary ilems consist of revenues arising from significant ransactions or other
events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurence.

The generul gottemner, functiorL/program rcpo.ted in the accompanying statement of
activities includes expenses that ar€, in essence, indirect or costs of othea
functions/prograrns of the Municipality. Even though some of these costs have been
charged to certain funds in the FFS as indirect cost allocations permitted under some
federal programs, the Municipality has reported these indirect costs as direct expenses of
the Seneral govemment function. Accordingly, the Municipality generally does not
allocate geneml govemment (indirect) costs to other functions.

The effects of all inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other
financing sources/uses among govemmental firnds) have been removed liom tIe
accompanying statements of net assets and activities.

The Municipality classifies the most significant portion of its activities as govemmental
activities in the accompanying GWFS. These arE activities generally financed through
taxes, intergovemmental rcvenues and other non-exchange rcvenues that can be used to
support the Municipality's prog"ams or services. These govemmental activities are aiso
genemlly reported in the FFS. On the other hand, the opemtions of Las Flores
Apartments are reported as business-type activities in the accompanying GWFS. These
activities are primarily financed from gftnts and contributions and charges for services_
These business-type activities arc also reported in the FFS.

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality
would be holding oimanaging net assets for specific individuals or other exremal parties
in accordance with trust agreements or other custodial arrangements.

The Municipality has operations and activities that are finaoced and operated ifl a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the costs of providing goods or services to
the general public (expenses, including depreciarion) is financed primarily through user
charges; and where the goveming body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate lor capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, o. other purposes.
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dl Fu,td Finarrcial StatenE a

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting ofa self-balancing set ofaccounts used
to record assets, liabilities and residual equities, deficits or balances]and changes therein,
which are segregated for the purpose ofcarrying on specific activities or attaining cenain
objectives in accordance with CAAp and/or special regulations, r€strictlons or
limitarions.

The accompanying FFS are composed of: (l) the balance sheel govemmental funds, (2)

lhe ,stat_:r.nelt 
of revenues, expendirures and changes in fund ba-lances _ govemmental

lunds, (l) the statement of net assets - proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues,
expens€s and changes in fund net assets _ proprietary fund. and (5) the statement ofcash
flows - proprietary fund.

These.financial statements report the financial position and resulrs operations of the
Municipality's govemmentrl and proprietary fundi and fund types by presenting sources,
uses and balances ofcurrent and noncurrent financial resourcis. Somi of theJfinancial
statements have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (l) the Municipality,s
.uj.i-goy"i.-".rt"-] fund and fund rypes,.as aenned Ueto*, 121 ttre i."ol 

"""oonirtirityand (3) rhe individual parts of the Municipality,s gor"-."rt. fi."at a""ountaUility
.epresents the Municipality,s responsibility to jusriryihat irs actions in the currenl fiscal
year have complied with public decisions coniemir4 rhe raising and spending of public
noneys in the shon tenn (genemlly one fiscal year).

The accompanying FFS_ segregate govemmental funds, proprietrry funds and fund types
according to.their intended purpose and are used in demonsirating compliance with legal,
lrnancral and contractual provisions. The minimuln number of govemmental funds and
fund types is maintained consistent with legal and self_imposed ianagerial requirements
established by the Municipality. On July t, 2009, ihe Munici;lirv adooted the
provisions ofcASB Staternent No. 54, Fund Batance Reporting and boui-r"irolfuna
Type Defnitions (CASB 54), which modified the interpretatiois of cerrain ierms within
ihe definition ofthe special revenue funds and the tyies of activilies rhe Municipality
may choose to report in those funds. GASB 54 also clarified the capital projecs tunj qpe
definition for better alignment with rhe needs ofpr.p".eo urd ur"L. Defiiitions oiotrrer
govemmental fund types also were also modified for clarity and consistency.

Pursuant to the^provisions set forth by CASB 54, the Municipaliry repo.ted the following
govemmental firnds in the accompanying GFFS:

. General luad - The geneml fund is the Municipality,s main op€rating tund and a
major govemmental fund, as defined below, used to account for 

-all 
financial

resources and govemmental activities, except for financial resources required to be
accounted for in anoder fund. It is presumed that the Municipality's govemmental
a(ivities have been reported in rhe general fund except for transacti;ns ior which one
of thr following compelling reasons has required thi use of another fund: (1) legal
requi.ements, (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound finaacial
administration requiring the use ofa golemmental fund other than the general fund.
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. Debt service fund - The debt service firnd is a major govemmental firnd, as defined
below, used by the Municipality to account for the accumulation ofresources for, and
the payment of, principal and interEst for: (l) bonds payable for which debt service
payments are legally mandated to be accounied lor in a debt service fund and/or (2)
bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which rhe Municipality is being
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments
m.turing in future years- During the fiscal year ended June 30,2010, the financial
activity accounted fo. in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds
payable.

The outstanding balance of geneml long-term obligations for which debt service
payments do not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as notes
payable and obligations under capital leases) a.e only accounted for in the
accompanying statemen! of net assets. The debt service payments of such debts, as
applicable, are generally accounted for as debt service - principal and debt service _
interest expenditu.es in the general fund.

. Capitol projecrs fund - Capital projects fund is a govemmental fund, as defined
below, used to account for the financial resources used for the acquisition,
consbuction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets. Significant
capital outlays financed from proceeds ofgeneral obligation, public improv;ment or
special obligation bonds accounted for also in the capital Foj;ts funds.'

The use of rhe capital projects funds has been res€rved only for major capital
acquisitions, consfirction or improvement activities that would distort financial
resources rend data if not reponed separately ftom the olher Municipality's
operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets {iuch as
fumiture, oflice equipment, vehicles and other rbinor capital assets or improvements)
have been reported in the govemmental fund from which financial resources were
used for the payment-

. Legislative joint rcsolulions lund - The legislati! e joint resolutions fund is a major
govemmental fund, as defined below, us€d by the Municipality to account for
revenues derived from state legislative assiglments and contributions that are legally
restricted for a wide range of community development activities directed to;ard
revital,zing neighborhoods, economic developmen! and providing improved
community facilities and services.

. Special commuaities l,Ust fund - The special communities trust fund is a major
govemmental fund, created and used to account for the Commonwealth of pueno
Rico Special Communities Program's funds held in trust.

. S-peciat retterrue lurrdr - The special revenLre fitnds are rIon-major govemmental
funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to accouni for reve;ues derived
ftom gmnts, contributions or other revenue sources that are either self-restricted by
the Municipality or legally restricted by outside panies for use in specific purposes
(except for revenues that arc earmarked for expenditurcs in major capital projects
which atE accounted for in the capital project funds). The uses aad iimitailons of
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e^ach-special,revenue fund are specified bJ, municipal ordinances or federal and stares_raLultss. rlo$ever. resources restricted to expendirure for Durposes normallv

l':lt:9 l:l rhe general fund.arc reponed in ,rr" r-.rr"t"lp"iiryl. e;#i"i;iprovrdeo ttrat a[ appticable leg.l requiremenE are appropriately satisiea. tn rtriicase. a spectat revenue tilnd to account for cuch kind ofrransactions will be used onlyiflegally mandated.

. 
:::li::y!::o -Proprierary 

tund is an enterprise tund us€d to report the financiat

i?lll",l^',:::$.f ""f:y-1i1d-"_11n"*,ir1".iil,",ef "#il?Friffi";H1?-!."i""t I". 63-005 .. i"l *i"h ;lffiil"r
::::9.,T::" j:.:_::orer. panialy rh,",BL,,.r .h*c.; f* .";il i.;':";mostly through federal grants, the cost of low-income horisiing seruices to the generalpublic.

,-

r

I.^rj,:,:r"^"lli ltoles 
Apanmenrs have been reporred as a proprierar, tund as\rAlrr permrE tne use ot enterpris€ funds to repon any activity foi which a fee ischarged ro e-xtemal users of goois or services, 

"'g"iar".i "i*i:ir,"r',1.';;;."r,intends to fully recove. the cosl of the goods 
-or *rvi"* p..rijj. ?irr.'i, i,common to.use proprietary fund reporting to accorrnt for,"*i""a *t"r" tf,"govemment intends to recover oolv, portion-of it, 

"ort 
th.rgh i;;;;;.;;';;.(GASB No. 34, pa.agmph 67).

As required by GASB No. 14. the proprietary fund of the Municipality applies allpronouncements issued by rhe Finan;ial Accounting Standards Boa; {naSeifiO itspredecessor bodies, such as rhe Accounring p;*tpi.;;;;largl1;' ,n"Committee on Accounting procedure, issued on o, Lfo." Nor"rnLiiO, 
'ISSS,

provided those pronouncements do not conflicr *itr, o. 
"*ouai"iii" .rl"i#. "r ,"Govemmental-Accounting Standards Board. ff"*i*., ii" frirri",p.l;;;:,;,"0

to continue following more recent FASB guida*., p."ria"a it ,"i.rf,"l,""ril"L''r".
contradicts GASB pronouncements.

,i:"P:lr^:lii: IT :onnajor sovemmentar funds. proprierary funds and tund rypes,

Jl:L,::i'j_Tl,l i:!T:ent 
the [4unicipatity.s most imponant runos. eccoraingry] irewunrcrpatrry rs requrred lo segregate govemmental funds. proprietaoi frrnd. ai,i flrnatypes between major and non_major careSories \rithin ,f,L dfS. 'U"il. irai"ij*fgovemmental and proprietary f,ndia"a n ri typ", 

"r"-,.pon.; 
iJil l;;;il *il"l,"columns in the FFS, while data liom all non_maJor govemmental and proprietarv fundsare aggregnted into a single column. regardless oin ni type.

By definition, the Municipaliry,s general fund is always considered a major govemmental

lr,l_1,Pr, fTrr."l reponing purpo,ses. In addition. 
"ny 

o,r,". gou";rinoi ;ini'i.ctasstleo as a maJor govemmental fund in the FFS if its totai asr.ta, li"biliti"r, a"r"rr".or expenditures of tiat individual govemmental firnd are at l; l0 p;;;;;;;;"
corresponding 

-element 
total (assets, liabilities, revenues ". "_*"aii*"ri 

'f., 
"ugovemme[tal funds. In addition, the same element t"t ,..r" ,t. iO [."1rrt "ii".irnl::!ry "l l.^,.5 percent of rhe conesponding etemenr ,","f f*"ri J;;..r';i;"denterpnse (proprielary) funds combined. For the purposes of applying thl"i"*r"r,t.r"amajor tund criteria, no eliminations of inrer_funj Ur"r""J iir.'t*, ."i". "'i"rr

I
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revenues for these purposes means all relenrres, including operating and non_operatingrevenues (n€t of allowances for uncollectible u""orn,ri 
"'*""fi-?oi 

i f,J.' i,nun"ingsources. rorat expenditures\exoen\es for rhese prry.*;;;; ;t;:;;;;air...,....p.n..r,inctuding operaring and non-oierating expendiiu,..,"*p"nr.r. .*""fi ri "ii., nr-.i"g

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality,s mrjor goyemmeotal firndsreported in rhe accompanyins FFS are: ( I) rhe g.n"*r frna, 121 t" aii, ."*i""?"ra, Ol
11"_:ltfl-ry_l:,"tu1d..(4).rhe tesistarive ji'i,, *.or*io,.'iu,i-u"o"iil'ii. **",communtlres lrusl Iilnd. In addition. Las Flores Apartments h". t".n ."pon.a- l.p"."t"tyfrom goremmental tunds as rhe only propri.",t fr;;;i;;N;;ilrir1i-"'" *,

The accompanying FFS are accomDsnied by other slatements and schedules required bycAAp: ( I ) rhe reconcitiation of the batance sh*, _ c;;;;;;;;; i;;d.;" ;il;".*,of net assets, and (2) the reconciliation of rhe stateirent of *r""r".l.p""iiir.* -achanges in fund balances. govemfienral funds ,. irr. ,"i"r""i.ir.i*li#"" '"'

e) Meashrement Focus and BLris ofAccounting

,"*:."";*"TLH:x:
focu-s and rhe accruat basis ofaccorniing. srr;it to tr," uJjitl"rri-il, "rii.Lrr.*detailed below. revenues (including interesr on deposits and r"ntt 

"." 
g.n"oitr'.""o,a.a

when eamed and expenses are qenirallr
o[the timing ofrelated cash flows. 7 recorded when a liability is incurred' regardless

All,revenues, expenses. gains. losses. assets and liabilities resulring from exchange andexchange-lile transactions are generally recorded when *" *"iirg" 
"1.. ,_fr"ir. f,e\change rransacrions. each pafty to rt._r."n.r"rion ."..ii", _o gi;.r; J;rh )equal values. An excha-nge_like rransaction is one in which rhe; is a; i;;;t;tiableexchange and the values exchanqed, rhough related. ,"y-"", t"_'qri"".q*,.Nevenheless. rhe e\chanqe characreiisrics of ih. 

"*.trng._i .;;;;;d";::*rg
enough to justiry teating it as an exchange for accountin! p".p.*,'G_",rpli'i*f ra.certain clarges for services and misceflaneous revenues, which are recorded as revenueswhen collected because they are generally not measurable until actually;;;;''
All revenues, expenses, gains, rosses and assets resulting from non-exchange u-ansactionsare recorded using lhe criteria set forth by Casa s,i,.rn"ni o. ]l,';";;:;,;; *o
:::::::!t-,r:*:,.F I"r Non-etchage riatsactions (cAsB N;. ;3i ;;sr;"i,". ,,estao'shed-accountlng and repo(ing standards for non<xchance t*na"" r;"." l. "^lcash aad fi nanciat oi 

"apit"t 
r.-,r-."er"1 io.-;;;.;;: ;#',1il.?:#"""#;:l;ff

donalions). In a nonrxchange transacrion. the Municipality glr". fT. .*.i"*i""f*
:llp:l!,.*"ly J:cei:ins.(91 giving.l equai uuru" in ."iu-.' i;;;-i;#;;,?; _
il:X,flff Tffi!'J ,,i: :i:ir:ti,iil"T,::i'l-es 

and gives up essen'i;ii;;;;;i 
";i,"'.

,h" f",ro;;; ;;;;*,;. i; ;:#il;LJi3* ffli:;;:*:liltil.TJi:rr"jlffi ,H
revenues. (b) imposed non-exchance.."enuei. {ct gor._..* r"na-ui.i';;r;;;;g.ransactions. and {d) roluntary non;xchange oansactions.

a

,
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Notes to Financial Statements
June i0,2010

Proprierary firnds distinguish operaling revenue and expenses from non-operatinq items.

""j3,1,:iC-]-::"jr: iio erpenses genem ).resutr from providing senices and piducing
ano oellveflng goods in conneclion wirh a proprietar) fund.s principal ongoingopemtions. Revenue and expenses not meeting rhis deirnition 

";.';";;;; ;. 
".r_opemting revenue and expedses. The rnajor oferaring ."r.nr. oi ,rr"'urni"ir"li,yt

enterprise. fund.is from renr charges collected priniipally f., " S."iion- [ u"*Lonstructton and Substantial Rehabilitation program housing assistance grant aqreemenlwith U.S. Department ofHousing aDd Urban Deielopmenr.

ln the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments the
{uricipality. 

phces on.exchange lransactions, receivables and ,"r"i".r- r*'."Lra"a
wnen tne unoertyrng exchange has occurred.

L.*,:::,:l-':r::q,non;9^lhrnrt revenue transacions (such as property taxes andmuntcrpat tlcense taxes). which resuh liom assessrnents made by rhe Municipality on

::f^":1T.1,:1,.1:,ies. inctuding individuats. orher than assessmenrs o;;;;i-g.
lTllillil:-Tj.l-ls are genera y recorded in the period when an enforceable tegitclatm nas arrsen. rroperty taxes and municipal license are genemlly recorded as revenues(net ofamounts considered not collectible.l in tfie fiscal yea_r wheniesor.* 

"a 
*""i*a

to be used or fie fir$ fiscalyear that rhe uie ofrh" ...oui".s is p..minJ. 
: -''-,

Govemment-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as gmnts and contributions)
Miff "1", ".e.y3*r."enrar 

one level (such as rte f"a.ral o. rr-"t go"..,*"ii r.ria*
:..-:T:::. ihe Munrcipatity and the provider govemftent requirei rhe Municipaliry ro
1.". To.: Tr:uf.r lor.a specific purpose or purposes esrablished in fie provider,s
enaDlng tegtstatlon. In these type oftraDsactions, receivables and revenues aregenerally
recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by rhe p_"ia., f,ur. U.* ",iai ro.
:T,T3?1y-:t.?1"". ,he Municipatity must expend resources on the specific purpose orproJecf Oetore the provider reimburses any amounts. Revenue is, therefore, Benerallyrecognized as qualifuing reimbursable expenditures a.e incurred.

Voluntary_ non-ex(hange 
-transactions 

(such as donations and certain gmnts and

:1ll:,:l:T]^::i!.1.:T-lesistarive or connacruat asreements. otr,". d,"n ?,"i_g..,w,rrngry entereo lnlo by,rwo or morE parties. In rhese types ofkansaclions, receivaLres
ano revenues are geneally accounred for in the same manner as govemmenl-mandated
non-exchange tmnsactions discussed above. Events thar are neithlr 

"_"h;;;; ;;;;"r_exchange transactions are recorded when ir is proluot" tt"t a to.i tr^ J.ei i 
"r*a'""athe amount ofloss is reasonably estimable.

Receipts of any type of revenue sources corected in advance for use in the folrowrng
fiscal year are recorded as uneamed revenues.

According to GASB No. 14. all general capital assets and the un_marured lone_lermlrao trres are rccorded only in the accompanling sratement of net asses and Ihestalement of net assets _ proprietary fund. Thi nreasurcrnert fo"r" u,J- i*-ir'or
1"^Tr:l'j8_:.: ll]T-":"ompanyin€ CWFS and rhe proprietary fund differ significanrtyrrom rne measurement locus ard basis of accounting used in the preparattn of theaccompanying govemmental fund financial statemenl-s. Therefore, if,.'*."rp*Virg

I
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIB0NITo
COMUONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 20t 0

govemmental firnd financial statements include reconciliations, as detailed in theaccompanying table of conrenrs. to bener idenriry th" ,;il;;;.hip U**#'rii oresand the govemrhenEl fund financial statements.

*-+F+ql-&gC--E!!Erisl!!!!ca"ort - Ihe accompanying govemmenrat fundlrnancral statemenls ztre reDoned usins the curent financial resourcls "m.*r."r.i, f**(flow of currenr financial resources] ana 
-rm moaifieJ aci;;i #;;;;r,,"r.Accordingl), rhe accompanying sraremenr of re*""r.r. .;p.;;l;;i"iu"r'"..",n rurobatances (deficirs) - govemminut f*d..,"p;;;;;;;:; 1"',i"'#i,'iiiti**.r

resources available in rhe near futurc as a re.utt oft.uni"tion, 
"ia "-""ri. "i ri" n*"fyear reponed. Therefore, revenues are generaliy recognized as soon as they are bothmeasumble and available. Revenues ari considered ;" u. ;;"il;;il; ;; "*collectible within the currenl fiscal year or soon eflough thereafter to pa) Iiabilities ofthecurrent fiscat )ear. For rhis oumoq. rhe Mr"hip"l,Tt;;;;il;;-#;'#;;:: . 

"avaitabte if colecred genenli wirhin o0 day, uR* Jr;"- j;: i;l;: .;;;'i;I;*r,rares for uhich rhe avaitabiliw oeriort is 66 drr;. i;,";;;,;;;"* 
",,l,rl",llg *"avaitabitiry. crirerion or cotrecied ;n aaran"e # .Joiafi ;; .,l.r]# i,llii,i,; 

"rounavailable) revenues at June 30, 2010.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include pmperty taxes,municipal license taxes, constuction excrse taxes, intergovemmertal gallts andcontributions, interest on derlosits and charges f.. *_i;;.- il;;';;"ir?T.r.r""
il'"li',,"1',li",lli#nT*l;o"",:" 'u-uit"riti'v "'it';u i' 

"iri '""JJ,,pli'v;'e

and unavailable) revenues. 
except for amounts recorded as deferred (eamed

ln a manner similar ro the GWFS, but subject to and lirnited by the availability c.iteriadrscussed previousty, au revenr.res. exnenssl gai"., l"rr";;;;;;;;;.iirii"lr*l,inr*
from exchange and exchange_like rransactio-ns "* Ar"'g"r..ffy .""".a"a "r,liil m
:L".lll-r: rU"r ptace. Accordingty, certain charges f.,';iiJ, ;;';;;'#.r,
ffl"H':T,ff::l*flrT*H:X*' when corieci-ed b""u*; th; ; ;;;ii; "'
All revenues,.expenses. gains. Iosses and assels resuhing liom non_exchange transaclonsare rccorded in a simitar manner to the cwFS, u.i"g th; p;.r;i;;;";:Ij'ffi;: .",fonh by.GASB No. J3 for non_exchange transacrions, bul subjecr to and limired bv theavailabiliry criteria discussed abole. Ac"cordingly. propeny tax and municipal license tarreceivabtes are arso seneralv recorded i" ,r,. d.lui l"i, "i* "r'*i","."ui1' ,lili'llr,,has arisen whire property ta\ and munrcrpai rrcense t&\ revenues (net of amountsconsidered nor co[ecribte) are also penemly re".,a"a in ir.,. ir*il"ur';;',#;.*".are required to be used or the first liscal r

Receirables and rerenu., Iiorn f.d..al ,nitl.-tiat 
the use of the 

. 

resources is permitted.

entirrernents are arso ge,,-iil ;ffi ;;H"fi ?r"J,ff f fi :f.*:Tl.;,:il:#li iil:provider ha!e been mer {Benerall}. as quati$ing rei-mbr-rrsaur"'*p.rJi**,?.'ir.,i".a
tor expenditure-driven grants).

Interesl on deposits is recorded when eamed only if collected within gO days aner thellscalyear-end since these revenues \rould be considered both measurabf. 
"";'*"ifrili.
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MUNIcIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,20 t 0

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Interpretation No. 6, Re cognilion dnd Measurenen,of Ce ain Liabilities and Etpenditures in coyernmen;hl fira finii-iii"n"ns(CASBI No. 6). in rhe abse;ce of an explicit requirement 1i."., tf," uir"r,." .f 
",applicable modification, discussed betowl the lf*i.ip"firy 

-e;L 
y-'"i.*". 

"9:.]-.il..Yl. !"d ]hlility and an expendirure lincluaing silaries, lrofessionat servrces,

lll!]1..'; ltll'1|"1.1",J 
in the period in \ahich rhe solemment incuis rhe tiabitiry, to theexrenl.mat lhese itab,tities are normally expected to be liquidaled with cunent avallablernarctat resources. CASBI No. 6 modified the reiognition criteria for certain

expenditures and lhbilities reporred under the modified accrial basis oiu"*r*irg pAo.to GASB No. 34, and clarified a number of siruations in which the Mr""ir"f ir"'if,*fadistinguish between govemmenrat fund tiabitiries -a e.""."i 
-b;s_i;-# 

ii,"Uitiri",Therefore, the. accompanying balance sheet _ governmeiiai fr"a, i"*r"ffr-"0*r"assets that will be converted inro cash ro satisg) cunent fi"Uifi,t",. i"i*ui,rrn )*""(except for accounts receivables and inter_tund 
"d"*."J;r; ,h.;;;r""" *i", *iii^, *converted into cash to satisry current liabilities are generally 

"", 
r""*ii"i i". i, ,r,"accompanling balance sheer - govemmental fundsl er ihe *r.-ii.", i"rn_,.rmliabilities (generalty. rhose unmatired that will nol 

"qri.. ,i. "* "i "r""r,'iir,r*i"ircsources to pay them) are not accounted for in the accompanying tat"nc" si"et _govemmental funds.

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with CASBI No. 6include:

. Principal.and interest on bonds payab,e are recorded when rhey mature {when
l-ull"ll ".dl"I except for principat and inrerest due on Juty t. 24t0, which hareDeen reco.deo as govemmental fund liabilities at June j0,2010, which is the datewhen resources arc available in the debt servic" n ra 1g"*rafy l,ir" i'Oj. 

'- "'-

. Nores payable, obligarions under capital leases, compensated absences, and amounts
su-ojec-r roaccrued ctatrhs andjudgments under Iitigation are recorded only when theymature (when payment is due).

. Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable or not normally exDected to beliquidated with current available and expendlbl. n"*"i"r *r.r..L *i *"tai r,the accompanying statement of net assets. Such liabilities are *"..aJ'i" A"govemmental funds when they marure.

. Ex€.cutory puachase orders and coni?cts are recorded as a reservation of fundbalance in the govemmental firnds FFS.

Tle measurement focus ofthe govemmentar f,nds financiar statements is on decreases ofDer onanctat resources (expenditures) rather thar expenses. Mosl expendirures uremelsumble and are recorded when the related gor....aul rr"J-l"urii'rv ir'jr"r".a
l]lTll.l ., cons, such-as depreciarion a;d amortization,." *"Jrd"j-ir"o"accompanyrng statement of acli\ities and lhe statement of revenues, a*p"nr", 

",achanges in firnd net assets, but a.e not recorded i" th" ".".r;;;;;;;;;#;ii*financial statements,

,
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MUNICIPALITY oT AIBoNITo
CoMMoNTEALTH oT PUERTo [Tco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2010

f) Stewardship, Complialce and Accou ability

Budsetrrv Cortrol

According to 
_Law 

No. Bl, the Mayor and its Admininrative Cabinet prepare annual
Duogers each trscatyear fbr the Municipaliry.s geneml fund and debt service fund. Suchregary aoopted budgers are based on expected expeDditures by program and estimated
resources by source. The annual budgers are aeu.tp.a ,sing it;e;, 

"f 
*.f"..*"._oa*o program bucrgetrng and zero-based budgeting, and incrude estimares of revcnuesand other resources for the ensuinp fiscal year-u"a#r"*, 

"rJi"gri"iii". "_ir,irg ",r,"rime the budgets are prepared.

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing on July l, an annual budgetaryresolution projecl (rhe projecr) to rhi Commissioner".r vi"i",p"ie-n:"ir?Tr ,rr"Commonwealrh lrhe Commissione4 and rhe Vunicipat L.g;ri"..i-"" i"i., if,L ,r,"rmmeotately precedrng May l0 and May 15. respectively. The Commissionerprcliminarily verifies rhar rhe proieo complies wirir 
"if 

,[" 
"ppl["if" 

'i"*, 
_aregularions and may proride 

"oar.rtr rno suggeslrons to the Mayor on or before theimmediately preceding June 13.

Tie Municipal Legislature has l0 business days, up !o rhe immedialely precedinq JuneIJ. to di.cuss 
lnd.approve rhe project wirh i,.aii*iio"r.- ri,. lrar"i,"ri"ii._iirr,r*

may amend the budgels submined by the Mayo. brr mry ,ot incr.".e u;?;;o-iar,"
cause a 

_deficit.without imposing tares or idintiSing oiher sources o#r;;;;;;"r".
such deficir. After the Municioat r.,i"tature mldftes ana pi.iirnJiy-"pp.i* ,rr.Project. the modified project is sent iacx lo rhe Mayor for his approval or reiection
:i1!'n 9 

days. Tle. Mayor may decrease or eliminate any fin. i ", T,i, *"v ,.r'i",".""*or tnsen any new ttn€ rrem in lhe bodgets. The Mayor ftay also veto the budges in rheir
::,,]:y.gd^ T,rrn.i, ro.rhe Municipat Legisrarun with iis oUJ.",io".. 

-1i",-t,i 
r,.lry",rejecb lhe ltotect. lhe Municioal Leristature will have up to eight (E) day.,o ra_, o.rejecr rhe recommendations oi objecions of rhe Nlayor. Th" il;;;i;; ;".*,again to the Mayor. which rhen wo-utd hare I duy, lo ;is, 

";;p-p';;; il 
' *'' '

If the.bldgets ar^e not adopted prio. to Ihe end of the deadrines referred to above, theannual budgets for the pr€cediog fiscal year. as approved by lhe Legislarure anJ the
llralo,r. ar€ auromarica y renewed for it. en.uiri n*a j,.".- *,i'1i" v,ili";p"rLegislature and rhe Mayor aDorove n^er*. budge-rs. ff,i.' ..grl;ii"" 

"p"..;;",h.
Municipaliry ro continue doing paymenrc for irs op€mtions ana ori". pr.pol", uriit ,f,"new budgets are approved.

I-:.11-11 !ldg",: ,"y be updated for any esrimate revisions as welt as fiscat year-end
encunDrances. and ma) include any additional information requesred by tf,e iviuni"ioufLegislarure. The Mayor may requesr subsequenr amendments i" il"lp'p-r"jiri_.,.,which arc subjeo ro $eapproralofthe Municip"t L;gi;;;;. '- -'- qP'.v'!v uuu5E

The Municipality\ Department of Finance and Budget has lhe responsibility to ensurethat budgetary spending control is maintained. f,i,.auy_t _auy-ian"gi;il;;;t
purposes, expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted a'mounS J'ttre

r
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
coMMoNwEALTH oF PU[RTo RICo

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,20t0

expenditure-rlpe level ofeach cost cen
Mayor may ransfer unencumbered arter 

(activity within a progam within a 6rnd) The
urrl"iprr L"gJ.i"r*" ,";;;;:;;" #i'"l'i"i"ns 

within programs \'I/ithin funds. The
rr," r"g"r r."i "iilieffi ffi;,1;:::if.T,'.,r"iffl,:flil:,*ffi11 flJfi,i:::,,,exceed appropriation) is at the funciior/pro8ra. r.*r ie;";;i g;";;"ii ill* *oeconomic developnent. pubtic saferv. r,"uitt _a ._ii"tion. irr**1.."".]Ji[" 

"raeducation, and public housing and weliare.l r.r rrhin a fund.

Under the laws and regulations of Ihe Commonwealth. the appropriations made for anyrrscat year shall nor exceed rhe rorat rc\enue. i*rrai"g 
"ruii"'bl.-,r;iri..rii,i"*o ,".said fiscal year unless Ihe imposition oprovided. I raxes sumcienl to corer said appropriations is

Budqetan Accoutrtitrs

The Municipaliry s annual budgets are prepared using the budgelary (slatutor')basis ofaccounttng, q,hich is nor in accordance wilh CAAp -

According.to the budgetary basis ofaccounting, Evenue is genemr) recorded when cash

"'-ff :"r":'r":::'T.:s,:iXJ:lf;::- u"''-*i'e""v"#- 
""i iJ H;il ;ffi.'""

The Municipality uses encumbmnce acc
o.d.n. cont u"rs 

"nd- 
o;;;;;;*;.,;.Tl'll,r.ff"j:;'.:5,1:: Ti[',:l jJ,.",ffi

the^approprhtion prior ro acruat expenditure. l; d" g;;;;;-tu;;;;;;";.r""accountrng is a significant aspect of bud
g"n.."r ryi."o.a"a"*iiffi [];l# 

"ll*,:rfl""iJ[li Jr"."?'iffJlr:]5:rfffi i:aPpmp.atrons and encu'nbrances are esr,blishea . f"p* 
""" 

i*Jy.* 
"i", ,il" l io 

"fthe fiscal year. Amounts reouir€d n
M", iciparii,';d cen#ffi . i;,;;;;;.. l"TjJL:,;11I""J".,,,11..ffi :Jfi []r,::olherw,se-F,rocessed for^paymenr. Unencumbered-appiopr'iatil;;,#;ff;;;"",
rapse at rrscatlearrnd Orher appropriations.-m.i"fl 

"!p;,.i-p_i.* ,pp;;i#;: ,"conrrnulng accounB for which the Munici
batance fr:om rhe priof.;;;;;;;;;r", LeSrsrarure has aurhorized rhal an unsoenr

ard and made available for cunent spending.

Ti-e.ac.compan) ing budgetary comparison schedure - generar fund provides informanonabout lhe general fund s oriEina, budeel. rts amendments. and lhe acrual resuhs ofoperations ofsuch maior povemmenrat i,nd.unae. trr. uuag.t ; bari, J"l**ii,i_'r".rhe fiscal )ear ended June Jo. 20to. Funher detaits of i," ilr"",e.;t;:.;ill.Er",lconrol ar fie teSat tevel may be obtained fiom rhe Budgetary Liq;ilJ;;.i.d ,l:;;"lrscal year ended June j0, 2010, which is r
trnance. Lopies ofrhar ,.pon ,n"y t o6s"1le-TId .bl 

the Munhipality's Deparnnent of
or t-rnance rneo D) wnttng to the Munic;pality.s Director

Because accounting principles applied for rhe purposes of the developing dara on aoudgetary basis differ sigrificantlv from rl
nnui," iu r' .t,.,.ni, 

- 

ln r""r"il,i ffi ,tTi 
;:l .,i9."."T11,,j; 

:fffl T[3""L::

r
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 10, 2010

between the general and debt service ftrnds,. budgetary bases and GA,{p actual arnountsare presenred at rhe bonom ofthe respecrive buac!,^"/ 
".r;"a]"-r Lil"i...1",

g) Anrctlicted and Reslficted Deposig

ff#r[;rfll?,:l;jiffi"",Tt*"0.r: (rr cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in
pu.no nl"o rrislar'uie-n,1. ' 

*'^- deposils in lhe Govemmenl Development Bank for

illd"::';T,#i"'""#J::"111"rT'i|;'* commonueahh' pubric funds deposired bv rhe
i,""*..t. #,r," i"j.,,i!ftff 

hJ.fi": li:,^::11ffi1#,1fiJii"T:::[ 
r;ffilia

rnsurance corporation {FDIC). Acenrs designa,.a lv ri," c#."i**tttr."s"il,cretary orthe Treasury. bur nor in rhe Municiiariry.s nam" r,"ra"ii *"rjii", pi"i"J ir1lir,._,.

:i;:J:i'?,1Jff[J,*"r11oid;1,1"' rund consists or cash rerared .o propeftv tax
M,nicipatiry's ;il ;";;.. ;;;:;;i:' .which is restricted ror the pal, neni or rhe

p,o;"..i r,,,i. u,oun;,; ; ; ,U#i 
"tJjru ,:i.,i # ,T'#"1i..::":l,T;:llnlwnrch are re$ricled for the acquisirion. consrruction or improvemlnr oi;;;;;l;",.

Restricted cash in cornmercial banks, amounting to $45,211 in capital proiects firndrepresents mainly the balance of inter
nnan"e rh. op..arion. oi;;"j,"'r.'il;ili,,1#l;Tjff;-31flj **uns ."-.t i"t.d to

Restricted cash in commercial bank!

a:Ti,e . i lir-8;''#;;#'fi. t,*:. 
o:",T,1,.:fl;:",il,Tffiy#il

accounts restricted to finance rhe projecl opemtions Las Flores Apfiments is required toset amounts tor the replacement oforo
bv the u.S. Depanme-rii;i;ilr;; l"rryry "'d other project expendirures. as approved

.u.r' u"ru,.". o'ir,u, Ii;.'i;'##iu "o* T;;';:ff :I ff:J.rIrrirr.rfi ;:**,
h) Unrustricted and nesticted Accounts Receiyable

Alccounts receivabre consist ofarr revenues 
^eam€d 

but nor coflected at June 30, 2010.lnese accounls receivables are stated r*,."r, "* a.,"..r,.J u*.a,,i,;f p;;g;.;**,fi:lT,j::,:""i:*:.T:H,;
economrc conditions and rhe p€riodic agrng ol accounts receivable

Activities among govemmental funds
.urangements outstanding 

"r 
trr. .na or 

tll ire-,represenlative of. lendinS,torrowing

to/from other rrnar.. t;..] rr," "u...ri;j-it 
n:t3' ]ear are referred lo as either "due

other funds" {i.e., ,1" """.r-", *aii'"lon 
ol rnter_fund loans) or _advances io/iiom

o,rrstanding barances berw;ril#;,[dfi,::t|!,,:tr:I ::#*tr3.. Ar o6er

I

,

r
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2010

i) Cdpital Assets

Calital assets used..in govemmental and business_type activities include land and landrmprovements! buildings, structues.and. buildini i.pror..""of-.u"'iinlry *aequipmenr rinctuding equipment hetd *a* 
""pti"r 

-i.ir".1, ";;1";';"#,?**r"r,
licensed !ehicles, construction in nrqgre55, and infrastrucrure. The,. assels arecapitalized and repo(ed in the accomn,
,"i.*.", _ p,.p,i",u.y ;;il:' i#;#rJ:ri:11-,T;l:::::i,ff ffi ,lrJT::#:T,iinclude roads, bridges, streets and sidewaik, dral*g" .;;".. ;,#;J:,;l,Jl:"..
For financiar reporting purposes, rhe Municiparity defines capitar assets as ass€ts wirh anrnd,vrdual cost basis of $25 o. ,o." 

"t th; dare of J"q;il;; -;";;;;. 
".improvement. and with useful lives extending beyond one year. AII assets !rilhindividuat cosrs under 925 or with uretr.rt tirei ;;,.;;;s,;; ,# ,1l.jL.*.0directly to expense in the go!emmenl-wtoe shtement ot.acrivities and the statement ofrevenues, expenses and changes in flnd net assets. In the govemmentaf n rar, 

"ii ""pit^lassels ar_e-recorded as capiral outlays {expendil"*,f. *rrlr.7i "r.* Jth i"iir,ir'"i""".under $25 are recorded as exoenditures i, ,t. *""rp.rairg ir.;jo.*ri'li'",,*Owith the asset.

In the statement ofnet assets and the statement ofnet assets proprietary fund, all capitalassets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost lf 
"",r"i _rr,** rl,"""ilu",except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their esrim;; f"l,,"fr" 

", 
tf,"date of donation. Estimated hisrorical costs Uas"a on aen"tea cr..i;;;;';;#;O ,"value a lortion of the infrastlcture constructed or acquired prior to June J0, 2003 andcertain lands, buitdinss, structures an.t building hd;";;;. il;rrreitr:j"ul; .deflate the curenr coss with an approximale pi." ira.* *^ ,,.j onl; l;';: cL 
"lce(atn ilems for which rhe historical c

hisroricar cosrs ;.," ;;l; ,1,;'# ;;;:ff;T:ffilJfr ;I#:i:f ,"#:I#30.2001 as well as, consEuction in Dro
,etricles acquiJ p-rio. ;;;; ;;"1,'l'.i""""tt' 

machinerv and equipment and licensed

y:Lo_r 
-o-u!ll.s 

f:r caeital assets and improvements are capitalized in the staterhent ofnetasses as projects are constnrcled. Tte costs of no.rrt .nrlnt.n_""1;j;;;;;;';"1 a.nor add value ro the asset or materially exrend c"pird ;; li;;;;;;:;ri;f::::^
Depreciation and amonization e\pense is recorded only in the goremment-widestarement of activities. Ho*6r,g1. th6.. is no depreciation or amonization recorded tbrland and construction in progress. Depreciabl. 

"upirul ".r.o_ur" 
g"n.;r;;:ffi ..amonized orer their esrimared r-rsefui tir.5 under the slraighl line method, except form^achinery and equipmenr held under capital r"r.". *r,i.r, iri.p.."iu;;;;; ,:;':fr:"..of its estimared useful life or the lease tim

assa categories are: 
l' The estimated useful Iives of major capital
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MUNIcIPALITY oT AIBoNITo
CoMMoN,!,vEALTH oF PUERTo TUco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Land improvements
Buildings. structures and building improvemenls
I n tiastructure
Motor vehicles
Fumirure. fixtures. machiner) and eqt ipmen!

excrudtng lhose held under capital leases
Office equipment held under capiral leases

Years
20

30 to 50
20 to 50

5

5to20
3to5

Depreciation and amonization eroenseofsapllal assets is recorded as a direcl expense ofrhe tuncrion/program specificaity 
,identitred ,"1,h 

- 
;;--;;;;. '" ;:rli,li"" _oamonizarion of infraslrucrure is noi allocated to u"riou, irn"i,.oivp.f#."ii", ,.*n*as direc expenses ofrhe urban and economic d.r.l.p;;;il;;i;;:,"r-,,," ",.

j) Delened Revenqes

In the govemmental fund financial (
rolr.*i_ng,i ruii.n, o""rr. 

""_"''"r ratements' deferred revenue arises when one ofthe
t Potential revenue does not meet both the ..measurable,, 

and .,available,, 
criteria forrevenue recognition in rhe current period (reponed *:;;;,;; inaiurkre,enue" in rhe accorhpanyins batance sheet_govemm*"i-n 

"Li, i.li""i"*rydrscussed. availabte is defined as due (or past "due) 

"i-]rr" 
:.0,.idioiiarlrr".nawithin 90 days (60 days for prooe

J0. In subsequenr period.. *h.; hY.3:-tl 
tl*eafter to pav obligations due at June

riabi,i,./ f;; ;;i;;;;;;il;:fJ.Tf :i:[:TJ[o*l$,i];",0,", "*,", *"
. The Municipality receives resources before it has a Iegal claim to them (reported as"uneamed reyenue, in the accompanying brl"r"" ;i;;;;;;;;"r[i,ii]*l nsubsequent periods. when lhe reve

0.r".,.a.",!nu" r. ,..il;J;11',X,:"fl:'fiS*'t' is mel the liabititv ror

Uneame.l revenues ar the govemment-wide^and. the proprietary fund lerels ar-ise onlywhen rhe Municipaliry recei\es resources b€fore ir t r* fig"l 
"l,"i, 

i"-ti..,i.iin* *"uneamed revenue. in the accomnanying ."r.r.ri .r n?, *r",.1." 'ii,, )JH"a *aunavailable revenue is accounted for
th" ';;";;;;;;.,#-.;'il; il"i: 

*'ompanvins starement or net assets nor

k) Cot rpedated Absences

The liability for compensated absences,recorded in the accompanying stalemeot of netassets is limited to leave that: ( I ) is anri
lL,ne :0. zo ro ana rll is ;;; 

"'o;ti;;;Jo"t"o'" 
to senices alreadv rendered on or hefore

rne uun icipariq anJrh; ;;il;:.'iil.;:- i,;x:l::ff [,i1,J ;r'ilt.t":::ilJ :Jlurure sewices or are contingenl on a specrlrc_event outside the conrrol ofthe employsr orrhe emptoyee arE accounred for in rhe neriod 
"h., fi"r" ;;;;;';; _ri.*l?**.events tale place.

r
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MUNIcIpALITy oF AIBoNtro
coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RICo

Notos to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

The liability for compensaled absences includes salary-related costs, which are directiyand incrementally relared ro rhe amount. of salar) paid i" ii..".pr"l"!,t.*r, *employer's share ofsocial security tares and m.a;."r" rJ*.J.." 
q.! !ii,p,wru!

*;Iff."t::," TJ,,jr"r"! !tr;t,n,",r"r,tr. oigvides for fie accumurarion of resurar

Employees accumulare r"*r1; r;"'L 
'l^ll"ll (10. dals. Pjr. fiscal year) per employee.

n"ir i.-rl e,pi"i.;.ffi il;,:"::fi.1,:llil',lj"o:l'"T,lTr, g r,,*Jj-fj
overtrme worked. All vacarion and iick r"",]",r^^ i^^,,_-,-]'^_i"::: ": ' ' ,.

or :o a,y,'""a-d'i'u;ilil:fi :,;: i:$,,;t,:ilJJJ::i.'JJlli.J::il ",;T;consumed, 6s requhed by raw. In rhglase 6166.pensatory time. the excess of240 hou^rs pard io employees each fis.al year. ifnot consumed.

Upon termination of eftplovment
accumulated unpaid regrl* u";u1;on 1--11 

employee receives conpensation for all
reave.irrhe#pr"r"J-,..'"i"'""."ii,1!"il,H;,,ffi :f i.r* jrilffi#ir";:il':|
services, such regutar sick Ieave is not paid ro trr" !.ii"y"",lir"i"iTiffi.,,"n *o,oonupon- rermination of^emproyment. an emproyee aL; r", ..]".'".r**ltron ro.
:l?iff:t?rl'['i,'ifi',i",1'"'ff1,:fl'":'i en"' ro v"-' "r,"*i".'f"ir,.r,r*
ttt. 

"rploy"" "i.nvii'i.l 
'" q'! !"rProyee Accumulated vacalion time is fully vested to

The liability for compensated absences, is in the statement of net assers. A liability forcompensared absences is reponed in rhe govemmenul fr"a i^"i'","r 
"i"rl"ro *,yl,,ril,Ifltfil,"r., 

paymenr is due), ro, !*urnpr". ui l...ui, 
"il,or"ri"J..l.*,"r.^

l) Long-terrn Debl

Tle long-term liabilities reDorted in rh
,r," Nr,,i'.ip"ii,),.,;;i; ;;ffi: ;ill",ffffi::fllTiff f [THI"I$ :;:n:::,*"
AII long_term debts to b€ repaid from govemmentar resources is reponed as Iiabirities inthe accompanying sratement of net assi
on July 1.2010 hale been recorded as 

s Principaland intercst palments on bonds due
fund ar Jr.rne lO. ZOf-0._*i* 

.*."#" goremmental fund liabilities in ihe debr service

Irnincral slarernenrs. dr. f""" r.oun, ofti lere arailable ln the govemmental fund
ott 

". 
rin-"ing ,ou."Jr;;;;::"""."' "r oebt Issued (grcss debt Proceeds) is reported as

In the govemmental actirities of rhe GWFS. debt issuance cotts have been capitalzedand reponed as deferred charees. [hich.arc being arhorlized under the straicht-linemetlod over rhe respecrir,e lirei of the debts. r, ,f,". Crfi.l*f.""*;: ;.";",.d; 
".

expenditues as incurred,

Non-inreresl bearing noles palable are accounted for under the provisions ofOpinion No.zt, tnterest on Receivubles antl pDaht,
(ApB No.2r) t;;il;;i"-*; N;:'ji:liliif,l,",,ii,0 fil[[TJJ","J:,-,.::"".,1pres€nt value wirh an irnpured inrerest rate ,r,u, upp.iirui.iii. ."i.;;;r1il"".
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MUNIcIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
coMMoNwEALTfl oF PUERTo RICo

Notes to Financial Statements
June 10, 20 t0

been used. using the same terms and conditions, if it had be€n negoriated by anindependent lender. ln the accomnanljng.5l,4r.m.nt or ner arse]Is. sr"r,'""""r'rir*," *reponed ner of the applicable unamonized discount. which is rhe difference deueen rhepresent value and the face amount of rhe norcs. Ir.irr""r"i 1. 
".""""i,i.u""i n" ,,r" o,rhe notes usins rhe efGcrive interesr method. A."J;;;;;;;i lr.itr"orn, orecorded as pan of inlerest exDense 

.in 
rhe .""rl"i. 

"ri_ 
i*r. 

,ln,,"rJt?rr, 
no,",discount is recognized as other hnancrng uses as rncurru,i

m) Accounting lor pension Cosls

For rhe purpose ofapplvinc the reouirements of_GASB Sratement No. 2.1, A.,countinglorPensions by State ond local Gouemmenr Emplq.ers (CASB No. 27), the sutegovemment ofthe commonweatrh of^puefto ni.o.i, 
"orria..Jlo U'ii" .pin*, ord,"Emplolees Retiremenr svsrem or-_the Covemment of puerto Rico and llsInsrrumentatiries (ERs) and ivsrem 2000. a mutri_.;;l;;;, ;.r,jr'#;, i.Jii.o *r"n,pension plan and a hybrid defined contriburion pr"r, ."!p"1iir"iy, i"'iiiir"rirl'l"rpr"y*.of the Municipaliry participate. The M"ri"ip"iit ;. ;;;l;;i.;';;;;#:;o ,", 

"sponsor. of these retiremen! svstem

"'r.,",*,i"nJ-i.".'i",il:h.#.# #:.r.:: Jlil"..p"fl*":ffi i:ffi 
[,,I^li;and the basic financial statements of such retirement systems are part of the financialreporling entity of the comhonwearth.of pueno r'i*. ;,";;;i;, ffi;;il,ii,r," *,pension obligation (NpO) rclated to tKS has been allocared ro th€ M;nicipali8 in rfieaccompanying basic finarcial statemenrc. Tte ;;;; ;;"; '.il"ijlr.ilt , *"Comnonweahh of Puerto Rico reDort

ERS. i""';;; ;; ;;;;;il; ;.#::[;lfl ffi:,il",ill"Jil"*ion obrigation of

The Municipalit, accor.rnts for oension costs from the standpoint of a participant in amultipte-emprover cosr-sharinS pran. e""o.aingtv, p;iioTl".o'""i*)1f, ," ,r,"accohpanying basic financial ststemenrs are iqual to the .,.a,"Tiy--,.qri*acontriburions. wirh a liabiliry recorded for any urp"ia i.qul..a 
"on,.ii,iio-"l 

,,, ,.

nl RisL Managerne

The Municipalify carries commercial ir
o$er rossesl r,;,;;;;;;i"h. #'"U"Tffi ;;1i:T#.Jll,y;llifl; il,,lllff iXlTreasury (rhe Depa(meniof freasurvr on behalfofall rnunicipaliries ofpuenl Rico. TheDeparrmenr of rreasury pavs rhe insurance premir,". 

"" 
bJ;lf;;;; M;;i",*i],, *othen is reimbursed each fiscal lear rhrough mon,hty.qr"j ;;;.;;;;r.,ii?J, *"Municipalit)_sgross property rax coflectrons made by rhe Municipar Revenue colection( enrer ("cRIM", bv its soanish acrnnvmt.." gou._r.niri 
";ii,y'**"riiji iJ'i,,,,",and collecting property raies on behalf'ofall rn-uni"ipufiri., oierlr,o f,i"".'"'' 

,", .

The Municipality ca.rries iosurance coverage for dearh and bodily injuries caused byautomobile accidents. Ttis insurance is oUralnea rtrough tie;,r,#;il ;;;.r"Compensarion.Adminisrrarion (ACAA. by ir, Spa"i.h;;;;;;;"'#;;:;: ;.it.;r,h.Commonwealth. Tlis insurance is comr
."-"j. 

"^d 
hish""y, ;; il.;;'ill HI:IT3, i1,;]1,1rffi,il;i:"fi xir:i3i3,::$35 per licenled motor vehicle, which is paid dir".tly ro aCei. 

--- - -
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 10,2010

The Municipality obtains workers. c

I":::::: fi .*";;l#'&.;:T'ffi,in;i':l??1?"'?ffffiH"i[: ti:rnsurance covers workers against injuries. disabiliry 
", a""ii i"""r,"'"i:*orr 

".emptoyment-related accidenls. or be(
employment. worlers. com Den sarion 

ause of illness suffered as a consequence of lheir

a"i""i"". .,d" iy i"r.r'J' ffi ;:illX:fi ff ;tff::Iffi:"d#:1il:L*:**',
The Municipality obtains unemolovm,
aa, *,' i,,i 

^"'". .i, .*: H."il'jlrff :ll'ii'l}#i"',iili"li1l,Litllil;Tl
adminhtered by the Com-monwealrh., it.p"nr.nt 

"r-r"t.r"_a"iir#"i. #***,(DOL). These insumnce oroerams c
.uppr"."nof 

- 

r,.,.n";;;;:;;:,il::fl ;Hfl:J8iiu: JJ:y,i"r#* j:t flI,::employmenFrelated accidenrs oi beca
.- pro!.., t. u;;; r;;;.;, :;X":il:.' [T:::fl;f; :# i :ffi,S1T ;,i J!::rnsurance premiums are paid directt) to DoL on, *o ;l;;;;.;;;;.;1. "'," '

The Muflicipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from seveml health insurancecompanies for irs employees. Differenr heatth insura;J;;;;s;il'ffii*n,"p,.^
fl^":_g:li","d 

each year b,. the Depanmenr of [reasur] ." 
-i.l""ri"i 

,'r" 
'niuii",p"rrry.

I ne currenl rnsurance policies have not treen canceled or 
"r,ni"""i'ri 

jr". jii. 
ZOfO.Prerniums are paid on a monlhlv basis.direclly a ,m fr.r#.. "i.p.#"'rr,;. o*three yea6. rhe Municipatiry hasior sented ctaim. ,r,", .il.Jilnri*rr""r.""'l'.rL.

o) Fund Balances

On Juty I, 2009, rhe Municioalirv adoeted jE provisions of CASB Statement No. 54,Fwd Batance Repo ins ah; Go;emi**t rria typ"'b"jirr:rr#tcitil.i},,"*n"l
eriianced the usefulness of firnd balanc

"ta.rit"rttons tt at 
"a-i"; ;H:HIi: 

rntdrrnation by providins ctearer firod balance

u"r",* .r*.in"uiti,,# ;#il; ;';fl*#il',TJ rtff l"il.fr .."T.r,lik'_fr :lthe Municipatiry is bound ro observe co*t ui"i i^p..JJ rpor,,n"'r.".iiil.*"*,*".reported in govemmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of CASB 54,. rhe accompanying CFFS repon iirnd balanceamounrs. rhar- are considered nonspendabre. .r"rr' 
",- 

iriJ'u"Lr""' r,riiirL"a" 
" 

unrnvenlories. Other fund balances have h
-a unu..ign.a. bu..l oln;;;";,.,i','.,l.,.JJ:fl [:r"ff .tr[".$r;".Tfl1;*f,'jffi*
amounts can be spent as described as follows:

a. Nonspendable - Represent resources rhat cannot be spenr readily with cash or arelegally or conrracrually required nor ro be spent. li,"frj;"g t,rr"";ifii,:O arnventories, prepaid items, and long t .. 
.Urtun.". 

oi intl.f"ri.,"""J *oaccounts receivable.

b Re:hlctel : Represent rcsources thar can be spent only for the sp€cific purposesstipulated by constitutional provisions, extemai ."ror.". p.o"ii".. 
.i"l[,{lulty

rmposed b) cr€dirors or sran,o:ll olr,-reh. *"bii"B'i.gi.jil;.?il; ,r,legistation rhat creares , n"-ru ."u"nu" source aird restricrs-its-ir.i ic"l"ii".rv.restricrions may be changed or lified onty wirh th;";;;;;;'f;;;dfi;l:rr.
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MuNlcrpALrry oF AIaoNlTo
coMMoi\wEALTH oF PUERTo RICo

Notes to Financial StatemenJ
June30,20lO

c. Committed - Represent rcsoU

ru**uxHl,Hi*:liJimlffi fi,#";,",f:i,#1
d_ Assigned Represent resour

specific purposes lu, ro no,T1-'.nf1dtd. 
to. be uied by the Municipality for

""*.itt.a te"""Liry i*;;i,.T:::lT criteria to be classified as resiricted or
e).pressed by rhe vrni";out r-'-1lllj" 

ap.p'o.!:d by lhe Malor) lntent can tle
*ritr, rr,. i,rr"l"ir"i"; J; ;:.c"'yf' the Mavor or bv an omcial or body to
ar,on.r*, vr"ii["' 

lBbulure delegates authoriry in conformin' with rhe
lunds other rhan the [el;;i tu';'i "-t.-l*": Ilto' as amended ln go-vemmental

amounl lhar is nor restr",.O 
".I"#l.iflXo 

rr"d balance represenrs e remaining

' r?;f""%';}iJ#;'1,1n".::'J1:il_r*',ocarion for rhe Municiparir)l.s senemr

"ta..incarlor..'iiilie.';il:1'ff:': 
anounts not contained in the other

u a.ri"i,,u,ru".. *,,i,,il;;il.#;lfffl ;,1.;H::illffi*:,rr"? ;ffifamounrs had been restricted. commined. or assi.gned.
Negative fund balance amounrs
wrll raise lhe firnd ort"n." ,o ,T T]gnd amounls reduced to lhe amount rhal
.".r.l"r.a. .orrlli'-""! 'lf]^,t ?l*lltntlv negative residual amounts in
.""r*rin"a io rn"..L;;fi'rflfl.J'* balance classificarions have been

The Municipality repons resources con
rresmcred or commined fund balance ,:i1':1d 

to shbilizalion as a specified purpose
meet rhe other *f*a i". ,i.,?''i,jl_rhe SeneIEl fund) only if: (t) srrch resources

n*nx,.;j:ilxt_*ilir"_ffi ili:il,IX"""_#i*1,,!il;1]
not enrcred into any sr.;;ti;;#;:tiil" '"",X-"-" toutrnelv 

. 
However. the Municipalitv has

ff :[:::.$ ;r;:i:n$i.:;;,lI ffi 
,:ffiH.:",jtr,;lfl 

f *.:;ll Tin:1
In situations when an expendiure is made

* J"l1j,r1*:;1i:".:,H.i1"irur*l *tfi*1"".{*ff :#[.ffi ::' i"ff
ff H#'"J'Jl"i'..".:T'***+ffi,;:.1 ;i,fi[l'ff ;'.',Hff ';.hf ]Tfl i*
Ih€ classification of lhe Municipalitv.s ir
oeor servrce. speciat revenue and cao;r, "]li]11'j.'-q:*ttental 

tunds among genemr.

IXffi :Ttr"ll",Jl,fr 
;;';;:;f,#iJ:J;tT:,"ffi ffitlJ#[:tJ:T?J

h:[,,TJJlf ,,"j,:#;id*iJ#fl '::":j;[H1;f Tf :'.J#j
L1f ,1;p*" ;;;"dil;;H[,ll';iJ:. ffi11#:ih',5#;T'illj;l:,:::]

t
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Notes to Financial Statements-
June 30,2010

p) Inter-fund Acrtviies

The Municipaliry has the followin
a"ti,fi e. r.ci.Ii'a aio;;;:#H,jl'#r:1Jff :Iffi f:lri,ffilprocar 

inter-fund

. lnlehfund loans - Repres€nt rr
,o o,t". go*".r.n,"i irii'*",11'*"t 

r*"o) provided b) one governlhental fund
(,.irb,";;.;;; ;;; #;J'i : requirement and commirm;nt for reparnenr
ana due ro in'thc"iol"J.*#11: 3f r'2 " in the lender govemmental tund
nor considered ;; ;..;;;#i"..r:ntal fund. Inrer-fund receivabtes. which are
,.advances,l. - i".*;;.#, €vaikb-le financial resources, are reported as

receirables/payabtes are;;;I '"t expected to be collecred :nter'fund

,tt" ponio" Li rr" ir,".ldrra ii]-1.t1:lt 
*'it"ted realizab'|e (sedlement) !alue. and

'' t i,s1u-i,- r,o^ rto' g;;;ffi:,lilil: lr:j,.;frifr, [.T.fiI" is reponed as a

' '#i{:i:::{'{;nl.:Xf:!'"'- Represenr nows or assets (permanent

n"*, 
"i "rr.,. lr'iiri "ii "T: 

-i:*, sovemmental funds) without lquivatenr
,rponed ^, o*i1i)il;#;;T:-': ' requirement lor repavment rransfers are

, i t 
", tt, 

*" ii, ;,,*"ij:i," ;&"i:ffi ff#?,ff i[,"ll,or;f;g^*" *o *
. Inter-furrd reimburrernenj _ R

sovemmentar -r,rnd,".**,0*"ijX.oill,".,.,o#T_.ff"rff flr,J.lil;l"lT fi:govemmental fund that ;nitially pard tor rhem.

In the FFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP.
q) Ase of Estimales

Ihe preparation of the accomDanvin.
UAAP requires management t;.;k.J-,3:::- 

financial natements in conformity with

ll..,i:.f 
*;g u,o",,i'oi u-,,.I "#il;fl l[1],:i',ltlf ."ffi#Hffi 

::::,lT#llaoltrlles at the date of the basic fin
revenue and expenses duni* *-J*rjrl,"lt-"1 .st:temen6' and the reponied arnounts of
esttmates. tng penod. Actual results could differ from 6ose

r) Futute Adoption of Accouating pronoancements

TheCASB has issued the followi[g statements that have effective dates afie. June ]0-

a CASB^Sh^tement N o. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Govemmen@l Funol
:y{ .u4!i,,:^_ (GASB 54).Tle requrremenG of tfiis Staterhent arEe[ecuve fbr rhe fiscal]ear commencing on Jul] l, 2010.

,. CASB Stltemenl No. S]i, O\EB Meatl

!111r v u r r tnte 
-t 

no tote;,- ;;;"",' ;r!;\";': il"rl?:,,!f,j:l::; tri,sratement are effecrive lor d]e fiscal]ear comme*irg 
"rit"ry.i,.jo rl. 

",,,

J

r

t 54
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MuNrctpALrry or ArBoNrro
coMMoN.rvEALTH or PUERTo RICo

Notes to Financial Statemenls
June 30, 20t 0

' [lr:HffSHI"; 5e.' Fnanciat hstrunehts otunibus TGASB ss). rhe
on July I, 2010. 

statement are effective for the fiscalyiar commencing

The impact ofthese stalerhenrs on r
yer ti€en determined. ihe Municipality's basic financial statemeDts has not

2. Deposits

*.,r.,H,L",1*J:[:JnH:;iT:t;,,"-":"us commerciar banks rocared in pueno tuco
una ,r,. runa, ,"i","J rI;#,; ffiiH,f :jlI",,X,:."rlf"rr? ,Iffitryrlif :*g:

$tt"u,.';l|ff;,'*!;x::,^::l ;fffi:!"rovisions of cAsB starerhent No. 40 (GAsB
This sraremint *qri.. ,i"i ,;'"il l!)l!o]*" 'n 

e'"nateht b 1ASB s,ateme No. J.
about-deposia ana'inues,r"",iirl o',**'' 

govemments disclose essenlial risk informarion
risk. (2) inreresr mre risr, t:ilr.t aa'iilli-'T 

requirernenK cover four main areas: (l) credireort nsk. (4)foreigl erchange exposure.
. Cr€dit rfuk _ This is the risk tliillo-Trnlr ;ffiir;;';'l iTt^1i:i:'* 

*:*" 
"ounterpartv to an investmenr

commonweahh, ,r," viill-i.ri'i.1 .t"tpJrance 
with lhe laws and regulations of rhes'".*t q ili,ir")i,"d,ifr))l-l?:o'o,"or* its custodial credi;isk policv. $e

Pueno Rici. n*"Jirri],ii ni1.1{ 
Jor,the .Govemment oJ rhe conno)weahh oJ

",*,."mtii*:l:;,i,j"Jii':ii:,.1,i, 
j:lpf.Tfi","fi :It;lJx'l';

n'li,r;.lp"ri,*' 
"i 

-p"!i'.''ia,lXl^lT, 
.:"""Pt""'s or.in pools of obtisarions or rhe

atoremenrroned inu".tr.n1 ,u16"In'tn .are. Jnalta.Sed by cDB Acc;rding to rhe
narketable secur;ie;;;;;;'#"";'T:tr lf Municipalirv is not al'Iowed to 'in,.sr 

in

ru j:1tflil*"lx;[:..,yffi :l,J,I;:ffi l,#:l]"* j,".#:ffi *iff il:
rulunicipatity'. a.pos-it 'i#;'."#ff:f""j:i"T.;,fulrs bv commercial banks on the

. ItrterBt rrte risk _ This is the rist
urll adversely affect *. rr,r r",r.t ll"j-"l:'ges in interefl mtes ofdebl invesrmenB
exposu& to declines in fair uu,u, 

ol un 'nut*t" The MuniciDalitv menages its
rn\.estm€nrs ponlotio ar ,*" ,0. ,;i.i1;{l,)-llt 

including debt invest nents in its
irs invesrme;ts a ,"rl"a.-oi,r,*.-"1" 

(l) rrmrtrng lhe weigited average haturity of
a.porirs in tnt .ert'u-.ar,:ng;.",i;;:^Ttl-'-:t It* and (3) Leeping rno;t of its banks
June J0' 2010. the inrere;,;;;fi':"9:::Tl'ls interesl at prevailins market rates Atrssocrated with the Municipaliiy,s cash.

. glrtodid credit n.sk In rhe case
bank tailure. the Municipality.s difdtposiLs' 

this is lhe risk Ihat in the evenr ofa
stateme or Jnveshen, buid";ir;:ryt"t,^t! not tle Ecovered Pursuant to the
puerro Rico. ,h i;","., i.r*lllJ J9: :!" G*1?y, uf the connomteahh of
insured by rhe t.*r"i-Lr.i-',I,,I-commercial banks by the Municipaliry are

-*,*i'.t:*rt,,*i:q*"ti,flXt,.:**.',*[T;l
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIEoNITo
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Notes to Financial Statements

collateml are held in the Mu

rir'#,rtriln",#;[[1i"u i,:"{{ffifrt,s,,sdoeposrl transacrions hav. b..:-i::ll9d bl ,r," ur"i.jp"t,y ir,.*gl,il,i" ,0. ,0,0. ,,
;'flff]:',T:Xt;:,ff,I'.,!"0,:1'L.,n"'*"i' a'p"i,, i'"-i"'^r.''"ifl,ri"',I'i ro rorc r"
management has conclud.d ol-t]::'.**!: 

f9l-gDB Therefore, the Municipality;s
*i,r,,i. nr,,i"rp"rr,r,Ti"r,Tii::jnu[j,l"i.'# 

,:he 
c,stodial,credit rrsk associaLd

' ffi#*-',l,r. TX ^': 1l' risk rhar chanses in exchanse rares wi1
uiott,n"nr;o'"Jin*.irrJni'"ri"^ 

'11- ' 
'n":t*:|t or a deposit n"coio;ng to rt'"

it pr"u.nr.a rior'i, u"riiri ;"r" il""l"t' 
uaopt"a by the Municipality. the tvtLri;cipatiry

"rii"r, 
r"*;er, .;.i;;'llfr.ljlT-* *'*it'"'.or anv other tlpeiof investmenrs flor

has concluded rhar lhe fo,.,*1T.11'-t'uI.h:iSnificant Accordingly. managerhent

"onria"..a 
fo*liLrn" :_0,,6 

, o(crange nsk related ro the Municipaliry.s defrsits is

Cash and cash equivalents ar
barance sheet - ,ou".nr.r,u, irlll'r.'L,io,ll' "" classified in the accompanying

3. MuDicipsl LiceNe Taxes

Tle N4unicipaljry is aurhorized bv Aci

r#J*itj"[1,j*:#*+::ji::nlrff xl;:ll,xri,rilr,.,,;ilil^:;
;::ng.rix;l,r:;.i[Ti::fiti.?t1.1,".iiiilffi #,ffi,i.T,Tf
financial insriturions'li; ;:;;;#;ff:-':fsed bv th-e tv'unicipalitv were 1.50 percenr ror
been Sranred wirh a paniai ;; 

-;;";::^t:tl 
'v,p"t 

tf talpavers Anv taxpay".! th"r huue

;x*t'*'*.*':m';;ft 
"", 

;,5#*i;l:, "i'T,:::o'H'i::"lt*i*i
Each t4\payer musr assess the corresoon

;:::il.,I.TfJ,;ffi ;:ei,F"T#{i,lTi,I'J"':JI"'J,jT,lil: I.il:l;tr
miilion or more must inci;;;;;;', ;ff:A vear' Taipavers $iIh a sales volume of$J
can be paid uv ,r'" *p"i". lr' *J":::,:':i-'3':|*o "ith 

their tax ret,m filinss. T?re tax

;'jH[[[ *i*T"r,T#;Trir1 #riii :i!"'],"",T *,'ilH, #1.,.',;r?*::
xhile the second ;".olr*""t?,i"?']:.:.'bT!'"1t ro lhe filing date of rhe declararion.
subsequenr catendar )ear. i;"-;*;;#.',:::: the six-month period ended June i0 of rhe
aechration rgenera j aini]rl, 

"^i,i'.ijliT'" 
pav.lhe l,x in tuI, on rhe filing dare ofrhe

aJhount due. ._.-_.rI drscor/nt is granted automatically on_tte total tar

Any municipal license tares collected in a

***q,i-t*-kru*,gr ji*lrr,**t-.,,;,-;ir
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cOMUON'\ryEALTH OF PUTRTO IUCO
Notes to Fifiancial Statements

June 10,2010

4, Property Tares

Ihe Municipaliry is authorized bv Ac

;::Hai1,'rit r::$jtffi*l#:i,i'::::Fi,,,? #";; ft:T#;fr iH"":I
residen,iar rear propero. ;il i;il,; :lf.:: o";.fffr 

,Xil,,;,rf i:*"r,,jffi ill ili:'

[.I#il,trffi :lnTpJ**:".*"'rixlrsininnil'^rff##;';:

ligfl*H*lit*:,ii*Tdp,[,:i,,,ii+ffi [tt[,,{f fjtr
i'+,-*ru+*ll,n'***fr]'d##'*id,*,:+i$ilf $*
Personal properO/ laxes are self-assessr

ffi:*l';3;Hffi1$rr;*pTJtrp;ir'#ffi ;L{fr 
HiJi*h?

g'"',",*::1 :i;lf lilt:1i:i,i,i'T"l..11 
jil,Tf Jl"i"Jn t in:#;iiJ ffit',13

Real property taxes are assessed bv CRI
l:i.,* j _o ;" u"*a * ".,i,.*ii ir4.ll.i:fi&Tfi:f;::5trfl J,,[ffl"#]
i33.*i+t j,?Jx#;jf,r,"J,.,f"_tr:"*itlttSii:tr'ffi 

u,;;:
Residential real property occupied bv irs .fiom property taxeJonli;;il;';#;;".,i1":lnot ensased in rrade or business) is
.ur exeftpr amounis. rh" *r",-.n, or r31l,:j'1":.".::;::l ,.,"" i,i,iii,iiiiJil'"TrT

ft trj*Li,,,JXH!:iT[:"i!1tt1d,,jrB;,f;#,Il"iili}:llfJ.:Tr#

ffffift$,g*gffi fiaiiffi$$Hr*,:r;ffi
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MUNIcIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
COMMON}VEALTH OT PUERTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

In addirion, included within the toirl prsonal-and real property tax mtes of 5.g0 percenr and7.E0 pe*ent. resp€cri!ety, rhere is a ponion otrrr. ta,, ,liein ii.;;;;i;i;.fi;:"*, ,huris restricted tor rhe MuniciDatirt.s j"hr seruice ,.qri;;;;r';;;;:. "iul"i#orno 
u."recorded in rhe lvtunicipaliry.s debt service fund.

Furthennore. included lairhin rhe toral ncrsonal and real properD ta\ rates of5.t0 percent and?.80 percenl respecrivery. there is a porrion ;i ;J;:;,.;';;'il'.'.lJrlla in ,r,.Municipaliry s general fund. of which a portion is restricred for ii,.'p"tr."i.i tU ,r,.
i".r_yin": 

p*ri:T:. 
."cquired lhrouSh tire Departrnenr "i rr*.r.yil'zi',iJ ,on,r,lycontnburrons ro CRIM. $hich are sratulorily required as the l.tunicipaiiry,s ltare* of CAIIUoperatins expenses, (4) statutorv contributiois i; -;;-p;.eio''it;,i 

irlliin" a".","",Administrarion (pRHSA). as the'Municiparity.s ;;* ; il';r,;i,ij'iii,," n""nninsurance covemge provided to qualifoin
ctuM and. rii?I"r" "r"*ir" a,,'."i{ 'f"-'1"o,n" 

tit;ttns (5) certain nores pa}able to

co,,","on*eurir,, *r,;J;;;;r";'r.rfl ;: H"#il::::, ;:iJiJff H:*:'fd;ll;CWFS and CFFS. lhe 0.20 percenr of unr**i.i"a p"r.onut ,lJi"uip.p."y ,"ijl p",a uythe Depa(menl ofTreasury as a subsidy is recorded in rhe Municipaliry.s;;;r;;;.
The Addirional Lonery Sysrem of the Commonwealrh (rhe Addirional t_onery) is anoperarional uni!.reponed.as an enlerprise.fund in the Commonweahh.s basic fjna[cialstatemenrs, which currendv oDerares severat bening 

"f,.rnu,i"i, a ii"'.i,ir'*i 
"1. 

p*noRico- The Additionat Lotrery ii required every fi.""iy"u. to ai.tritri"l p"ii'""."fi,," 
"_""r,ot revenues o!er expenses as follows:

. 
Iln, n* percenl of its nel eamings.(defined as the excess of revenues over expensesless an amount earmarked for rhe Fund_for.Renr ana i"r. iapar.a.", S"Ua;ayProgam lor the Low-tncome Ouatifr,ing Etdertyj is Ja-"rt.J,"','f[""#i+"i,,,", 

"fthe Commonwealrh. of which a .rximum_oi $26 million. 
"r r, "rrr"i"i*," i,dinributed ro rhe Municipat Equalizarion funa tefa ly Cf.f-fr4 ," """.i,"1r*"r*expenses and permanent improvemenls of the municipalitiei.

' An additionar amount not exceeding $r6 rnilion. on an annuar basis. is diskibuted ro the\4unicipat Equatiation Fund. orov"idea ir is 
";rhin rhe;;;;,. 

"r..ri 
l,j#lt"r*to rhe municipalities of the Commonwealth. When ihe *lr^rf"r"i.. ,lrl";paappropriations from the nunicioaliiies. puer1o Rico ff""f ,f, A.il'"r'rr" .'.1"#' ,p aJune 30, 1Q97, tiese resources will b€ assigned to PRHSA.

At June 30, 
?0-1,0, qroperty tares receivable recorded in the general and debl service f_undamounted ro $ 975.0 t2 and $ s.466. respecri!et). n", oru ."..ri" io. j*il;i;""rl;i::

J

J-
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Notes to Financial Statements

June30,20t0

Itrter-firrd Transrcliotrs

The composition of inter_fund balances at June 30, 2010 and fo. th€ fiscal year rhen ended is

Due toi

Due froft:
Major governmental fu nds:

Geneml fund
Legislarive joinr resotution tund

Special communities Eust fund
other govemmenal fund

Totrt

Geoeral

Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

Other
Covemmental

Funds

Toral
Govemmenal

Funds

826,803

502

73,52E

712

$ 180,406 $ 253,980
826,803

s02733

Transfer from otler funds:
Capital
Projects

Fund

General

Fund

Debt Otler Total
Covemmental

Flmds

Transfer to other funds:
Major govenrnental funds:

ceneral fuod
Capital projocts fund
Debt service fund

Trust tund
Olfi er governrn€ntal fu nds

Tot t

Service Covemmental
Funds

222,98s
705

1,924

$ 52,809

7t2

52,809
221,985

.105

),924
I

79,789
305

53,521 $ 35-.e,i

This Space Eos Been LeIt Btan* Irrtentiorrolt!
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MuNtcrpALtTy oF AtBoNrro
COY}IOMryEALTH OF PUTRTO IIICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 20t0

6. Capitxl Als€ts

Capital assets activity for tfie fiscalyear ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Cost bash:
Co$ basis ofcapitalasrets, not subiect

to depreciation and amonizalionr'
Infrastructure land
Construction in progress

Total cost basis ofcapital assets. not
subjed lo deprecjation and amofization

Cosl basis ofcapitatasse6, subiect to
depreciation and anonizrtion:

Buildings, sr.uctures and buitding impro!enent'

Land Improvements
Licens€d vehicles
Fumihrre, fixtur€s, machinery and equiomenr

rotatcosr basis ofcapiEl assers suliecr
ro deprec iation and amonizarion

Totat cost basis ofcapital assets

Accuhula,ed depaciotton ond arnodiotton:
Buildings. structures and buildinB improvements
ln rashrctur.e
Land lmprovemenc
Licensed vehicles
FumiturE, filrufes, machinery and equipment

I olar accumulated deprecia!ion and amo(iz?tion
Capiral assers, nel

Ealancc

,, Balance

Jure 30.200e Additions Junej';roro

10,12 t,055
15,969,713 544,75;

t0,121,055
16,514,495

J

2,977,203

$ 3,660,75r S
3,7 |,660

2,106,330

446,886 $
53 t,35 r

278,309

8{ta|tcc l)€preciatiotr and Bahrc€3t Amo.tiation.tu,"so:oog "Elo;.J 
.rr""SlorO

4,107,637
4,243,011

2,584,639

15,357.537 g -$
185

15.351.537

526,839

2,977,?03
85l.6ll

29,767.676 696,690 )L464.366!5,44a,a61 !2.2d75 s !!;48,747
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 10, 2010

Depreciation and smonization expense of

:tif, j;[: :3.,:i,[J;:1;::;."Jtr?;"?,:ffii[ffi :,'. *::::J;:.fi J,,,,r:JHi

$ 29,189
) l),
2,169

1.306 r4s
$ 1.140-029

General govemment
Public safety
Public housi,lg and welfare
Urban and eaonomic development

Toral depreciation and ahortiz2tion expens€s

Cosr

b.glnnirtof

126.150

126,150

4, t t9, I l2
226,U3

374.770

.t b.girrirg

s 2,523,845

l6l,7tl

lo7 964
307-954

4t,t32

156,689

12,007

225,716

4r,l l6

I4,361
2.8E7.521

I I,958.9r r

r81.057
124,907

b) B,.sinest-tvpe ActMties

B u s i n ess- ty pe act N t.s :

Capital asscts. nor beirg depr€ciated - lard
Totat capiral asset, nor b.i.g deprcciat€d

Capital ssers, bcing deprc.iar.d:
Buildings, slruclues, and improvenents
Land impmvemats

Machinery and equipmen( and tumirurc

Tolnt capiEt assas, bcing dep..cialed
Toral cost basis ofcapirat asseb

Accumulat.d dep.Eciarion and amonizrtion:
Euildingi strucrurcr and improv.menrs

Machinery and cquipinerr md
tumituE and fixnrs

Toral a.cumutated depre.ialion
Ner crpirat ass.ts, busiress-q?e acfiviiies

B:1":'"il::,"i'":Tffi1i'*'ff!fiolt.o*':'s-tvpe ac!ivities, amountins ro $r8r,057
tunction in rhe accompanying ,,","*"n, ofrlfr 

charged to the p,blic housing and \relfa*

CBt

, l26.tso
126_ I50

4.3U,828
267,559

115-902

5.028.289
, 5,tt4.419

$ 2,6E0,534

t75.?ta

214-379

3.070-58t
$ 2,081,858

6t
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO IUCO

Notes to Fioancial Statements
June 10, Z0t 0

7. Long-TermObligstions

The general long-term debt afiivity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

9!!?' n nq,,tal a cti, i ti e s :
Aonas pryrttc:

Geneml obligation seriat bonds

Municipal Revenuc ColtecrioD Cenr.r:
Law No. t46 ofocrober I l. 2001

Cohpen..ted dsetrces
Total fo. govemmetrrat activiries

MortSagc loan
Toral for business-tne adviries

i-."]lll", " Borro,i,ss p')m.tr. Brr.nceat B{rsmer.cstlerri or ..d*.*L"j "aar,i"^ ,";L"" ,,#i;t. .il,j"r;,

S 10,160,6t6 $ - $ (430,000) $ 10,030,6t6 $ 210.m)0

#-,*-3##
--,r- -- . H#+-=_**. 

^e.rt-

Hislorically, rhe general fund has been upuerro Rrco Hearrh services Adlnirirr.,,i:1-ro,llqridate 
rhe notes payable to cRlM, the

compensaled 
"o***. "irlg"ii.r. 

'r#.1':" Tq lhe Pueno Rico Dep?,Enent of rreasury.
orher than bonds. capttal leases and any other long_lerm liabililies

a) Debt Lirrritorion

fi::,,3:',;{.ji::,""11H:: [rly_:11ffi.*.,[,ilxi""f # ::]T.,it-":,,j"ji,",,::j;

. Direct obli8arions ofrhe Municin tiry (etidenced principally b, bonds) are backedby rhe full fairh. credir and taxing power ofthe M*Lipufi,v,.lri
r Direct obligarions are nol to b€ ;sr

pnncipal of. and rhe inreresr on. suciued 
by the Municipaliry if lhe amount of the

uo,a.'ana nor., ;,.,.i ffi;:;ili,"f ::; ilr.;i;,fl 1,j";ffi:il #:::;f#iiiany anount paid by the MuniciDalitv
o.'uona 

"rrilipario'n'ni;;;#l'J li *: pTed,ns fiscal vear on accouit of bonds
tout 

^..r..a u"ir. oi-rti" i.L-^Il 
o, tl" 

Yyicipalitv. exceed I0 percent of rhe

or 
'r'' "a ""roi, il' i; ",[ iJi:"j:! :irhin rhe Municipalir] pl's the balance

.,,,"re";;" ;;;;;'#il,lioli,n'iil Jil[i.,llr;.H#,:1.oi1",::.,.fl,:.?#

Mo.tgrge oore" pt;Ei;
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 10.2010

b) Xoadc poyable

The Municipa,ity 
.issues geneml obligarion and public improvement serial bonds tolinance the acquisition, construction air,,*".. .".ai,i 

- 
of #,;;';'":'r::",,11il;!';""'il;Tlr,,f ' ffi ;1. ff 

,,"h1:
ctrcumstarces.

The laws and regulations of rhe Commonwealth provide rhat rhe Municip€lity,s publicdebt will consriture . first claim on rhe available-revenue ofrhe Municipallty. firUfi," a"Uls composed of bonds payable. The;;",rriii#,.;ii""Jffi :";"Jn,?:r,..f ;T;#lll,:lr_#*:,#:X,:l*

l:lnore ftlly 
-described 

in Note 4, the Municipariry revies an arnuar addirion.l sD€cialp.op€rty tax of 2.00 percent of the 
""""s.ed 

ualre of p"no; il;;;"r;:, ,rh"
proceeds of this additional special tax ar€ deposired in a sinking fund establi:hei ar theuovemment Deveropment Bank for puerto rii"o, nr*r 

"g"nr 
iiffi,imiil'rl ?""0.are sel aside to redeem the bonds oavab

s., i*nu,r p.in"if ai;,il;; ;,#:"":: "iry::fIflY.,:I#:,"E"ff ,,* 
Hrecorded in rhe Municipality's debt;e;ice rxn.t

For financiar reporting purposes. the outstanding barances of bonds represe the to,"rpnncipal to be repaid. Bonds payable is compo.ea as follorrs ,t lrne l;,;ffii "* ,

Geoerrt Obliratiotr Botrds:

ig9l..serial bonds (face anounl of g572,000) due in .nnual principal
]l*lF:"F ransins from $r4,o0o to g4l.o00; pru. int"..rt Ii !.ir6"7"through July, t, 2016.

2000.serial bonds ( face amounr of $g70,000) due in annual Drincioalinsrattmenrs ranSing from $40,000 ro Sado,ooo,'pi* r"i""""Jr""ivariable rares (4.J0% ar June 10. 2010) through July, t:20t l.
l996serial bonds (face amount of $l.M0,O0O) due in annual principalrnstaflmenB ranginS from $15,000 to $90,000; pt* lnt"r.l ,ti"riu[f,rates (6.10% arJune 10. 20t0) lhrough Jui. I,2020.

20Ol..serial bonds (face amount g575.000) due in annual principalInstallmenrs ranging fiom $lo.00o to $50,000i pt* lnt"r.,t 
"t 

r"lu6i.rates (4.30% at June 30,20t0) rhrcugfi July. t,2026.

2002,serial bonds (face amounl $J10.000) due in annual principalrnstallments ranging ftom $5,000 to $10,000: pt^ irr"."s ut.rJ'jtlrates (4.50% June .]O. 20I0) rhmuSh Jujy i, 2027.

Oubtrtrdirg
baLtrce

216,000

195,000

705,000

490,000

63

270,000
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MUNICIPALITY Of AIAONITO
COMMO]\.\ EALTTI OF PUERTO fiICO

Notes lo Financial Statements
Junei0,20t0

l996.serial bonds {face amounl ot $112.000) due in annual princiDaltnstallmenls ranging from $6.0001o 520.000, pfr. ir,.*"l,rraniiil
rates (4.50% atJune 30, 2010) rhrough July t, i02s.

2005,serial bonds ( face amount of $465.000) due in annual princioalrn$aIments mnging from $t0,000 to $35.00O pt;, ;;;;;,1;;i";rates (4.50% at June 30, 201O) through July l, ib29.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2005-2006 (Face amounr of$485,000) due in annual principal in$allments ra"gi"g.f;;l;d;;;U),0U0; plus interest ar variable ral€
rhrough July I, 20lo. 

:s (4 5006 at June l0' 2010)

Municipal general obligations nore (faci
ann,at prin-cipal i"r"riil.ro",u""]"ti"Lt 

amount of $J20 000) due in

rnt"..,, au. ui+.soy"ii,;;rn ,il"i:'ili;' $3e 000 to $52.000: ptus

gg,i{iifr ffi'}liitu;**[r"}i,i]{,;Ti:,'#l{

#!,,#trt'tr"fdfl{f *Hii"#:f :l,,.x,,f""".,'; x ;{

$niiqt'[l*1il"ir*fl]r*i:i,,..-#-',f"i;,rT,lfi

#f,,*f;iiir;;;l;##xxl,iif,lif i;i#i{{*:r}d,J

911"1*^1. series 2006_200? from Govemment De!etopment Bankot ttteno Rico as a loan for consrrucrion of 
" 

frorring i.;"iopilniproject at Caonillas Ward, Aibonito- p R

Outstatrditrg
balance

273,000

4t5,000

450,000

52,000

745,000

370,000

165,000

2,840,000

2.844-616

I

a

Total bonds payable

64
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MUNICIPALITY oF ATBoNITO
COMMOi\,WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Financial StatemenJ
June 30, 20i 0

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are

nr_i:,tqH'#l*t$:{i##,;i.:T,:"ri}i,Ti,t"";i}#ff '#:.#.ffi:

fr 
ii";iff 

{i*thf ;-,#,,'"t:J$[itfl ,t*fr fl 
',,#f 

h:ii
Fiscal year

eoding
Jutre 30.

201r
2012

2013

20t4
2015

20) 6-2020

2021-2025

2026-2030
2031-2035

PritrciDAl

230,000

429,000

346,000

194,000

410,000

2,219,000

2,616,000
2,927,000

459-616

Idterest
77,5E3

684,695

656,189

628,306

595,986

2,456,52E

I,543,066

581,i I I
12,337

Total
307,583

1,1t3,695
1,002,189

I,022,306
I,005,9E6

4,675,528
4,159,066

3,508,1I I
47 t.9s7

17266.4t7_rg4rqe!_- 
-r-E ioi

I

a

-

At June j0, 20i 0, accrued interest payable oo bonds amounted to g235,277.

b) 
_La* Na,ard - On Seprerhber 24. 2r

+[*i-*i;*t*:ilxt[[r*,','ilf r";,#;n,#'*;
corpomtion rprcl. ".,iur;ii* "i'il-tt-""*'|1 

bond_s payable issr-red by pubtic Financ!
which were o;ginaly issuJ'to" orli Yo'1t'"nt Derelopmenr Bank 

-for 
Puerto Rico.

municipalities of"pueno R;;;;#"i"iJ"."tTln, proPerty tax receirables owned by rhe
rre ouisrana;ng pr;rrc;fr ;;;#.:fl :'r"di;.l I#: fi::[il.r, 

pFC wi,h /ecourse.

c) itongage Noks pquble (basiness_Ope activiries)

The-long+erm debt of Las Flores ADar,.*"*ru:ikl"fr#*T#ilx'li',ffi
ffi J,#i1{#;x?trTJ;L{;}:t1lfr ql;;1l;r,:,,T#*"T"#'r:.;ffi
o,sr.naing p.in"ip'ariu-r'a-n'".;r,"#;H'ff:":l:"{lf,li ,i"iH;.fJ,r,* ro. :oli,'lii
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MuNIcIpALlry oF AtBoNlro
coMMoNwEAI,TH oF PUf, RTo RIco

Notes to Financial Staternents
June 30, 2010

Employees' Retiremetrt Systehs

r) Plan Descrip,iod

rhe 'Municinarit* emproyees panicipate in the Emproyees, Retirement syste'r of theuovemmenr of pueno Rico and its rnstrumentatiii"l iinir.', ".rilriliiil, .r,rremptoyer (as retared ro the Municinatiry.s ."p.nirg i",,t,1 ai.ir.i 'pl,,ili?, 
prmestablished by lhe Commonweahh. Substantially all full-time employees of theCommonwealth and subsranrialh all m,rnicipalities ar.e covered by ERS unier rhe termsof Public Act No. 447 of May 15. 195t, as amended rA.r N. ar?r ^rl .^^..r_

remporar) ernproyees 
"r,r," 

rvr,"i.ip"rity i*i...'il;'ffi ;"';:'r'i_ll ;rJlT#employment. \}hile it is optional for Jflicers appointed.

ERS rhembers. other than those ioininr
benefits described below: J it afier March il, 1990, are eligible for tfie

. Redremen Annuiq,

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upoo reaching the following age:

Policemen and firemen:
50 with 25 years ofcredited service
5E with l0 years ofcredited service

other employees:
55 with 25 years ofcredited service
5E with I 0 yea$ of credited service

I

J

r

ERS-. m:nbeJs are eligible for monthly benefit payments delermined bv rheapplication of the stipulated benefit ratios to the ,".rU"., 
"r"."g"'";*"?riillAverage compensar ion is cornpu ted based o n r i" ;;;;;.';; "_:'_:'.-*:" -"-'llP"'*'l:"recoglized by ERS. The ann uirv- f." *lil, 

tn" h i8h:tt 16 months of compen sation

mini-mum oi $J00 ;;;;;;;"iil"' 
whrch a merhber is elisible' is limited ro a

compensation. raximum of 75 percent of the average

. Merit Annuily

ERS members arc eligible for merit annuil
credited servic_e. i,J;;;;'f; ;;i:;,,I";ill,"l;il:i :lj$rffi ,l;:"jmrnimum of 65 percent and a m&\imum of 75 p..""n, oi,ii" 

"*-.i!. "#;#:il: 
"

. Deleted Retirerrrerrl Aniuity

A- p€nicipating €mployee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipaliw anerhavrng accumulared a minimum of ren yea6 
"i ;;Jta '."*,"l"r,jrli,ir"r-ril

relrrement benefits provided hjrfter contril
years ofage. Dutlons ar€ leff in ERs until rcaching 58

t-
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_ MUNICIPALITYoFAiBoNITo
COMMONWf, ALTIi OI PUf, RTO RICO

Notes to Financial Satements
June 30, 20t 0

. Coodirraed plan

On rhe coordinaled plan. by the time,.c.iue,o"i"r,.c,.fit"";.;;:,ilffff:::l,"*Xi::fl1"fffi,fii:ff"r;1. 
"

G) $165 per montt, if retired with 55 years ofage and 30 yea$ of credited

(b) $ I l0 per monrh, if rctired
credited service. with less than 55 yean ofage and l0 yeals of

(c) Allother between gg2 and gl00 per month.

(d) Disability annuities under
es -a i,i."." ""."*Ji''JTi"J#ffj:iL|!'rarc 

arso adjusted at ase

. Non_Coordinated plon

On lhe non-coordinated plan the oan
change on rhe pension bLIi; il,,,.:Hiff:i.*ijlr.Jffi"[1,"1r nor have any

t Revenionary Annuity

;e1g'.g,;"."apg$**.***i:#ilfl.riH#ilizperyear or greater thao the annuity paym

. Occupatiorral DisabiliO, Annuity

A parliciparing eftployee. *ho as a d.

rml;; i::l;',iil*,'il"xli';,".1tr1,:iJffi;T".[T,T,',1ff ;i" ]tff ;
. Non-occtp,ationol Ditabilily Annub,

il**l'*d:*;lt$*iit*t*,ffifi*fl#:t#:'j,,,,fr]r
. Deoth Benef,

Occupationot:

(t) Suryivirp spouse _ annuiF e
emptolee's sarary ar rhe *;"[Tl"t""*f o percent of lhe panicipating

67
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
coMMoN\ EALTH oFPUERTo RIco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 10,2010

(b) Childreo - $10 per monrh for each child minor or srudent, up ro amaximum benefit per family of$100. '- "--q!i,\ qp,

Non-occupationdl:

Bjreficirry - the contributions and interest accumulated as ofthe date ofthe deathplusanamountequaltotheannualcompensationurrt"r;r.otrtliJr-tt.".",...

Post-rctiremefit:

Beneficiary *ith surviving spouse age 60 or orer and a chjld. lg or under, up to JOpercent (60 percent. if not covere-d under 
-Tirle 

fl oi th. i""i"t-ilr.li.i.rf(rncreased lo 50 Frercent effective Janrrary t. ZOOSI of rer;ree.s-peiiio" 
". "iir..lf*the excess. ifany. ofthe accumulare.l .oni,ibutions al the time ofretirement over lhetotal annuiry benefils received before death. lim;rea ro a minimum oiii;;," "'" ,

. Refandt

l,'ffi1',iii[i,:T:'3,n#*: ffifl l"*:' emprovment with the Municiparir]

to rRs plus aiy iniereJt;;;'.f,#.o.il 
n* tnt right to a refund of the contrib'tions

. Cost oflivirrg AdjrtttDtzn lot perrsion Bene./ils

Public Act No l0 of May 2r, 1992 (Act No. l0) provided for iocreases of, percen!every three or more years of retirement

fl ::1"- j:"#;Effi ;;':[j"lJ:J;e',1"T"1ffi 
"*"1',"J#:l'ffi ,::

;"fil'il.'';i:.:l':';::,*'oiiffi"ril,nl1",'s ro protect th" nn"n"iur ;";i-; ;;
ueing nnancea by rie"r"r;;,il;1,:r;: ,;:1,|:",i1i,ffiffi gf;,*,. rr; ;
Io avoid ,ny economic impact on F
.onriruting to ens ii" ;";;f;; #".T.r;..11;:ililm ;f_::Hni5 j"jemployee conrributions widt resDect to ih.
.."i1 ir," no.rnul-..tir.r"riu*;""""" "" oa,trcipants covered until the participants

. Amend enl b Ac, No, 1.lZ elfeclie
(ontribution plon -- ,. Ioduory l, 2000 lo ctede a DeJined

On September 24. i999. public Acl No. J05. an amendmenr ro Act No. 447. l}asenaded ro.establish a defined contribution plan. kno*n 
", Sr;;)il;.;,;J;emploleesjoining ERS on or afrer January t,2000.

Employees rhar panicipated in rhe originar pran as of December,. re99, had rhe
;8ff 

.',#?d"'J:il jlj;;::",.;:ilT"*; ji,{,:l"rr*ifu ro;r,1".atlowed to become members ofsysrem 2b0o.
f

F
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Notes to Fioancial Statements
June 30,20I0

system.2000-is a hybrid defined conrribution pran, arso known as a cash baranceplan. Under rhis new ptan, there is a pool of pian;.*r, ilil [ rr".]"a"ffi"Slstem. together with those ofthe cosr'.
Neither the commonweur,,', ,.. ,r.," ,r"lllll,'- 

mu-lri-emploler defined benefit ilan'
rhe. annuity r. ;*J;""i;ili"";'f,:lo,:ff:i1T"::5"'rl*f i:I Tf;employee's contribution (with a minimum of s.:t p"."*t oi tf," 

".pfor""lrl"U.yup to a maximum of l0 percent) is invested as instructed by ,h; ;;];;;;,account which eirher: (l) eams a hxed rate bu,.d ., th; ;;_;,";;;;i#M;;;Trers-ury Notes, (2) eams n rare equat to 75 p".""i 
"t,f" *ir-";?,il ;isrnvestment ponfolio (net of manaeemer

artemarives. participants receire oe.i.,'j,lt::L 
- (ll eams a combination of both

denned conrriburion "fr;", :il;fi:::':""1jilfff :'J:"H;lllil f"Ifi #not granted under System 2000- ratht
voruntariry erecr ro panicipate in u o;u'l-uf 

provided to those. panicipan. rhat

n..,proy",.; 
"oiilii;i;#ir;8"#,'.jj: ;l:XI;;,:,]"i::T, *"tJilf 

J:ffitemployees under System 2O0O will contir.ritii.pr"y* a#iJ;;;il;**'* -d will be used to fi,,d rhe cost-sharing

Sl":i 20.09 reduced the retiremenl age from 65 yean ro 60 for rhose employeeswhojoined rhe current plan on or aflerJinuan I,20b0.

Historically, the state government ofthe (
ens 

",a sy,t". 1o6i' ;H#"T"XHi.ffi,j,l,t' t"x"."}ff lfff*tAccordingly. the Common\*ealth is currently assuming a,ry ;trlJnil;l"d"r".tl?may exisl or arise retared ro the lVtunicipatiry,s parti"tri,irg.rp[1.".;#:";fElit
does not allocate lo the Municioalirv
participaling .rrr",p"r'..p[r."".1'"'ji. "il'rrilt'"ffi',r'"X",fi:i?J;fJrili l:mrke slatutory contributions at rhe rates detailed b€tow

. Recent Arnendmerrtr ro Act No.1l7

Il"^Y:,,. :,rO l* Puse of Representarires of rhe Common\reatth of pueno Riconave tIe authority for establishins or ,fiending ft. *^"iUri.i *qri*r"""s,"iSlnem 2000 b) appro\ing the neiessary amendmenh or larvs, subiecl to the finalappro!al ofthe Co\emor ofrhe Commonwealth of pueno Rico.

In June and July 200j, the Covemor ofrhe
rhat provided the folowing 

".nuin 
b"r.fi,r.c:Ii:::*ealth 

signed three Pubric Acts

(a) Increase in minimum monlhl
January I,2005. 

y penslon payments to $300' effectiv€

(b) Triennial I percena increase in all pensions, effective January 1,2005.

(c) Incrcase in widow and/or beneficiaries to 50 percent of the benefitreceived by the deceased pensioner, effective J_;;-i,-iil;."'- ".'.",,.

{

J
J
J

J

J
I

I

,

-

-

F

I

F
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MUNICIPALITY oF ATBoNITo
coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo IUco

Notes to Financial Statemenls
June 30, 20t 0

All the benefirs gEnred will be

^,ru,i"ipurity;; 
;;;;;;r;h;J::l;j;T#* ;r;ffi u,.,r.",,,,n *"

,1,1.^Pjlll:tr.r"T, "f 
ERS approved. €ffecrire Nor emtrer I7. 1001. an increase in

;l:#T"*, 
granted on personat loars to parricipa;in;.e;i"y*, 

.r.# ,t!p* 
"

b) Fundi,rg poticy

:Hil:::?il:. :nffiiliJ,l, i.*."li",il,,1l "orished 
bv raw and is nor actuariaily

Y*"":|.r','rt;:t e 2E Percent of applicable !'avroll

Employees:

5.78 percent ofSross salary up ro $6,600
per year, plus 8.2E percent gross salarv in
excess of$6.600.
8.28 percent of goss salary. Ttis is theonty choice available to policemen-
lrrEmen and mayors

The contribution rrquirement to Svs
actua;atty aetermin-ii ii"* 

""it.i,lrti#r'#0 
is alsosestablished bv law and is nor

Municipality and 9.28 t
o,t .. .rp to'v"rs_ "" percent of app licable pa) ro ll

Employees: 5.7g percenr ofg.oss s€lary up to $6.600
per year. plus g.2g percent gross salarv in
excess of96,600.

Colrlmitmetrts and Cotrtingeoci€!

The Municipality has repone4 outstandin
general tund at June 30, 2009. The Mr,9,^:T.1:b3*": 

amolnling to $ 756.590 in the
which will continue,. tl ilrria","i rrJ* 

rcrpalrty 
'nlends 

to honor these encumhrances,

rhar extends into the srrb;il}|i,iu-, H:' 
the current year's budget during a lapse period

Coordination plan:

Supplementation
plan:

t

r

r
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COMMONWEALIII OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Statement olReymues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actlal - Budg€tary Basis - Gneral Fund

Fiscal year Ended June i0.2010

Actual

amountS

Variance

llith final

budget-

Revcr!e3:

Pmperty tares

Municipal license ta\es

Conslruction excise ta'(es

Sales and us€ l&res

Total tax reyenu€s

lntergovemmental grants and contri butions
lrterestr on depositr

Cha.ges for lervices

Misaellaneoos

Total rcvenues

Erpcdditlr.s:
Cunent

General govemme[t

Urbll and €conomic development

Public safery

Public bousing ard *elfare
Culturc, recreation and educalion

Capital outiays

Totsl expenditues

Revenuesover(under) expenditures

Oth€r fimmin8 3o[rre! (mes):
Trdnsfers from other furds
Tmnriers to other funds

Tot4l other linaocing sources, net

R€venues and other financing sources

over expenditures and otis finarc,rg uses

Budgeted amounts (budgetary

9,309,799 9,958,004 9,227,503 (730,501)

$ 2,078,210 2,0?8,210 2,0E0,539 $ 2,329
t.575,000 t,752,t40 1,512,973 Q3g.t67\IS0.000 20E,E22 405.t04 tg6)82ffiEt,000 66,596 t00,693 t4,w73t.000 59,778 86,570 26.792

_gll.w r.ggq.lgl 20l.5ao rmr.lao

4,354,230 4,5t427E
3,136,694 4,143,1U

122,108

332,6%

764,07t

t22,t0E

335,003

843,471

3,0 ,7E7

I,E57,7t5

I12,420

30t,0E7

E|,9,474

1,a1,491

2E5,359

q6t8

26,916

23,997

J

r

I

T

771.716

305,403

Tfu acco'nponyi'tg not.s to the basb rirurcial starenents arc inregar port of this statenen!.

f
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CotrIMoNwf,ALTu oF puf,RTo Rrco
MUNIcIPALITY oT AIBoNITo

Schedule ofExpenditures of Federal Awards
June 10,2010

F€dcralCFDA p{3s-throuEh

u.s. Dep.rtEetrt of Housiog ,trd urbar 
Number Grentor's Nuiber Erpepditures

Developmetrl

Section E Housing Assistance payment

Section E Housing Choice Voucher

Pa::-rhrough of rhe Srare-Ofllce of rhe
Municipal Affairs Commissioners _
Communiry Development Block
Cr.nt/State - Admininered Small Ciries

Homelessness prevsntion and Raoid
Rehousing prograrn (ARRA Funded)

Toral U.S. D€partment of Housinq and
Urban Development

Total Federal Financial Assistance

-i
-f
-il

{

{

J

J

J
II

t

J

J

14.182

14.E71

HUD NO.6l-005_
660-43-3572

RQ-059

$512,5E6

$201,0t0

720,274

9,405

1.463-27 s

t4.228 2010-003481

14.257 FR-5307-N-01

$r,461-27s

r

T
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coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RIco
MUNIcIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Notes to Schedule ofExpenditures of Federal Awards
June 30,2010

l. General

il"l;"":::li:ilil'3rTir'"ffiof-E;oe;altu'es orreaeral Awards includes the federar srant acrivitv of
ra,is or a.cou,ring. 

"il ir;&;;l#ffilii""i.H]i#fl i,,:f"Xiil,:.'J: ;:;l*Municipaliry's basic financial ,,"r.r"nr.. . The informarioi I" il;r" *-fl.lrl is presented inaccordance wirh rhe requiremenrs of oVB-Circrr", e_r.ll. erii r"r ii"'r.Jli""lXi o.r"_r.ro, uroyl:l:fir OrCanl_ztions. Iherefore, some amo-unts presented in ,f,i, ."fr1l"f" may differ ftomamounts prcsented in our used io the prepamtio, of ,r," u.u"i" i*-"'Jf ,"L."'r?,.
2. Retatiooship to the Basic Fitraucial Ststemetrt!

Revenues and expenditurcs of the fedeml awards are included in the Municipality,s basic financialstaremenrs wirhin the Capirat proie.s Frnd. rhe p;;;h,y;ri .rn[J,iJ#lr, oovemmen,ulFunds. The reconcitiaiion be een 
_rhe 

.rp.raiL.", 1" ii. ffi'a#ffi sratemenrs aodexpendihtes in the schedule ofExpendirures ori"a*ur e."iari" 
^-iliro*.,,-,.,"

Expenditures in the basic financial statements:

$ 962,91s
l57,0El
629.082

1,949,0?8
(485.801r

Total expenditures in the Schedule of
FederaJAwards

$r.461.275

Capit l hojects Fund
Other govemmental funds
Proprietary Fund

Less: Non-fedeml expenditures

a

r

r

r

r

F

73



-f
-!
-!
-il
-l
-il

-t
{

{

J
J

J

J

tr#,y,{:.r#J,#lf-8',9"f$;.P,F."8

CoMMoN}YEALIH oF PUERTo RICo
_ MUNICIPALITY OFATAONNO
Repon on Compliance and on tnlemal Control ou". iin"i.iuf n"pon;ng Based on anAudir of Iinanciar st"te,.*, p..ro*.Jin-*.ffi;; ili, ffi;..Hilr,ii,r* ro"o**

To the Honomble Mayor
and lhe Municipaliry of Aibonilo
Aiboriro, Puerto Rico

il:JilT',1#'.5!iH':::':;'ffi:']3t'.P y.,niciparitv orAiboniro orrhe commonwearrh orpueno
zoro. we 

"orar.i"a 
'ori;;;;"';:':# 'o'o' ind have issued our repon fiereon dared o.""ri.. i.

;mj:l;,u',;* j[:;;*.;:i:*t*i:lx,}.r,***,ffi;j"##:*"j"::,t;^,#i;:;

Intemal Control Over Financial Reportine

In planning and performing our audit...we consid€red Municipaljry.s inlerDal control or,er financial
[,|#[f [L,H]',i1f1T'1-:."';:':::lgt""""a*"' r" 'i,. [",pJ." oi:.'*pi.o:ngou. opinion on,r,"
nr*i"ip"u,y.iaiil"i" ffi;"i"ffii,l#fi:Hlffi*i,f"i:,."i;,::";:,n..H"J:iil?.Jl,t:
ffff:*i:l';ffi:: *'express an opinion on tr," "n*ii,""*. .iii"'r,ii"iriiill i,,"-, -,o"r .,*
Our consideration ofintemal controlover financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in thepreceding paragraph and wourd not neccssarir) ra*'ril Ji ?"i"r.""r.ii,l'iiiiiif '"onoor ou.. nn-";areponing thal mighr be significant defic;encies or mateiial weaLnesses. io*i"... * al*^."a befo*, *"f:H::"::*, dsficiencies in intemal control 

""* r,*"li.p"ii,e iili,,i," in.,a". ,o r. .",";ur

A deficiency in internal control exr.sts,when the-design or operation of a control does not allow
;:i::,*ff":jl:T'11:;;I"'j: ::T"l 

*:". 
"rp.'6.,1"e fi;;.'r,.i i,ll '"*. ,o preven,. or

*,,ui,",ro""ii.ii"i"i-"G;;'X;,:.,lil;,'lrL*,1'#"i+'ii:Ti.i,.##fl*"r;r;""1"f*;
enough io merir anenrion b\ rhose chat-eed !,irh govemance. i;;t;il;:";;iencies described in
fi.T,""Tii';H:ff*';"fl,i:3I"1* '"'pin'"''o" 'ig"ri","iiii"l#il"' in inrernar contror

,t ffiTl#ijl::ilf;fii:f;?;;:ij:-llination of denciencies, in intemar conror, such that there
be preveflted. or dereced *o 

"""."r"n .r'ltitiltle 
of the Munic;palily's finamial statements will not

8:"::ffiHl:il[:]1T:l:Tj'Ij*"nanciarrepo(in8 was forrhe rimired purpose described in
rhat misir be dehci;;;;;. ',iliffi;efl 

desisned ro idenriry all deficiencies i,i tr,i int"-"1 
"ont 

oienctes or material \r,,eaknesses, an4 therefore, there can be no
74
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assumnce that all such deficiencies have been identified.. We considered the deficiencies described in theaccompanling Schedule of Findinps rnrl. responses ," f" ,"t.ii"i *."tr.".,' ,"'',r*rn"f conrol overfinancial repofling as items t0.01. i0_01. t0_0i, t0_05and t0_0;.- 
-- , "

Complirrce atrd Other Matter3

As pan ofoblaining reasonable assurance abour \rherher lVunicipality ofAiboniro ot the Commonweahhof Pueno Rico financial staremenrc are free of ,u,uur ,i*oi..."i.""". ,]*rrn* tests of irscomptiance wilh cenain provisions of taws..resuhri"*. 
"";o;;,;. ;;; ;;;, "er.:;**, noncompriancer ilh which courd ha\e a direcr and mare,iar e-frecr.on the der;ffir;i rffiii;l suremenr amoqnrs.However. providing an opinion on comnriance 

"irr, 
,r,or. p."i iri"ir' *ri'noi'lr"ol;"",rr. oror. urait,and accordingr)' we do nor express such an opinion .r: ,.*i" "i'"*'i.# Jlictosed instances ofnoncompf iance or orher matters rhar are requirei 

" u" *p"i"J,i# b7 ii)irii n*ur, s,*a*."and which. are described in the accompanying *rr"ari" 
"l?"a]ig.'""; ;;;,#."7:..,, 

". 
irems 10_07

We noted ceflain maners that $e renorted lo managemenr of the Municipalit, ol Aibonito of theCommonweahh of puerro Rico. in a separate len* a".jo.""ri".i];i;:,*'*,,",

#."x:,,ii:,fflil;t:T:,:"oc:,*L:X[T*wearn of pueno Rico responseto rhe nndinss identined in
r'r-i"ip"ri.y."..+."*il:;i#:f;','r."i"':l;X:]:""jj'J,i[-j#l ,uestioned costs. we did not audir

This.repon is intended solely for Ihe information and use of the lvlunicipalitv.s manaIesislature. and fedemt awardinq aeenci".aJ;";;;:-:,.:^:"1']'jll:ilv : l*.'8€ment. municipal
,j b",;;;-;;;.'"iffi;:: i,':,ff:LHITj.t:""'""0'"' and is no, inrendei to be ana shoiu

Toa AIta, Pue(o Rico
December 6, 2010

Stamp No. 2448909
was affixed to the
original report.

W- ls.
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coMMoN\ f,ALTH oT PUORTo RIco
MuNtctpALtIy ot AtaoNtro

Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each maior program and on
Intemal Conrrol over compliance in aciordance wirh oMBtir;ul; A-lll

June 30, 2010

To the Honorable Mayor
and rhe Municipalir, ofAiboniro
Aibonito. Puerto Rico

Comoliance

wJ have audited the compliaoce of the Municipality of Aibonito of the commonwearth of puerto Rico(the rvluniciparity) r,irh rhe rvpes of compliance i"qui."."nt, a",".ib"J'inliii'i.i. ctyn" o1u*og".*,and Bklset tOW) Circutar A-ttt cin1liyr1-e^'S 
-ueyte.n.nt,h", ;; ;;t;ii"'," each of its majorfederal programs for the year ended June io. zo-to. tvt'unicipa,f t ;;j";i:;;;_gr"ms are idenrifiedin ll|e Summar) ofAudiror's Results Section.ofthe accompanying Schidule ofFinarngs and euestioned

:-":,1,-!"I|l:1ce 
*t,h rhe requirements.of la*r. r.egutation..-coitmfir, 

"na ffis uppri.utte ro 
"a.t 

ofrrs maJor reoeral programs is the responsibility of Muricipalitr.s."nug.renl. Our responsibility is toexpress an opinion on Municipality's compliance based on our audit.

we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance_wi!h auditing standards generally accepred in theUnited States of Americai rhe srandards applicable to financial audlls coiJllid'i' Couemnent naiting.srardardr, issued by the Compro er Cenerat of the United States; ;J ol/niii*l* e-tn, iiiii'i1States. Local Govemnents, and Non_profit Organrrir^. ff,"." ,,_a".al#-OMg Circutar a_t::require that we plan and perform the audit to obt"in ."ason"bl" 
".s*_"" ui,ii ini"*,". non"orptiart""with the type-s ofcompriance requirements refe.rea to 

"rore 
tt ai 

"orlal-"iJlai."", "na 
."t"ria 

"rr"",9l u. T"j9. federal progam occurred. An audit includes .*u.iring, on 
" 
,* i*ir, evidence aboutMunicipality's cornptiance with those requirements 

"rd 
p;;;;;; ;;;; procedures as weconsidered necessary in rhe circumstances. we uetiere ttrat Jrrr auaii pio"ia". ,".ei*natt" uuri" ro. orr.

::lli:: -9]' 
audir does not provide a resar determination 

"i Mil"id ; ;;priance with rhoserequrrements.

As described in items 10-07, t0-08, 10-09, t0_t0, lo-t I, 10-12, 10_13 and lO_14 in the accompanyingSchedule of Findings and euestioned Costs, rhe Municipality aia no, "orjy ,*i,f, the procurement,,^ltl"::':: 
",i9 

debamenr. equipment and reat properry ;*;g..;",. 
";1 ;;nagement, Davrs-BaconArL Earmarxtng. speclat tests and Drovisions and reponing requirements, thar 

-are 
applicable to itsCommunity D€vetopmenr Block Crant _ state Ad;inist;red'a;;li cl;;";. ;;pliance with suchrequiremenr.is necessary, in our opinion, for the Municipaliry ;; ;pt ;; the requiremenrsapplicable to rh6t program.

In our opinion, except for the instances of.noncompliance descritred in preceding paragaphs theMunicipality of Aibonito ofthe Commonweatrh of puerro Rico, 
"".pfi"a, 

ir lii."il"t resp€cts, withthe requirements .eferred to above that are appticuUt. to .""t, oi la .iu1..'f"a".f'p.S",n. fbr the yearended June 30,2010.

hlslelga4sarcls&Ep&rce
The management of Muricipality of Aibonito, commonwealth of puerto Rico is reqronsible foresrablishing and mainraining effective intemal control ** *rpii"*" *iii,f," 

-riqr.,irements 
of larrs,

I
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regularions. contracts, and granrs applhablelo federal prograrns. ln planning and performing our audiLwe consjdered the MuniciDalirv.s inremal conq.ol oveicoirpliance\vith r.q,iir.rent, tf,"t could have adirecr and mareriat effecr on a maior ferrerar.pr"g". i; 
"d";';1;;ir.'olil,]a'ii"e p-..du*. f", ,h"purpose ofexpressing our opinion on comprian;-. ur, *ii..,i. p"f.." o"rl*'p'Jl'.1ng .n opinion on ,r,"effecrireness ofthe Municipality.s intemal control over corplian.e. e.corainjy. we do not express anopinion on the effecri!eness ofrhe t\,lunicipalir) ;."."f .""r,ii """,.".Ji*"3.''

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for fte limited purpose described jn thep'eceding paragraph and wourd nor necessariry iai",;ry 
"rr 

a"n"i"""i". in',n"""rlifl ,n,"-ur 
"onnor 

,r,u,might be significant deficiencies or materiai.i.rtr..,'", 
". 

J"i,Ju"]o*.'rl#iir"., u, air"u.r"a u.ro*,we ideDtified certain deficiencies in int"mur 
"onr.or 

o*.;;;il;;.';ili;::;ider to be significantdeficienci.s and orhers that we consider h be mur..irl ,r."kn..J.r.

A contro,l delciency 
_i_n 

an enriry.s intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
;,::llffl.1ffiJ:J"1':::.Hi:1Tl'#:1'r"1""' i' 'r'J"o''"uii"'l* "i'0.i"'-;, ,r'.r, u,sig,J
on u,i..ry r'u,L-n,,s;,;;;;;;;;;:,;:::,XH"?l:;i::ll:ll.#H;lilTl:i,",i:i::1i,..",rJ,".1
that adversety affects rhe enriw.s abiritv-ro administer a f;d;;i;;;;;#;;; rr"re is mo.e than aremote likelihood rhar non"orolirn"" *hh 

" ryp" or"orpti"r". i"qr"i."..nr'i 
" 
?li..r p.ogu, ,r,"t i.nore lhan inconsequential will not be orerented or detected by the entity.s intemal control. we consider

;l:i::liffi:[T:',Tl conrror.ovei comprian* a**iu"a'i" ii. ,"J",o-rinr","r,"0,,. 
"r 

n"o,"r"

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results inmore than a rcmote likelihood that material 
.noncompliance *lii 

" 
,ip" ili".pi"rce requirement of afederal progam $ill not be Drevenred or detected Ly ,f,. *,i,y:r'l'.L*ri ."il.o-i. of *,. signin""rrdeficiencies in inremal conrroi over comntian66 lg5sri6e6 i" ,r,r. i."#p"ryi,u ,iiliute of nna;ngs anaquestioned cosrs. we consider irems ro-o i, r o-or. ro oi, io:iri -?ioiii i"'#"#.i"a, *""*..r"..

The Municipality of Aibonito, Commonweahh ofpuerto Rico r€sponse to rhe findings identified in ouraudir is described in rhe accomoanrinp *hea,te of findings ail;;;"ril#;Jl',*e did nor auditMunicipaliry's response and. accordingiy, *e express 0o opinion on it.

Ili:,::lT::.1,:^.:^oi :tery.for rhe information and use of the Municipatity.ity's management, Muniiicipallegislature, and federal awariing agencies through entiries and is not inrendei ro be'anJ s'h-or]lJnot be used by anyone orher thai thise spec

i
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Toa Alta, Pueno Rico
December 6, 2010

Stamp No.24489t0
was amxed to the
original repon.
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coMMoNwf, ALTH oF PUERTo RICo
MUNICIPALIIY OF AIBONITO

Schedule ofFindings ana questlonea Costs
June 30, 2010

Sectiotr I - Summary ofAuditoE' Reults

Fitrarcial Statements

Iype ofauditor.s report issued:
Inremal control ovei fi nancial reDortinp:

Material *eaktless {es) idenrified? " X vp<
srgnrtrcanr defi ciency (ies, identified

not considered to be material weakress? X yes

Noncornpliance rnaterial to financial statemenB X Jesnoted?

Federql Awards

Intemal Control over major Drograrns:
Material weakaess 1es.y idinri-fied?
Signifi cant defi ciency (ies) idenrifie.t

not considered to be material weaknessesz X yes

Type ofauditor.s repon issued on compliance
ror maJor progmms: 

eualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accondance with
Circular A-t33, Sedion .510(a)? X yes

Identification of major programs:

-!
-il

-t
-f
{

d

J

J

J
j
t

,

r

Qualified

_-no

_ none reported

_-no

none rcported

CFDA Numbers

14.22E

r

F

f-

Name ofFederal pro8am or Cluster

Community Develooment
Cities Program

Dollar rhreshold used lo drstinsuish
Between Ilpe A and lyp. 6 p-g."..,

Auditee qualified as low_risk auditee2

Block Grant/State _ Administered Slnall

$J00-000

---X- no

78
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coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

s"h"oJ:'#fi ',li:f";.J6j::[["r.*.
June 10, 2010

Sectiou II - Financial StateEetrt Finding!

The currenl year findings and quesrioned costs w€re
discussed with the Municipality,s rrru*.r"ri*il"f,
generally 

. concurred wiih 'ou, 
"oirr"ns and

recommendatrons. The Municipality of Aibonito will
respond to rhe following findings.through the issuance of
a separate letter addressed to thi Cogniiant agency.

10-01 DIFICTENCIEJ 

"T*aam 
uNrroRM ACCOUNTING SysTEM AND OTHER

The Uniform Accounting System {U_AS) and the accounling records currently used by the lr4unicipalitydo not hsve the necessarv canrhitities,.procedures, ir,"."rf 
"o"*fa *j.ieco.d. ro ensure accuratefinanciat reporring and ro-prepare ,r," vr"i"ipu,ty:, iuri;;"#i;Til;;,, and federat progams.reports in conformitv *ith Accounring principll. Clr.."lfyi"".p,"i,iniil U.,jnea Stut.s of ern";cu fo,sute a,d Locat Covemmenrs ,ceag. ir," uas t"," .rrii,i *.i,,1,i1"0 by rhe office of theCommissioner of Municipal effairs 

_of_p-ueno lico tOCAN4, by its ipanistiacronyms). a govemment6lentity created by law to provide te
administrative arid fiscal-m, 

.- . .__ .-cnntcat assrsrance to the municipalilies of pue.to Riio in sereJ

Tte Municipaliry's UAS rnostlv nmvides for the recording of revenue collecrrons. disbursements andorher timited transa*ions. tn aidirion,-the acc.,rit"g-"...8 *. 
".i,iliri,,i,,lL,"o, _o u oouo," "n*

. system is nol generally followed. Accounling records are mainlained on tre iast basis and budgeta4/accounrins bas€s (h,o 
'ccounrinp 

r, re. rtrt in". ,ignlt;;;;;;# ii#r;, do not compry wirhstatemenr No. t4 of rhe Covemrs!n61 4""o*n,e sdd;;;,J ft;$lii, *,..,a"a.
The folrowing specific additionar conditions were noted in reration to the uAs ofthe Municipality:

. Accounting transactions are curenrly accounted for simultaneouslv through manual andcomputerized accounrins svrrems for;hich no ;;";il;",;;;;;:il;: are made among rhem,incrudins.rhe 
""counrin! 

.Lo.ds 
",".,,ry ;r;;-;; ;J'"'J';[;;:,;r* are not reconcitedwith the UAS. The balance sheelaccounrsin the UaS are noirec?nJied ana adjusted to conforrnthem lo rhe Municipatiry.s audired basic financial ;";;;.."'"",,.,,."

. The UAS does not have the c,pabilities of; (l) recording and processinS all types ofcapital assettransactions, principally rhe accounring of depre.lrtio"La 
"lr"ii_tii1,. expense, (2) recordinsand processing all ransacrions.relarJ. ,."ir"r",'rri"lJiur";;,;;;l (;;;;;;;::;i:iand. (l) recordinS and processing rransacrions *r",.a a' i.ri_i...-l"ur. incruding bonds andnotes payable. obligations under caphal leases, *r.*". i.."f"a.-r Iictaims a;d judgrne"n; ;;;",","d absences. estimated ,,"0,,,O ,". *"lil,jllffT JX1landfillclosure ard post<losure marntenance costs. etc.

. No-adequate year_end closing procedures are made to account for all transactions affecting all
f

79
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coMMol\\ EALTH oFPUERTo RIco
MUMCIPALITY oT AIBoNITo

Schedule of Findingsoand euestioned Costs

. No adequate segregation is made between items representing actual accounts payable and thoserepresenting outstanding encumbrances-. Accordingiy, materll amounis of unrecorded liabilities
are generally recorded at fiscal year_end.

. The ftanagement of the federal programs adminisrered by the Municipality maintains sepamteaccounting records for each federal program, which are noi reconciled ,J;,lr;t," UeS 6fr" oin"iuiaccounting system of the Municipality).

. No adequate and comprete accounting records are kept for inter-fund balances and transactions.

. The audit adjustments resulting from Single Audits are not completely posted in the UAS.

The basic financial statements of th€ Municipality must be prepared using lhe financial informationobrained from. vadous municipal deparrmenrs- and accounting records outsid-e;ithe official UAS, and
L:T-1T.T:ltT-:b",led from resutarors and indepenaent trr''ird parties. 

-in:Jaiitton, 
tre oepartment orrtnaJrce does not mainlain accounring. records and *orking papers supponing dre baiances anddisclosures reponed in the basic financtal statements. principally those related ro govemrnent-widefinancial reporting.

The Department of Finance does not maintain accounting records supponing the following proceduresperformed as part ofthe preparation ofthe basic nnun"i"r i"i.."rrr. o]'ti. vrl,i"iarry,
r The conversion ofaccounting .ecords ftom the cash basis ofaccouoting to the modified accrualbasis ofaccounling used by govemmenkl funds:

. The conversion of govemmental fund-s from the modified accrual basis to the accrual basis ofaccounting used by govemftent_wide financial statements; and

o Working papers and analyses of significant balances reported in the basic financial statements,such as capital assets, accounts reieivable lmunicipal ii".r*i-gr"ro-Li cootributions, etc.),defered r€venues. accounts payable. and tong-,"., iurigu,i;rrlf;;iiJ ih" g.n"rat p.*r;"" i,lo rel) upon lhe norificat;ons receired ir"rn,t; q-9"1"-."io.i"f"pr."i i*r for puerto Rico,rhe,.Puerto 
_Rico Treasury Deparlmenl the Fedeml Covemmeni-JnJ-itr"- vuni"ipat n.u"ru.Collection Cerrer for lhe balance of its outstaidirg a.Ut 

"ra 
tf," *iif,ioiain! for its aebt service).

CRITERIA:

Article 8.010(b) of Law No. 8l of Aueust 30, 1991, known as the Autonornous Municipalities Act oJPue o Rico tLaw No.8 t), srates lhat rhe Muni"lp"ri y ,*, ,rt*"i, ii, iriJ".I""*_g i. 
"""..a-""\airh Accounring principles Cenerallv Accepted in rhe'Unired Stares of Arn"r'lJ"iC,ii et. 

^ 
p.orrtgur.aby rhe co!emmenht Accounring sundardi eoara rcasat. ihe Nar;;;;i;;il;;;" on covemmenratAccountins (NCCA) and the Covemmenral eccounttr[,' Audil; ;;d ;;nani;"I Reponins book(commonly known as Blue Book).

In addition, Anicle 8.010(c) of Law No. El stares that unifom accounling system used by theMunicipality must (l) produce rcliable reports and financial ,o*rn"ni., 
-t:j 

provide complete,.i!.*,.,b, about rhe resuhs of operarions otrh. Munj"i;;tiry. ;na{l);;;iua.',h'" necessary intematcontots to account all funds, capital assets and ottrer asses ofttre l,tunici;"il,r.-_- 
_'-
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CoMMol.\ f,ALTHoF puERToRICo
MU]YICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Schedule ofFindings and euestioned Costs
June 30, 2010

Due to the conditions referred lo above. rhe preparation ofthe Municiparity's basic tinanciar statements 1,"ofand for the fiscalvear ended June 10. 20i0 *as .no.e aim*iianiGJ.fo,lr.ni rt"n *outa la,. u..n
li,"r_1'lA- :li:rr"rl"..s. A sign ificant amount ofadjusting enrries halto iernai" to *,e nnancat a"taand repons processed through rhe UAS in order to pioperlf 

"ccornt 
fo. un,."oJed fansactions and tocorrect transactions aecorded in the wrong accounting ieriod. Sir"" if," 

""""r"o 
and other accountingrecords of rhe UAS are not desisned 

_to providi'all n" ,il"_"iio"' ,."".sary to prepare theMunicipatity's basic financiat stareme"nts. tt. tr,trni.ipat,ty taa to ;;;;';; ;;:r. financiat dara fiomseveral sources outside the UAS. These conditions represent marerial weaknesses in the Municipality,sintemal conrrols over financial reporting.

CAUSE AND EFTECT:

These conditions occurred because the accounting system currently used by the Municipality has not beenupdaled in over IS !ears and. accordincly. rhe M-untipaliq f,^ ni, l.pf.,i,"""a ,, accounting slstem incomptiance wilh rhe currenr accounrin;;oder *"uriirr"lii cele iiui.r"niill ,0, 
^ ,..ra"a. n"continued failure to have an adeouate ic66un1lng .yrt". ao", noi ullow-iii'liuniclparity to tave timelyand accumte financial informarion for its decisi"i 

"i"lirg 
p;"rr. i; "ijiiir. 

"lri"."l 
*p"ns preparedmay have erors or omissions that will affeq nrt"* nr-"L"1"i a*i.io"r. n""ii,L "r*, is the use ofinaccurate financial informarion as a base for the preparat;;;i;;;;;iil;;;'l"hi"h, th"."fo.", ,uyrcsul1 in budgetary compliance problems.

RECOMMEAIDATION:

We recommend the MuniciDaljtv to elplore different altematives for the implementatron of a newaccounting sysrem in compliance with allapplic"Uf" r.a".i",il"""r ir*. *o' ."!,r"iu,,.".. This processshould include only accounting slstems thai will .r"lf" ,f," fr,r"-l"ip"firy i""p."!,-" io basic financialstatements in a timely manner and in conformity with GAAP. the systems to L lvauared must providethe necessary financial information that.will ;ene 
^ ,fr. i".1, f"i ,1" .ff."f;"" '"on*, 

of revenues,disbusements,- assets and liabilities, and the repodng 
"f "J ii".l'i"- ,i"'ir,frnicipa,ty,s nnancialstatements, including:

. The implementation ofa double entry accounting system, the integration ofall subsidiary ledgersand the .econciliation with rhe records mainrain.i i* f.a..if"nJi-'' ' -

. The pr€paradon of periodic financial repofts to be submifted to the Director of finance, theMayot the Municipal Legislature and the federat grntors; 
"rJ-

. Adequate training to all accounting personnel to improve the understanding ofthe system and topromote operational efliciency

The Department of Finance must establish..and document new accounting policies and proceduresaddressed to correcl the non{omDliance sit
,r,"rr u" p,".,re",; ; ffi##;.#",ilTil:!:f$1";ff 

"l;:1,*1ff,,f;ffi :LTtrff ffi:The documentarion ofs,ch accounring policies *a pi*.ar... ,i"ii u.'rpa",.i'fi"oai"ufry u....ai"g,"a predetermined schedule.

,
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rO.O2 DEPOSITING OF CASH RECEIPTS IN BANK ACCOUNTS

During our tesl work on cash receipts, we came across certain instances in which thecottected by_tle Municipaliry had been deposited into an incorrect bank account.
summarizes the deposits made by error during the fiscal year 2009_20 I O, - - -

daily remittances
The following

a

a

r

r

r

Many ofthese deposits have not been detected ,ntir rfie Accounting Department p.epare and reconciredthe monlhly banl reconciliations and nr6p656l the required adjustmlnra L. 
""tion.',o "o*, ,h. u""our,balances-

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

This condition occurrcd because the Municiparity does,not have adequate intemal confors and proceduresfor rhe ver-ification of daity deposit stip-s.-This condirion, ti;;i:;;;, il"ses rhe risk of theMunicipality using federal awards for unallowable purposes.

RXCOMMEIIDATION:

We recommend tfiat the MunicipaliN develop procedures to ensure rhal all bank deposits are prepared ona daily basis and fie complered deposils are ;eii.*"a ty 
" 

p".r." injlp"-nalii oiii" a"pori p..pur",io,process.

IGO3 INACTTVE AND UNNECESSARY FTINDS AIYD INACI'IVE BAIIK ACCOUNTS

fie Municipality is maintaining an excessive number offunds and bank accounts that have been inactivefora.rorrg period..The accounring records incrud" or".35 ditr";;t flr-;;:;iiLioun 
"o 

,o s+,ors,zot,which have been inactive or had insicnificanl movement or orremlions during the year under audit. Also.inctude J I bank accounrs * hich amirnred to g4.ou.lio. *ri"rr it"," i"."'i*iir'"1 * nra insignificanrmovement.

This situation results fiom the need to analyze and close inactive firnds and basic accounts when thetund's objecrive has been achieved or are no io"e* 
"r.ig,ii;"r"i. ii,"ln,i.i"ffoi*r .-"*." .t orlaprovide for the accurate maintenance ofthe boolr, ,*ori'., f*aa _i"*lr"i, 

".""rr"ry 
,. 

""ray 
.r,,fr"Municipality's operations.

CR]TERIA:

Article 8.007(b) ofrhe Law No. 8l ofAugust 30, 1991, known as the,.l utononow Manicipalities Act ofPuerro Rico (L,w No.8l), states rhat fund; wirho*,p""in" n.""fy"r.. ,iJriJ't"lfo."a *f,"",f," n a,.objectives have been completed.

NCCA Statement No. I . pa-ragraph 4, srates that ..govemmental 
units should establish and maintain thosetunds required by raw and sound financial adminii.ti.r. o.rf *" iir;ru-.'iiiu". orronas 

"onsirtent

r

Section 8 Voucherlcc6iii
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with legal a-nd operating requirements should be established since unnecessary funds result ininflexibility. undue comple\iry. and inemcient fi"r".i"f 
"Jr;riroi"rl- 

"""""'

In addition, the recommended D"".ctic. on lmprcying the Efectiyehess of Fund Accounting,, (2004),issued by the covemmenr Fina;ce office,, ArrLi"ti"i 
"i 

r#uril"J'iiatJ{,ni6"naaa lcroa;, ,t"te,that ir is impodant in this regard to distinguish n".ou",irg f."; fin;n"i"i' *'p.ni"g. Vyhereas araccounting system must collect all of_the dita n."a.a to Jr.r." unJ J"r*r.rir" legal compliance,financial reporting is concemed with only rhose *p""t of *rpii**-,f,ui-r.J o"ii.po*un"" to ,,".. orgeneral purpose extemal fi nancial reports.

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

This situation occuned because the Municiparity has not anaryzed and crosed inactive funds and bankaccounts when the fund,s objectives have b-een met o. _" no tong". *t"r-t. i," 
"Iortinu"d 

,"irt nun""of these funds and 
_accounts exposes the Municipality a ,f," ,"*rrir"t"i ,r"-o'i n na, iiom inactiveaccounts for activities not intended to be.financid *it tf,"r" runa.. ffi l"flrim"ntion"a 

"onaUon"represent material weaknesses in the Municipality,s internal conhols ou", i*r*i"i ,"poaing.

RXCOMMENDATION:

The Municipality should close all unnecessary and inactive funds or accounts. Budgetary balances ordeficits remaining in those funds should be ini"rtgut"a *J pffify 
"l""ij'.i ""iluf 

i.f,"a by law. TheMunicipalitv shourd derermine wherher the intendJd objecti.I* ;i;";;il ;; met. For a, firndsthat havecomptied with rhe requirements, tte Vrricipiuty ,f,orfa'ii"."'iii.. "i"."iri"g 
balarces inthose tunds should b€ disposed of iD accordanc" Utf, fo'"uf jna i"J"."i fu*.'u"i'*gJ",iorr.

IO.M DEFICIENCIES IN ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF CAPITAL ASSETS

The Municipality does not have and effective syslem to account for the accurate recoding offixed assets.There are no ,ntemal controls to ensure that.ail capitatizabt" "xpeJ*;;; p;;;"S, disposirions are

ff.-::1"':,,1T:f:1..i,:::,:5i!i",] redger.. A signincani;;i;;;ii;#:i properry. personarprupErty ano rnrrasmrclure acourred or constructed with federal and local funds is nol currently recordedin tie capital assets subsidiary redger' Accordingrv, trr" ur"i"rpurf-# ,oi'#in"tuir"a 
"o,npt"t" 

uoaadequate records over capital assets,

TIr_e 
.Mun 

icipality has,not^F,erformed periodical phlsical inventories of its capital assels (real property,peEonal 
.properry and infrasEucrure). As pan o[ rhe audit. \{e noGd that'the Municipality has noiorgarized-and performed a physicar inventory as ofJune 30, zoro. uo*"""i utl. nscal year end anattempt ofphysical inventory was made, bul at report date the pty.icut iiu"nto.y *". not firish, neitherreconcile with property register. Accordingl). ltrecap;rat asseri.ecoial in i'iJ i".oi,pany,rg o","rn.n,

::j":,*,,,.: ^1"-Tj lTtude 
severar.real.prifni". ani i"r"u.t u"tu." u-..-"t , *iiJilioura u" ."pon.a *

Parr ol the caf,rtal assets of the MuniciDality according to Statement No. 34 of lle GovemmentalAccounting Standards Board (CASB 14), as amended.

The following additionalconditions were noted overcapital assets:

. Tie Municipality's capital asset subledger is not reviewed on a regular basis for purposes ofidentirying and removing those items thit have been taken out or r"?L-J, p.rra" ro rutur"

7

t

f

r

T
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June 30,20t0

benefit..As a result, the capital assets suEledger may be misstated for this reason and may notaccurately reflect the p.oductive capital asseS o-wned by the Municipality. -*.. -

The Municipality does not have formal accounting and control proaedures and policies to ensurecompliance with CASB 14.

The subsidiary ledger is not periodically- reconc-iled witfi the property subsidiary ledgersmaintained by the Municipaliry.s sereral individual federal prog.amsl

CRITERIA:

Article 9.002 of Law No. E I of Aususr 10, 
.1991, 

known as the Autonomous Mtaicipalities Ad of p@rtoIt,co (Law No. 6r), stales rhar a, ,i'""i"ip"rri". ,u., p."p"*"-;;;';;;;;;;;;&r"dsubsidiary iedser(record) of all rcal prcperties.

ln addition, Chapter VII. Section 23. of the Regutarion.Ior Municipal Adminirra,br, requires that eachN'lunicipaliry must mainlain an adeouare control ofcapiLl assers th'rough lnnr; i;rri""r inu"r,o.i".. r,addition. any differences u.t*.., or,n.i.^r ;nu";,;t-,';il;;;:ilf,i"f il'oli', .*, * ,r".o,r",*and adjusEd. Considering that according ro accounting records oi ,f," fvi*i"ipJ,y, the capiral asselsreprEsent the most sisrificant assets of th; Mu"l"ip"rityir,"* l, 
" 
.igrln"ri'i-rlir uruutt o;r"a ur" o.disposition of capitsl assets because there are 

- 
no- adequare i.;"i;;;;; in place to ensur€accountability of capiral assets by depafiment o. fed".al p.offi.

Chapter VIl, Sections l. 4. 14. lS an.t 2l of the Regulation lor Municipal Administration establish thefollowing guidelines regarding propeny management:

. Section 3 establishes that the Financ€ Director is rcsponsible for the accountability of the capitalassets acquired by the Municipality through purct 
"r"i 

o. aonuiionr.- ----"'
. Section 4 establishes that the Municipal property Administrator shall be responsible to the Mayorand the Finance Director for lhe direct.adminis,t,f 

"", "r. "rJ 
."t""*""r"f the entire real andpersonal proF,erty owned by the Municipality,

o Section l4(l) establishes that all municipal property shall be numbered and identified as toownership by the Municipal property Adminisrrator 
-

. Section l5(l) establishes that the Municipal propeny AdminisEaror is responsible for accuratelymaintaining the central prop€rty records.

. Section 2l(c) establishes that mana-gement shall write-off from the property records all propertyand equipment sord or disposed oiwhen cenified b);" l;;;;;r i;[# or $e Municipariryupon derermination that such disposal is adequa,". '

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

ftese instances of non-compliance occurrcd, trcause the property Division of the Municipality has notentdrced rhe requirement to perform a capi.,l a,."a in".ntof'uni ri 
"nlr-r" 

it.liop". 
"""oun,"o,ti,y 

of

I

J

f
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June 30,2010

capital assets during the fiscal vear ended.June 30,2010. Accordingly, the Municipality,s intemalcontrors in prace over capirar assets are not detrgr.a i" .'*rir"ry ."""r?'fJl'"caprtar assets. since it donor a,o$ for the reconciriarion of deraited. prop"erty ,*;;;;;;dJd;;;;li t..ag",. n.r" inra.qr"t"
!:X'j#Jl"tl illJ'""f Hfi-l::: 'ry 

r'i'1':"1rlro-," c'""r"# ffl:::il;" cosrs bv the rederar
lvunl"iparity r-int"-"r c*"r"i. i- 5i?,rtf"r, Jhis 

condilion represenls a material rnealness in itie

:"11liT;fti:1':tJ;j'.o1'"nT";s' ''eni1'ant 
risk or loss orcapirar assers because rhere is a rack or

,"p"ta ro *,.'rea"oigl;,e;;ffid;1fi.,fil'r,lT:rallv runded capital assets tost *ould n.ed ro i.
R.ECOMMENDATION:

il:H:f,i;:";':ffiikt Yiff:Xiri'v' 
capitar assets shourd be Eken as soon as possibre and

recorded in-,he ;;;;;;i.;s#',i'J#:.iii,? il,ff ii"Jf, fJ:I"1;:.#* H:f,f ,..Tf#

:11":TJ:'Ii^'ilf,lliiTil:,#1",t *'p"*' 
'r'J'p.p.',.v 

ol-i,.,iii,r'" Municipariry musr
iniluding a n tr l"*.irr# "iii'l ll'-tlt 

ll"t i""'*t or manage capiral asseis to submit a reporr
..sponri6l. p..sonn"r, io; *; ;; ;::: 

loc.arion' use' source of funds used Io.acquire rhe asse(
informarion 

.should -be 
;;il,;#r:. 

pertrnenl dara required by slate and local *gutr,ion.. ft ,.i

3#f1il:+j1r';"rXii.d.E##ff l*i:iiiiiffii,: s::ll*tlri u,,.. :n*i*i
out bv pirsons other than ;;il';i;i'il"i"J"Jj;fttfi"T,t^[".:ff:":or.."to., *a 

'r'oura 
ilJ-"-#i

We also recommend that Ihe subsidiarv

H:iE;TrJffi ,,;T*;##;:i::_"_*[!:ffi:T,JX#:ffi ",",::H,t'#;:.Jl;
to,s., on ai,po,"r,-",. iioiaJi,;.";;"';:f.,:"*,[ [ff]"' 

assets-and wili ensr.rre thar gains anJ

We also recommend lhal the su bsid;,ry 
. 
Iedger shall be periodically reconciled wirh the propenysubsidiary tedgers mainrained b) rhe Municipati-ty.s severat r"lJilr"ii"i..ar.piiillm..

To provide geater control over the r€cording of 
-capital 

asset additions and rctirements, we alsorecommend rhe Municipatiw to maximiT€ the use of tire or;;*;;il;.-;i.age to auromate the;ffi1'lr'r:il:::";:ff.:'i::"J:l*i:"**rrv "o'"p'ii'ia.;;;;"r'.:*"." ror nnanciar
accounring tunction ;;; il; i;;';#l:* Packase would improre the overall 

"iricl.n"v 
,,itt'ii it'l

programs. 
_tmenEl reponing of depreciation erpense. including fedeJ

IO.O5 LACX OF MONITORIIIG AND FRAT-ID PRX}'EI{TION ACTTVTIIES
As pan ofour evaluation of intemal contrc
ctesrgred. documenred nor praced in o*Il,:t'nt 'l:'"'0"'ity 

$e noled that lhe Municipality have not
prevent fraud and cenair-tyrl, i] f'."ifiil'9ns 

spe^cific intemal contsols end procedures disigned 
'ro

11111i311*a.1*"i'*#i;ffi:,"li!,I:::::..:5:i"i::ff".;tril1.,,#j,;:.jiill3,l,.,;,j:?monrro.ns afliliries performed ro a\.oid 
:_r.nb.ezzteftenr 

_d ;;id;;;;#;il.lit evaruation of rheOrtlerenl ryp€s of fraud risk factors assiocrated with the Municipaliry,s core processes. fhe

I

d

r

J

f

r
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Schedule of Findingsrand elestioned Costs

aforementioned conditions represent material weaknesses in the Municipality,s intemal confols overtlnanclalreponing.

CRITERIA:

Article 5.004 of Law No. 8l of A upusr 
.t0. 

1991, known as the Autonomous Municipaliries Act of puerto

fr'co 
(!:w No. 8l ). states rhe Municipariq ,h"tr p".f";;;;;";;,.l riai,r"#i*.on,mns activitiesover all nunicipal op€rations financed with dblic frra.. ir"fral"g, il i tf,e- acquisition, r-rse anddisposition of capital assets. (2) transacrions and opemtions of att"aaminl tive units (municipaldepartrnents). and (J) a, accounts, records, troor,", 

".no'""r., 
trag"i, 

"ra 
iif oiiJ.?_"iut u"tluiti"r.

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

These conditions arose by the lack of effective controls and procedures for the evaluation of significantrisk factors in all municipal areas, the lack ofp.p". pr"*i"g'.i.""iiiu"i ,n-oiitoing 
""ririti",, 

,ra tr,"Iack ofproper allocarion ofhuman resources aira iirn" *r,"ari. t !"J.... iiJ 
""tiri'ii". 

."q oi."a ry ru*.These_ cond itions, ifnot corrected, may increase the risk of instanies oi aut"ri"i'unfor"r""n 
"..or" 

una
iryeytSnlres thst may nor be detecrid in a rimety ,""""; t ;;;;;; ;ntim"r corhor or theMunicipality.

RECOMMENDATION:

We also r€commend the MuniciDalirv ," fl.p1: " manual of policies and procedures specificallydesigned to prevenr ard detect friud. 'The 
Municipariry tt.rra 

"r!" 
i.."i [,i,iiilr..n,utron or 

"fraud prevenrion and moniroring acririties perfonnla by;"rrg"i"ri. 
"i"rrjlrg 

tie idenrificarion andevaluation of all frad risk facrJrs Fraud n:sk assessme;ts ffirJ ;;;;;';#dicary to considerchanges in rhe operating poticies ofrhe Municip"li,y ,"d th; ;;;;;l ;;";;;;";-, *'."

a

J

r

r

r
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Summary schedule ofprioryears audit findings
Fiscal Ye&r 200E-2009

June 30,2010
Findinssn,loncompliance Recommendations

S€ction m - Federel Awrrd Findings {trd euetioned Costs

Proeram

Proeram

SBCP

CFDA No. 14.228

Ouestioned Cost

Ouestioned Cost

NONE

I

d

,

r

r

FindingsNoncompliance Recommendations

IGO,6 INTERNAL CONTROLS. INTORMATION
AND COMMUNICATION

Statement of Condition:

The Municipality has not established effective intemal
control over Federal programs to provide reasonable
assurance that they are managing Federal awards in
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements that could have a material
effect on each of iis Federal progmms.

('fltena

According to OMB Circular A-t33 Sec. J00, the auditee
shall maintain intemal con$ol over Fedeml progams that
provides reasonable assurance that the auditee is
managing Federal awards in compliance with laws,
regulations. and the provisions of conEacls or gran6
agreements that could have a material effect on each of its
Fedeml programs.

Cause and Effect:

This condition occurred because the Ofiice of Federal
Programs of the Municipality has not adopted specific
and tailored intmal conhols, procedures and policies, to
ensure thal all employees involved in the management of
federal awards carry out their functions in strict
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and
are periodically trained and knowledgeable of the current
changes ard amendmenls to rhe progrmm.s regulations
established by the U.S Department ofHousing and Urban
Development.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should prepare an operational manual
for each ol ia Federal progmms that contain provisions
for 

. 
compliance with all the applicable Federal

requrements.r

t-
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Summary schedule ofprior years audit findings
Fiscal Year 200E-2009

June 30,2010
FindinerNoncompliance Recommendations

10.07 PROCIJRXMENT, SUSPENSION AND Df,BARMf,NT

Statement of Condirion:

The Municipality has not established effective
procurement procedures to ascenaid that in the
acquisition of goods and services the supplier was not
suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded. The
Municipality did not perform any step to ascertain that
supplier is not included in the Excluded panies List
System (EPLS) maintained by the General Services
AdministEtion (GSA).

Criteria:

2 CFR, Part 180 and 70 FR 51863 state that conbadors
receiving individual awards for g25,000 or more atld alt
sub recipients must cediry that the organization and its
pflncrpals are nor suspended or debarred. This
verification may be accomplished by checking the
Excluded Parlies Lisl Sysrem (EPLS) rnaintained ty the
Gen€ral .Services Adminisnation (GSA), collecting a
cenification fiom the enlity or adding a clause or
condhion to the covered traisaction with fi€ enrit\

Cause and Effect:

This condition arc5e because fie Municipality has not
implemented specific inremal controls and piocedurcs
designed to carry out effective moniroring aclivities over
the prcrcuaement process using federal awards, including
the training offtunicipal employees about this law.

This condition, ifnot corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances of m6terial non-compliances \.virh
the laws and regularions applicable lo the program.

Recommendation:

We recommend the Municipality to obtain the EPLS in
printed o. electronic format in order to use it as part of
the procurement cycle. The printed version is published

Ouestioned Cost

NONE
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Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
Fiscal year 2008-2009

June 30,2010
FindinegNoncompliance Recommendations

on a monthly basis. Copies can be obtained by
purchasing a yearly subscription ro the Superinrendent of
Docuftents. U.S. Colemment printing O8lce,
Washington, lX 20402, ot by calling the Covemment
Printing Office Inquiry and Order Desk at (202) 783-
323E. The electronic venion can be obtained on the
Intemet (http:/epls.amet.eov). The Municipality should
enforce strict compliance with the prescrib€d federal
requlremenr.

Ouestioned Cost

I

r

{

r

r

1GO8 EQUIPMDNT AIID REAL PROPERIY MANAGEMENT

Statement of Condition:

The Municipality has not complied with the property
management r€quirements. There were no physical
inventories performed during the fiscal year ended June
10.20t0.

Thecommunity Development Block crant program has 
NoNE

a subsidiary ledger of equipmenr acquired with federal
funds, however, such subsidiary ledg;r does not comply
with federal requiremenrs because it does not: (l) have
information needed to calculate the federal share of the
cosr of the equipmen( (2) identiry rhe grant under
which rhe progam acquired rhe.q,ripr.nt. 13.y hau"
rnlormalion about the location, use and condition of the
equipment and the date the information was obtained,
and (4) have all peninent information on the ullimate
transfer. replacement. or disposal ofthe equipment.

Funhermore, there is no evidence that the total amount
of capital expenditures and the composirion of capital
assels incurred of the Community De\elopment Block
Grant have been reconciled with the geneml ledger or
olher control accoun! to enhance rhe co'ntrols to pivent
unauthorized disposition of assets.

Criteria:

29 CFR 97.12 (d) (2) estabtished that the Municipaliry
should take rhe phlsical inventory and.econcile the
resuks with the properq records. ln addition, Section
td) (]) esrablishes tha! a control system must te
de!eloped !o ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss,
damage, or thefl of the property.

T
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Summary schedule ofprioryean audit findings
Fiscalyear 2008-2009

June 30,2010
Findin gsNoncompliance Recommendations

Federal regulations also require that, every two years, at
a minimum, a physical inventory shall be conducted and
lhe results shall be reconciled wirh propen) records to
venty the existence. cunent ulilizalion. and continued
need for fie equipment. Any discrepancies between
quantities determined by the physical inspection with
those shown in rhe accounting records shall be
investigated to determine the causes of the differences.
Property records shall be accumte. property .ecords
shall include the following for each item:

. A descriplion of the equipment including
manufacturer's serial numbers,

. Identification number, as the manufacturer,s
serial numbers.

. Identification of the grant under which the
recipient acquired the equipment.

. The information needed to calculat€ the
federa, share ofthe cosr ofthe equipment.

. Acquisition date and unit acquisition cost.. Location, use and condition of the
equipment and the date the information was
obtained.

. All pertinent information on the ultimate
transfer, rcplacement or disposal of the
€qulpment.

Cause and Effect:

Thes€ innances of non{ompliance occured because
lhe Properry Division of rhe Municjpaliry has not
enforced the requirerhent lo perform a ""iit"l "ss"trnventory and to ensure dte proper accountabiliry of
capital assets during fie fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. Accordingl,. rhe Municipaliry's intemal conrrols
in place over capit&l assets are not designed to
effectively account for capital assets, since it do not
allow for the reconciliation ofdelailed propeny records
wrlh the general ledger. These inadequate property
rntemal controls may expose the Municipality Io
questioned or disallowed costs by the federal
govemment for lost or stolen property. This condition
repnesents a material wea-kness in the Municipality,s
intemal controls over financial reporting.

Ouestioned Cost

I

I

I

r

r
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CoMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo RIco
MUNICIPALITY OF ATBONITO

Summary schedule ofprioryears audit findings
Fiscal Year 2008_2009

June 10,2010
Program

SBGP
CFDA No. 14.228

Furthermore. thjs situarion represents a significant riskof loss of capilal assets because rhere is a lack of
accountabilir) lor acquired capital assets. Any federilly
funded capital assers Iost wouid need to be repaid to the
fedeml govemment with municipal funds.

Recommendation:

A physical inventory of the Federal programs capital
assets should be taken as soon as possible. phyiical
rnventory amounts should be rcconciled with the
properq. recorded on lhe subsidi3ry ledgers. This
rntormalton should be reconciled with rhe monthly
disbursemenrs made again fhe budgerary accounts used
lor,property acquisitions. Dispositions mosl also be
maoe onl) upon approval of the Municipal properry
Administrator and the Finance.

IO-09 tr'EDf,RAI, CASH MANAGEMf,NT SYSTEM

Statement of Condition:

The Municipality has not established effective cash
management procedures. During our review of the
dra*downs performed during the year, lre noted the
tollowing deficiency:

a. The Municipality perfo.med 2j drawdown during the
2009-2010 fiscal )ear amounting ro $706,471. For t2
dra$doun arnounting ro $tqE.216 or (5:o/o) rhe
disbuEemenrs related to lhe funds requesred has a delay
ol J.days or more berween the funds receiving date anl
the disbursing date.

Criteria:

Fede.al regulations require that Crantee shall conform tothe standards applicable to advances from Federal
agencies. Amounts requested should be limited to the
Proglams immediale cash needs.

Cause and Effect:

This condition arose because the Municipality has not
impleftented specific inlemal controls and piocedures
designed to minirhize lhe lime elapsed ber\reen the rime
when drawdo\,\ns are made and the subsequent time

Ouestioned Cost

NONE

{

{

J
J

J

J

J

I

I

r

FindinqsNoncomDliance Recommendations
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Findin

CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTo luco
MUNICIPALITY of AIBoNITo

Summary schedule of prior years audil findings
Fiscal year 2008-2009

June 10,2010

Bank Overdraft
Overdraft drre
$41L56 February 8, 2010

Ouestioned Cost

when disbursement olfederal funds are carried out. This
condition incieases the risks of avoidable interest
income and instances of idle cash balances in the
Program's bank accounts.

Recommendation:

In accordance with Federal rcgularions. rhe lvlunicipality
should estimale dEwdotro.. of F.d.."l funds as closely
as possibh to the actual disbursements. Alsq the
Municipality should esublished procedurcs ro minimizethc time elapsing berween drawdowns and
disbursements.

1GIO FEDERAL CASE MANAGEMf,NT SYSITM

StaGment ofCondition:

The Municipality has not esr.blished effective cash
management procedures. During oul review of $e
tYogram's bank accounts we noted that lhe Municipaliry
incuned in bank charges resulting fiom a bank ove;drail
during the year.

Bark rccouIl
Name
SBCP

Criteria:

NONE
Bark
Ch.rge!
$45.7E

t

r

r

F

t-

t

Federal regulalions rcquire that Grantee shallconform tothe sundards applicable lo advances f.om Federal
agencies. Amounts reque$ed should be limited to fie
kTogmm's immediate cash needs-

Recommendation:

tn accordam€ wilh Federal rcgulations. the Municipality
should estimate drawdolvn.s of Federal funds as ctselyas possible to the actual disbursements. The
Municipality should established procedures to minimizettte ttme elapsing between drawdowns ard
disbursementq-

oncompliance Recommendations
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Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
Fiscal year 2008-2009

June 30,2010
Proeram

SBCP
cFDA 14.228

Ouestioned Cost

NONE

r
r

I.

r

IO-I1 DAVIS.BACON ACT

Statement of Condition:

As part of our audit tesrs we selected two (100./0)
construction projects out of2 projects executed during
the fiscal )ear. The construction projects were thi
rollowrng:

. Rehabilitaci6n de la pista Atl6tica, Sector Libo o

. Repavimentaci6n varios caminos Bo. Robles Sierra,
Bo. Algarrobo, Aibonito

The .following exception was noted during our
examination ofthe projects files:

(a) In two (2) 100% pmject files the ce.tified payrolls
were not submitted by conractor as requirea by the
fede.alregulations.

(b) In one (l) 50% of project files there were no
evidence of preconstruction conference,

(c) ln one (l) 5070 of project files rhere were no
e\idence of interviews to project emplolees.

Criteria:

Non-federal entities shall include in their construction
conhacts subject to rhe Davis-Bacon Acr a requirement
that the contractor or subcontmctor comply with the
requircments of the Davis-Bacon Act and the DOL
regllstions (29 CFR part 5, ..Labor 

Standards provisions
Applicable to Conracls CoveminS Federally Financedand Assisted Constructjon.'). This includes a
requirement for the contractor or subcontractor to submit
to the non-Federal entity weekly, for each week in which
any contrEct work is performed. a copy of the payroll
and^ a statement of compliance lcertifiid payrolisi 129CFR secrions 5.5 and 5.6).

Cause and Effect:

This condition arose because lfie Nlunicipality has not
implemented specific intemal controls and piocedures
designed to carry out effective monitoring activities over
conlractom engaged in projecE financed wilh federal
tunds. including. bur not limited to, the enforcement of

f

T

Findirqs,Noncompliance Recommendations
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CoMMoNwEALTII oF puERro Rrco
MUNICIPAI,ITY oF AIBoNITo

Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
FiscalYear 200t-2009

June 30,2010
Findin gs^oncompliance Recommendations

compliance with contractual clauses related to Davis_
Bacon Act and the training of municipal employees
about rhis law.

[his condilion. if nol corrected. may increase the risk of
avoidable instances of material non-compliances $ith the
laws and regularions applicable ro rhe hogram.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should establish procedures to
ascertain that all documents submitted by the conkactor
are revie$ed and approved on a timely basis to ensure
compliance wiih Iabor standards.

IG12 EAR.NIANKING R.EQUIRXMENT

StaterDent of Condition:

As ofJune 10, 2010, the Municipaliry expended less rhan
70 p€rcent of the funds recei\ed by rhe state, oler a
period of up to three yeaE for activities that benefi! low
and moderare-income persons as required by the federal
regulations.

Criteria:

According to 24 CFR, 570.4t4 the Srate must certiry
that. in the aggregare. not less than 70 percent of the
CDBG frrnds received by lhe stare du;ing a period
specified by the state, not to exceed three yearc, will be
used for activities lhat benefit persons of low and
moderate iocome

Cause and Effect:

this condition iuose because rhe Municipaliry has not
implemenred specific ;nlemal controls a;d procedures
designed to crrry out effective moniloring activities oter
lhe managemenl and r.rse of federal awards. including,
but not limited to, the enforcement of compliance wiii
the 70 percent limitation rcferred to above and the
training ofmunicipal employees about this regulation.

sBGP 2005
CFDA No. 14.228

Ouestioned Cost

NONE

,

r

t

r
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June 30,2010
Program
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CFDA No. 14.228

FindinesNoncomoliance Recommendations

a. Final inspection not present
o[ files.

Criteria:

Ouestioned Cost

This condition. if nol corrected. may increase rhe risk of
avoidable insEnces ofmaterial non_compliances with the
laws and regulalions applicable to the program.

Recommendation:

The Municipality shor.rld establish procedures ro
ascertaln rhat cornply with the earmarling requirement
in accordance with 24 CFR sections 570.484. The
Municipaliry should stan rhe process ro develop rhe
proposed pmjects as soon the grant aqeements are
receive.l

10-13 INADEQUATE DOCUMENIATION OF
PARTICIPANT FILES
(MODERATE HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAM)

Statement of Condition:

As part of our test to determine whether the grantee has
ascertain that the rehabilitation work is properly
completed;. we selecled a sample of 6 participant file;.
tie lotlowtng exceptions were noted:

2 Files 330/0

I

I

According lo 24 CFR. <?0.506 the grantee must assure
that the work is properly completed. For each residential
rehabrtrtahon activity lhe following records are needed:

a) Rehabilitation contra.t describing the
deficiencies in each sfucture to b€ corrected.

b) An inspection of the rehabilitation work upon
completion to assure that it was carried out in
accordance with cono?ct specifi cations.

Cause and Effect:

This condilion arose because rhe Municipality has not
rmplemenred specific inremal conlrols a;d p;oc€dures
designed to carry out effective monitoring acnvities over
lhe managerient and use of federal awards. including
but not limited to, the enforcement of compliance wiih

r

Ir-
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Summary schedule ofprior years audit findings
Fiscal year 2008_2009

June 10, 2010Prosram Findines,Noncompliance Recommendations

According to OCAM grant agieement quarterly financial
reports,

the file documentation rcquiEments referred to above
and the tiaining of municipal employees about this
regulation.

This condition, ifnot corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances of material non-cohpliances with
the laws and regulations applicable to the piogram.

Recommendation:

The Municipality must inspect the rehabilitation work
upon completion to assure that it is carried out in
accordance with the confact specifications.

This condition, if not corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances ofmaterial non_compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the prog.am.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should implement procedures to assure
thar all required information is included during the
preparation of financ ial reports.

SBCP 10'14 TINANCIAL REPORTING
CfDA No. 14.228

Stalement of Condilion:

Our review ofthe quafterly financial report subhitted to
Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs
(OCAM), disclosed that it was submifted after the
required submission date, as detailed below. NONE

eurrter Dre Dr& p.st DueEtrded Drte Submitted Drvs
December 31, 2oos February 11, 2oto r"EiillE]zoro s aay.

Criteria:

Ouestioned Cost

t

a

t

f
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CoMyoNwf,ALTH oF PUERTo RIco
MuNtcrpALITy oF ArBoNrro

Summary schedule ofprioryears audit findings
Fiscal year 2001-2009

June 30. 20t0

Total Questioned Costs

Cause and Effect:

This condition occurred because the Municipality has not
adopted adequate intemal controls and' piocedures
designed to 

_ensure the timely submission oi p-gr"rn
re-ports and the lack of adequale rminlng and supervision
of the municipal employees in charge of the priparation
ol lhe albrementioned reports.

This condition. if nor corrected. may increase the risk of
avoidable instances ofmaterial non-compliances \ ith lhe
laws and regulations applicable to rhe prog.am.

Recommendation:

The Municipaliry should improve existing procedures to
ensure rhe timel) submission of the Annual Repon. in
order to _compl) uilh Fedeml regulation. Also, the
Municipaliry should consider impleirenting a reponing
calendar ro maintain all personnel aware ofihe repronin!
deadlines of each federal financial report. fhis wili
provide an addirional rool to help the Municipaliry jn
complying wirh the federal regulation.

Ouestioned Cost

ITONE

Findings/Noncompl iance Recommendations
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Sumrnary schedule ofprioryears audit findings
Fiscal year 2008-2009

June 30,2010
FindinesAoncompliance Recommendations

The following schedule contains the finding. numb€r and title of each of the findings included in theReport on compriance and Intemar contr;l Based * tr," iraiili: il?;;d purpose Financiarstatements for performed in Accordance wirh.co*rnr"nrarai,inf si"na"-.alioi ri" etr"ul v"* 
"na"aJune 30,2009. Under the heading Correctiue e.rio, token rhere *lif i",fr?i"if"*r"g,

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corefiive action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Panially resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was panially implemented and the findingrepeated in fiscalyear 2009-2010).

NR - Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 2009-2010.

Finding Corrective

Nurnber ritle i*l
2009-II-01 Material weakness in prepared financial statements FR

2009-lI-02 Material weak ess in prepared financial statements NR

2009-ll-03 Material noncompliance and material weakness in Dremred
Schedule ofExpendilur€s of Federal Awards FR

Ouestioned Cost
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COMTTON1 EALTH OF PUf,RTO R.ICO
MUNTCIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
Fiscalyear 2008-2009

June 30,2010

The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each of lhe findings included in theRepon.on Compliance uirh ReqLrirements Applicable to Each f"f"l_ i.-Sr 
-rri 

fr,emal Conrrol overCompliance in accordance wifi OMB Circular A- Bl for the Fiscai yea..Ta"l ir*'io. zoOs. U"a".,1"heading Corrective Action Taken there will be tfr" foffo*in!:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was partially implemented and the findingrepeated in fiscal year 2009_2010).

NR- Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 2009_201 0.

Proclam

Finding
Number
2009-III-01

2009-tlt-02

2009-[I-03

2009-III-04

2009-tII-05

2009-IIl-06

FindinesNoncomoliance Recommendations

Allowable Cost/Cost principle

Cash Management

Davis Bacon

Procureme[! Suspension and Debarment

Reponing

Reporting

Ouestioned Cost

Co.rective
Action
Taken

PR

PR

NR

NR

FR

r

r

r

r-
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coMMoNwf,ALTH oF PUf, RTo RIco
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Summary schedule ofprioryears audir findines
Fiscal year 2007-2008

June 30, 2010

The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each of the findings included in theRepo.t oh compriance and Intemar contrir Based 
"" tr," araiili:;;'ieffi purpose FinancialStatements for performed in Accordance with c;.#;;;;t,l;; st"niialti',i'" 

'r"ur 
v"* .na"aJune 30, 2008. Under the heading Conectlve action taken there *l? t" ii-" f"if"*rrg,

FR - Fully resolved (indicating fie corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the conective action plan was pafiially implemented and the findingrepeated in fiscalyear 2009-2010).

-t
-t

FR

FR

NR

NR

-!
-l
{

{

J
J

J

J

t

-

NR.

Finding
Number

Not resolved yer. Finding repeated in fiscal year 2009-20 I 0.

Title

Corrective
Action
Taken

Finding
Number

08-0t

0E-02

08-03

08-04

06-05

Title

Deficiencies in the Uniform Accounting System and
other Accounting Records

Cash and bank accounts

Personnel files and payaoll related procedures

Inactive and unnecessary firnds

Lack of monitoring and fraud prevention
actrvtres

Corrective
Action Taken

NR

7

F
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coMMoNwf, ALTH oF PUERTo [UCo
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Sum mary schedule ofp.io. y.ars aJit findino.
Fiscat year 2007-2008

June 30, 2010

The following schedule contains fte finrtilg 6urn6s1 and title of each of the findings included in theReport on comptiance !rirh Reouiremenrs eppri"uur._to eulr, l,lu;_ ii."g#"ia'ill,.rn"t conr.ot overcompliance in accordance wirh dN{B circutar e_rt:- to. rte iircaiV.", 
"Tali 

iJ"""lo. ,008. under theheading Conecrive Action Taken rhere will be rhe following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

* - 
#:,li? l;lffirt#,,Td-t ll"r;:"*tive 

action pran was partiartv impremented and rhe nndins

NR-

Finding
Number

Not resoived yet. Finding repeated in fisc al yeat 2009-2010.

Finding
Number

08-06

0E-07

0E-08

0E-09

08-10

OE.I I

0E-12

08-ll

OE.I4

Till€

Cash management system

Eligibility requirement

Financial reporting

Fedeml cash management system

Federal cash managernent system

Fedeml cash management system

Davis-Bacon Act

Earmarking requirement

Cash hanagement system

Corrective
Action
Taken

Corrective
Action Taken

FR

FR

FR

FR

NR

FR

FR

FR

FR
,

T
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r
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